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COMPANY PROFILE
REREIT

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) engages principally in the manufacturing and sales of lead-acid motive batteries
and other related products. These batteries are widely used in electric bikes, electric
tricycles, special-purpose electric vehicles, etc. The Group also manufactures and sells
storage batteries and lithium-ion batteries. It is one of the very few enterprises which has
successfully adopted the enclosed battery formation process in large scale production.

Headquartered in Changxing, Zhejiang Province, the Group’s manufacturing facilities are
strategically located in regions with higher demand for lead-acid motive batteries, namely
Shandong, Jiangsu, Henan, Zhejiang, Anhui, Jiangxi and Hebei Provinces.

The primary market of the Group features top electric bike manufacturers highlighted by
Yadea and Evermaster, and its secondary market is supported by a nationwide distribution
network covering all provinces. For the primary market, the Group supplies original
batteries to most of the well-known electric bike manufacturers in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC” or China). The Group has achieved total cadmium-free production by the
end of 2013, in fulfillment of its corporate social responsibility as a green enterprise.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEENR
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CONSOLIDATED (RMB'000) REARBFT)
For the year ended 31 December
HE+_A=t+—H81L%%E
019 2018
—E-N\F
B’ 000 RMB'000
=S ARETT
Revenue WA 27,181,732 26,948,237
Gross profit ESA 3,393,273 3,235,268
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company A2 RIHEAG A FE(L FE 561,340 412,714
Earnings per share — Basic BRAEF -EXR RMBO0.51 RMBO0.37
ARMo051T | AR¥0377T
Proposed final dividend per share EREFRARERE HK$0.084 HK$0.066
0.084 & 7T 0.066 /87T
REVENUE (RMB in million) WA ARBEET)
2019 27,182)
2018 26,948 )

REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

(RMB in million  Proportion of total revenue)

WARE@RESD
(ARBEBT (HREALH)

it - Electric Vehicle Battery
0.95% BHEEHRSHAR
) 259 EHEB
2.94% 7,626 28.06%
(2018 Yy ‘ L 2019]
5200 19.29%

| 2018]

@)

Electric Bike Battery Others
BEFEITEEM Efth
63.46% 17,249 2,047 7.53%
(2019 ) L 2019]
72.05% 19,417 1,541 5.72%
(2018 ) | 2018]
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FE;®S

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors” or each the
“Director”) of the Company, | am pleased to present to shareholders the
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Year”).

The Group achieved good results and maintained steady business
development during the Year. Its performance highlights are as follows:

Due to an increase in gross profit margin as a result of lead price
decrease and cost reduction by application of new technology,
profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the Year
totalled approximately RMB561 million, representing an increase of
approximately 36.0% as compared with that for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Having achieved top rankings in a number of renowned domestic
and international lists of Chinese enterprises, including “Top 10
Enterprises of New Energy Battery Industry in China Light Industries”
(Fr B 88 T 25 %7 82 JR | b 17 3 1 58 1b ) for the seventh
consecutive year and continuous capturing of its position among
the 2019 “Global Top 500 New Energy Enterprises” (2 ER#T8E /R &
%5005%), the Group has enjoyed strong recognition by the PRC
government and the industry as an industry leader and a technology
pioneer.

In addition to various awards earned in recognition of excellence in
technological innovation, the Group has persisted in green
production in tandem with national policies. The Group was one of
the few members of the battery industry selected by the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology of the PRC (“MIIT") for inclusion
in the first list of “"Model Enterprise of Green Industrial Products
Design” (L E mAZ B RFTRE D).

10 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited  /  Annual Report 2019

AANEREARAEE(EZENE(EEE))
AEURRMAREZAEEEE_FT-NAF+=
A=Z+—BLFE(XRFED 22FEERS -

AEE AEEEBHBERERE  BBRIEHN
P48 BRI

SEPNHE TR ETERARKRATRS
EHEFAEA  AFEARRRER AENL
ABELEARES1ET B2 -2 — N\
FH+Z A=+ —BIEFEIEMNE 36.0% o

1TEEE S - BB LA R EBSE 5P BT
REANBERA - 2% EMEOE R R
BERMEPBECERTEE B AKEE
B e [ hRETEMEREMITET
MEEIF YHARE-_ZT-NF(2
BRETREIR (% 50098 | £5 58 -

RERERR T E A E B R AR B TR
Sh o TERREC A BRI - BEKELE
ANEFBETEMEREMI TEDERI T
XERHERATHLE] BE  RRIH
BHITRERRERZ—



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHRS

During the Year, the Group's business achieved encouraging development
thanks to ongoing economic expansion in the PRC, as well as the effective
control by the Group over its operations and costs. With the growth in the
PRC’s gross domestic product (GDP) reaching 6.1% in the Year, and
consumption upgrade and urbanization continuing steadily, such
developments have provided the catalyst for further growth in demand for
lead-acid motive batteries for electric bikes, electric tricycles and special-
purpose electric vehicles. In addition, the PRC government has further
raised regulatory requirements on the safety and environmental protection
performance of electric bikes, and tightened requirements on the recycling
of lead-acid batteries during the Year, calling for the elimination of non-
compliant products and the generational upgrade of electric bikes. These
controls have been favorable to the development of leading battery
manufacturers which provide premium quality and high specific energy
products with well-established lead-acid battery recycling networks.

By further enhancing product quality and production technologies, as well
as improving production management procedures, the Group has
improved the cost-efficiency and competitiveness of its products. Also, by
further strengthening its nationwide sales and distribution network with
full coverage of both the primary and secondary markets, and imposing
lean and flat management of distributors to maintain leadership in
operational efficiency and increase profitability, the Group has further
enhanced the reputation of the “CHILWEE" brand and its influence, and
thus upheld the Group’s leading position.

The Group is fully committed to technological innovation. With a top-
notch research and development ("R&D") team, the Group has devoted
relentless effort towards the R&D of, among other things, new types of
batteries, energy storage business and smart production. The Group has
been fervently promoting innovation in its technology, products,
production and management and breakthrough products have been
launched in succession. Investment has also been increased continuously
for developing the Group's green business, which includes introducing
energy-efficient and lightweight new products as well as enhancing the
environmental friendliness of its manufacturing processes, in a bid to
facilitate the upgrade and development of the industry.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my gratitude to all of our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their unwavering
support and trust in the Group. | would also like to thank the Board,
management team and all of our staff for their exceptional contributions.
In 2020, we will leverage our technological edge, innovations and
advantages from industry-chain consolidation, plus the concerted efforts of
management and the entire workforce in achieving high-quality
development, to achieve further progress in globalizing the Group's
business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB R

Strategically located production facilities to
seize market opportunities

REEEENRR BIGTHEMR

The Group's production facilities have been
strategically located in regions with higher
demand for lead-acid motive batteries
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DI

The Group engages principally in the manufacturing and sales of lead-acid
motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and other related products, which
are primarily used in electric bikes, electric tricycles and special-purpose
electric vehicles.

The Group maintains its position as a market leader on the back of its
dominant brand name and an efficient sales network. The Group competes
primarily on its ability in innovation. Through joint efforts with pioneering
enterprises and renowned institutions in the world, the Group has been
consistently enhancing the production technologies to develop battery
products with superior performance, higher energy efficiency and greater
environmental friendliness, fulfilling market demand with the benefit of
lower production costs while aggressively building a green industry chain
in active response to national strategic requirements.

For the Year, the Group’s total revenue amounted to approximately
RMB27,182 million, representing an increase of 0.9%. Overall gross profit
margin increased by 0.5% to approximately 12.5% (2018: approximately
12.0%). Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB561 million (2018: approximately RMB413 million).

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Ongoing expansion of the electric bike market

The PRC ranks the top manufacturer and seller of electric bikes in the world.
Electric bikes are inexpensive, small in size, convenient and energy-efficient,
hence they have been a major mode of transportation in third and fourth-
tier cities, towns and rural areas of the PRC. According to statistics of the
China Bicycle Association, ownership of electric bikes has reached over 250
million in the PRC, and such ownership has laid a concrete foundation for
the development of rechargeable battery. The annual electric bike
production of the PRC has been in excess of 30 million units in recent years.
The market is anticipating a higher compound annual growth rate (CAGR)
of around 7% between 2019 and 2023 for the PRC electric bike market,
indicating stable growth in the demand. In connection with the overseas
market, as motorcycles remain the preferred type of vehicle in Southeast
Asia, the market for electric bikes there is still in the startup stage. Based on
the historic growth trend in the PRC over the years, the Southeast Asian
market for electric bikes leaves enormous potential for growth and is set to
drive the demand for imported electric bikes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R

Sustained growth in demand for electric tricycles
Characterised by their strong adaptability, mobile flexibility, ease of
maintenance and economic pricing, among others, electric tricycles are
widely used for short-haul transportation by families in cities, rural areas,
plant complexes and mining areas, and for public hygiene and community
maintenance and cleaning services. In particular, in recent years the aging
Chinese population has been driving the demand for small electric tricycles
as a transportation vehicle for the elderly, while robust development of the
e-commerce sector has also fueled continuous growth in the demand for
large electric tricycles and electric forklifts used in courier services and the
storage and logistics business. As the PRC has raised the threshold for
operating the electric tricycle business and strengthened supervision over
the sector, competition in terms of industrial standardisation and
technology has escalated, setting in motion the generational upgrade of
products which is in turn favourable to sales by tricycle battery
manufacturers offering premium quality and advanced technologies.

Moreover, according to the “Action Plan for Comprehensive Treatment of
Air Pollution in Autumn and Winter 2018-2019 in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
Region and Surrounding Areas” ({ 523 K #8352 1 [@ 2018-2019 F FK &
ZERAFRMRERBEBERITH H IR ), effective from 1 October 2018,
additional or replacement vehicles for public transportation,
environmental, hygiene and postal services, as well as additional or
replacement of working vehicles in ports, airports and railway freight zones
in the urban built-up areas should comprise primarily new-energy or clean-
energy vehicles. This new policy has boosted the sales of special-purpose
electric vehicles and related batteries.

Stable growth in demand for lead-acid motive batteries
Given its merits such as cost-efficiency, safety, cryotolerance, ease of
maintenance and recyclability, as well as extensive applications on the
back of mature industrial technologies, most electric bikes in the market
are still powered by lead-acid batteries. Driven by the continuous growth
of the PRC market for electric bikes, electric tricycles and special-purpose
vehicles and owing to the definite lifespan of lead-acid motive batteries
requiring replacements after exhaustion, the demand for lead-acid motive
batteries has maintained a stable growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DI

New National Standards and other policies optimising the
industrial mix

The amended "Safety Technical Specifications for Electric Bicycle” ({ &
B1TE % %2 BT 8 & ) (the "New National Standards”) of the PRC
officially came into effect on 15 April 2019. Regarded by the market as
"historically the most rigorous” standards for electric bikes, the New
National Standards have introduced generally more stringent safety
performance requirements for electric bikes, as full mandatory compliance
is now required, as opposed to the previous version calling for mandatory
compliance with selected clauses only. The New National Standards
impose strict nationwide regulations over the production specifications
and the riding of electric bikes, calling for the elimination of non-compliant
products and the generational upgrade of electric bikes, which is
favourable for the development of leading enterprises manufacturing lead-
acid batteries for electric bikes with premium quality and high specific
energy.

In addition, the “Technical Specifications for the Recycling of Waste Lead-
acid Rechargeable Batteries” (€ B #i B% & B tb [B] Yo 5 i R €6)), drafted
with the Group's contributions and officially announced by the State
Administration for Market Regulation and Standardization Administration
of the PRC, officially came into effect on 1 October 2019. The standards
require enterprises to establish a recycling system capable of “recycling
one battery for every battery sold”, with used batteries collected via a
network at the consumer-end by the manufacturer's own sales channel or
specialised recycling operators. Furthermore, the “Notice on the
Commencement of Dedicated Treatment of Hazardous Waste” (€ &8 7
[ 1& bz 5 W) B I8 B8 T 6Y 38 A)) issued by the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of the PRC in September 2019 stipulated that chemical
industrial parks, key units generating industrial hazardous waste and all
units engaged in operations involving hazardous waste across the country
shall be inspected by the end of 2019 for environmental risks to ensure the
elimination of any related hazards. The implementation of these new
standards will facilitate the development of the nation’s waste lead-acid
rechargeable battery recycling industry in a more regulated manner and
further advance environmental protection. It will also be conducive to
further industry consolidation and optimisation of the industry structure,
which will favour established leaders of the lead-acid battery industry.
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Network of Independent Distributors of the Group
N SE TP AV SRR

Total number of independent distributors in secondary market

RSB AR R AR

2019 _2 556 )
2018

2,558
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DI

BUSINESS REVIEW

Battery business sustaining stable development

As a leader in the business of lead-acid motive batteries, the Group has
been focusing on enhancing the quality and production technology of its
lead-acid motive battery products, with a view to reducing production
costs, increasing product competitiveness and ensuring stable business
development. Revenue from sales of lead-acid motive batteries for the Year
increased by approximately 1.1% to approximately RMB24,876 million,
accounting for approximately 91.5% of the Group's total revenue.

In addition, the Group is also engaged in the sales of lithium-ion batteries
products as warranted by market developments. The products are
manufactured using pouch-type technique which secured 159 patents and
specialised accreditations such as the “China Torch Program
Industrialisation Showcase Project Certificate” (B A Bt EIE 2L RED
T8 B % & ). The product delivers excellent performance and a high level of
safety-in-use and specific energy conducive to lightweight development
and prolonging battery life. Revenue from sales of the lithium-ion battery
products for the Year amounted to approximately RMB259 million. The
Group will continue to invest in the R&D of lithium-ion battery product
technology in an effort to manufacture lithium-ion batteries with higher
specific energy and internationally-advanced standards.

Cementing its competitive strengths in channels and brand
name

In line with a market-oriented approach, the Group’s production facilities
are strategically located in regions with greater demands for lead-acid
motive batteries, such as Shandong, Anhui, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Jiangxi,
Henan and Hebei provinces in the PRC, so that the Group could closely
track market developments while reducing storage and logistics costs to
maintain superior operational efficiency.

The Group has built a nationwide sales and distribution network in the PRC
with full coverage of both the primary and secondary markets. For the
primary market, the Group has established a major customer service
department to serve leading electric bike manufacturers. Regular visits to
the management of these manufacturers are arranged to provide
comprehensive sales service. The Group's major customers in the primary
market include Yadea and Evermaster. Moreover, the Group operates an
extensive distribution network spanning across all provinces in the country.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 2,556 independent distributors
serving the secondary market.
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The Group continued to practice a calibrated management over its
distributors based on a flat management and adopted the agency model
to reduce the intermediaries in sales channels and enhance loyalty of end
customers. These efforts were complemented by comprehensive after-
sales services and online anti-counterfeit enquiries to increase customer
satisfaction for the brand name of “CHILWEE". Moreover, the Group
retained renowned movie star Mr. Donnie Yen as its brand ambassador and
organized a film-viewing event for major distributors in December 2019
featuring the new movie of Mr. Yen as part of its effort to promote its
products and reinforce the brand image of “CHILWEE". In October 2019, the
Group has participated in a campaign entitled “Meticulous Effort in Quality
for Future Success” for publicizing advanced and quality brands launched
by China Central Television as the only corporate representative of the PRC
lead-acid battery industry and claimed the honour of achievements in
quality which further promoted the “CHILWEE" brand to the public.

Wide recognition as an industry leader

Thanks to its excellent technological innovation capability, brand influence
and market competitiveness, the Group's position as an industry leader has
enjoyed strong recognition by the PRC government and the industry.
During the Year, the Group retained its place among the “Top 500
Enterprises of China"(F? B & % 50058 ), “Top 500 Enterprises of China's
Manufacturing Industry” (47 B &43& 2 10 22 500 58) and “Top 500 Chinese
Private Owned Enterprises” (4 Bl R & 1B 3 500 58 ), while being honoured
with a spot among the “Fortune Top 500 Chinese Companies” ({&1 & ) 7P
50058 ). The Group also continued to rank among the “Top 100
Enterprises in China Light Industry” (F BI#8 T 22 H 58 %) and “Top 100
Science & Technology Enterprises in China Light Industry” (H B &8 T %%}
A &%), while topping the list of “Top 10 Enterprises of New Energy
Battery Industry in China Light Industries” (2 Bl &8 T 2 ¥ e R BT %
+58 1> %) for the seventh year in a row and re-capturing its place among
the “Global Top 500 New Energy Enterprises” (2 Bk RE R {b 2 50058).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Fresh driving force afforded by persistent effort in
technological innovation

With a global vision, the Group has been actively engaged in technological
collaborations with advanced enterprises and institutions in the PRC and
overseas to raise the bar on all fronts. The Group’s R&D expenses for the
Year amounted to approximately RMB798 million, equivalent to
approximately 2.9% of its total revenue. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group owned 2,183 patents and had submitted applications for 337
patents.

The Group has been actively recruiting world-class professionals to join its
leading R&D team, with a view to maintaining its leading position in
innovative R&D. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had more than ten
renowned domestic and foreign experts on the team, five of whom
were brought in via the “Program of One Thousand Talents” (F AETE). In
addition, the Group has been named as National Model Enterprise of
Technology Innovation (B 2R £ i 8] #7 7~ &2 7> 2% ) and National Model
Enterprise of Intellectual Property (B ZX A1 7% 2= # 7~ €3 1 %), having
established a number of platforms for technological innovation, such as
the nationally-recognised enterprise technology centre, nationally-
accredited laboratory, national environmental protection engineering
technology centre, provincial key research institute, academician work
station and post-doctoral research work station, among others. It has also
established R&D centres in the United States, Russia and Germany.

Persisting in green production in tandem with national
policies

The Group has persisted in green production and continued to increase its
investment in the transformation and upgrade of the green development
of its business. Through ongoing technological innovation, the Group has
engaged in the upgrade to energy-efficient and light weight new products
and introduced smart production equipment to enhance environmental
friendliness of its manufacturing processes. The Group has also helped the
National Environmental Protection Engineering Technology Centre as a
lead member to establish the China Battery Industry Green Recycling
Development Alliance (7 B & th 2 3¢ 4% & 18 IR % & B 8), and
organised the founding of the country’s first dedicated fund for the
prevention of and relief for battery pollution, in a bid to contribute to
environmental protection in the PRC.

During the Year, the Group was one of the few members of the battery
industry selected by MIIT for inclusion in the first list of “Model Enterprise of
Green Industrial Products Design” (T ¥ E R4k B4 5T R E3 1 2). As at
31 December 2019, the Group had 9 plants included in the green plant list
and 2 plants included in the green supply chain list, and 14 products
included in the green design product list. In terms of the total number of
exemplary projects for the development of national-grade green
manufacturing regimes, the Group is a leader in the industry.
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Future development strategy

With increasingly stringent government regulation, the Group is of the
view that the battery industry has become highly consolidated and
concentrated. As the industry landscape of the lead-acid battery sector has
basically taken shape, industry leaders will be benefitted in the long run. As
one of the industry leaders, the Group has adopted a strategy underpinned
by platform operation, technology and globalisation. The Group is also
actively promoting technological innovation, product innovation,
manufacturing innovation and management model innovation. Through
focusing on R&D achievement and commercialization of technology
application, smart battery products with longer life and fast-charging
features have been launched in succession which become pioneers in
various sectors and further solidify the competitiveness of the Group in the
industry.

In future, the Group will continue to focus on qualitative growth and
emphasise proprietary R&D and third-party cooperation as parallel drivers
while seeking enhancements in both quality and brand influence with the
aid of new technologies such as the fifth generation wireless technology
(5G) and artificial intelligence (Al) to enable it to maintain its strengths in
core technologies, innovative ability and its irreplaceable integration of the
full industry chain to maximise return of its shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue amounted to approximately RMB27,181,732,000 in
the Year, which has increased by approximately 0.9% over approximately
RMB26,948,237,000 in 2018. The increase in revenue was primarily
attributable to net effect of the followings: (1) increase in sales volume; (2)
drop in average selling price of lead-acid motive batteries caused by a
decrease in price of lead which is the main raw material.

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit amounted to approximately RMB3,393,273,000 in
the Year, representing an increase of approximately 4.9% over
approximately RMB3,235,268,000 in 2018. The gross profit margin in the
Year was approximately 12.5% (2018: approximately 12.0%). The Group
adopted a cost plus pricing mechanism. During the Year, price of lead,
which is the main raw material, has dropped in general. The increase in
gross margin was primarily because the Group was able to price the lead-
acid motive batteries at a higher margin.

Other income and other gains
The Group's other income and other gains amounted to approximately
RMB308,880,000 in the Year, representing an increase of approximately
12.6% from approximately RMB274,231,000 in 2018, which was mainly due
to an increase in government grants.

Distribution and selling expenses

The Group's distribution and selling expenses amounted to approximately
RMB828,010,000 in the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 9.8%
from approximately RMB917,817,000 in 2018, which was primarily
attributable to a decrease in after-sales service expenses and sales
commission in 2019. For the Year, the distribution and selling expenses as a
percentage of revenue were approximately 3.0% (2018: approximately
34%).

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses were approximately RMB632,801,000
in the Year, representing an increase of approximately 0.3% over
approximately RMB630,693,000 in 2018, which was in line with the Group’s
business expansion.
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R&D expenses

R&D expenses amounted to approximately RMB797,570,000 in the Year,
representing a decrease of approximately 9.9% from approximately
RMB884,914,000 in 2018, which was primarily attributable to a decrease in
R&D expenditure on lead-acid batteries and other new technology
products during the Year.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs decreased by approximately 10.7% from
approximately RMB336,478,000 in 2018 to approximately RMB300,642,000
in the Year. The decrease in finance costs was primarily due to a decrease
in interest expenses on bank borrowings and short-term note.

Profit before tax

For the above reasons, the Group’s profit before tax increased by
approximately 39.4% to approximately RMB805,486,000 in the Year (2018:
approximately RMB577,709,000).

Taxation

The Group's income tax expenses increased by approximately 49.3% to
approximately RMB298,831,000 in the Year (2018: approximately
RMB200,202,000). The effective tax rate was approximately 37.1% in the
Year (2018: approximately 34.7%). The increase in the effective tax rate was
mainly due to loss incurred by certain subsidiaries during the Year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

In the Year, profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB561,340,000, representing an increase of approximately
36.0%, over approximately RMB412,714,000 in 2018. The increase was
mainly due to cost reduction during the Year.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB130,904,000 (31 December 2018: net current assets of
approximately RMB584,347,000). Cash and bank balances were
approximately RMB1,958,428,000 (31 December 2018: approximately
RMB2,975,507,000). Net debts, including borrowings, corporate bonds,
lease liabilities, short-term note, medium-term note and deducting cash
and bank deposits, were approximately RMB2,579,920,000 (31 December
2018: approximately RMB2,381,047,000), which were mainly used to finance
the capital expenditure and daily working capital of the Group. They were
denominated in RMB, USD or HKD, of which approximately
RMB2,404,154,000 bore interest at fixed rates and approximately
RMB2,571,185,000 were repayable within one year. The Group adopts
centralised financing and treasury policies in order to ensure that the
Group's funding is utilised efficiently and it monitors its interest rate risks in
a conservative manner.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group's current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 1.01 (31 December 2018: 1.06) and gearing ratio (net debts/
total assets) was approximately 14.8% (31 December 2018: approximately
13.4%). The Group had sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitments and working capital requirements. The current cash
position enables the Group to explore potential investment and potential
business development opportunities to expand its domestic market share.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

As the Group's operations are mainly conducted in the PRC and the
majority of the sales and purchases are transacted in RMB, the Directors are
of the view that the Group’s operating cash flow and liquidity are not
subject to significant foreign exchange rate risks.

Pledge of assets

At the end of the Year, certain of the Group's assets were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. The aggregate carrying amount of
the assets of the Group pledged at the end of each of the financial years is
as follows:
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Land use rights/right-of-use assets T {ERRE E R E 181,318 336,094
Receivables at FVTOCI RN AR A 2 T U s 7O FE I IR 1,049,328 288,365
Other receivables H b e U s 55,962 45802
Restricted bank deposits ZRRFIRITIF R 633,339 1,159,844
Capital commitments BAREE
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—E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
% ARBFT
Contracted but not provided for: BBt TIIE B FTAME R -
— acquisition of property, plant and — BB - B REE
equipment 74,412 62,516
— acquisition of intangible asset — WEE A E 7,847 8212
— capital contribution to associates — A ENTEE 23,200 42,625
— capital contribution to a joint venture —MA—REELETE 22,000 -
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Contingent liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: Nil).

Human resources and employees’ remuneration

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 15,296 (31
December 2018: 16,353) staff members in the PRC and Hong Kong. During
the Year, the total cost of employees amounted to approximately
RMB1,529,377,000. The Group sought to further strengthen staff training by
offering focused training programmes and study tours to management
and professional technical personnel, and disseminating the latest
information of government policy on the lead-acid motive battery industry
to staff. The Group continued to strive for the enhancement of professional
standards and overall qualities of its staff. The Group also provided
competitive salary packages to its staff, encouraging them to be fully
dedicated in their work and to leverage their capabilities in serving its
customers.

Significant investment, material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

There were no significant investments held, no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year, nor
was there any plan authorized by the Board for other material investments
or additions of capital assets at the date of this report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES B E - HESERLO LT IR #%H

During the Year, the Company has repurchased a total of 3,785,000 shares ~ ZNEEE - 22 &) LAZ (B 10,909,870 7 7T A B A2 AT
on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of HKD10,909,870.  B#[a] & £ 3,785,000 %810 - BN EREZ2ER A
The highest price paid per share is HKD3.05, and the lowest price paid per ~ 3.05% 7T » B SR SEEBHRAE2738 7T « BB

share is HKD2.73. Details of the repurchase are as follows: BB
Number of
shares Highest price Lowest price
Date of repurchase repurchased paid per share  paid per share
BEmE [EXEE=1 [EXRE=1
FEE B [:gvik 2= BEEH® BRIKER
(HKD) (HKD)
(A7) (A7)
21 January 2019 —F-hF—H=+—H 200,000 2.95 2.95
22 January 2019 —E-hE-A=-+=A 1,073,000 2.97 2.87
23 January 2019 —E-NF—HA=+=H 403,000 2.86 2.80
24 January 2019 —E-AF-AZ+HA 522,000 2.92 2.79
25 January 2019 —E-NF—A=+HEA 802,000 2.83 2.73
28 January 2019 —E-NAF—A=Z+NHRH 100,000 2.82 2.79
29 January 2019 —F-NF—H=+NAH 200,000 2.94 2.90
30 January 2019 —E-NF—H="+H 200,000 3.03 2.94
31 January 2019 —E-NF—HA=+—H 250,000 3.05 3.03
1 February 2019 —ZT-NF=ZHA—H 35,000 3.05 3.03
3,785,000
As at the date of this report, all repurchased shares have been cancelled. RAREAER - FIAEERDE W -

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries  Bf = 3CPRIREEE SN - AR RIS HAE[ME 2 FIR
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed shares ~AFEMEEE - HELER AR GEM LMK
during the Year. 7o
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) in the
beginning of 2020, it has presented short-term challenges to the domestic
economy as well as the market environment and the Group has been
closely monitoring the pandemic and implementing contingency
measures to minimize the impacts of the pandemic on the business
operation of the Group. While the production plant of the Group has
resumed its production since mid February 2020 after the Chinese New
Year holidays, the Directors consider that there were only limited impact
on the operation of the Group, which mainly affected logistics
arrangements and resulted in a slower ramp up in production capacity
after the Chinese New Year holidays. The Group has already been operating
at full capacity since early March 2020, and shall continue to pay close
attention to the development of the disease and, if any, evaluate its impact
on the Group's financial position, operating results and other aspects. As at
the date of this report, the Group was not aware of any material adverse
effects on the financial statements as a result of such outbreak.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders. The Company has complied
with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Year, except
for the deviations as stated below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is
currently both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its
operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that non-
executive directors should attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders, and code provision
E.1.2 of the CG Code provides that the chairman of the Board should attend
the annual general meeting. Mr. Zhou Mingming, the chairman of the
Board and executive Director, and Ms. Fang Jianjun, the non-executive
Director, were unable to attend the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 12 June 2019 due to other business commitments.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions of
the Directors, senior management and relevant employees (who, because
of their office in the Company, are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information) of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all of them have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”). Its primary duties include, among other things, the review
and supervision of the Group's financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control system. The Audit Committee comprises
all four independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr.
Lee Conway Kong Wai (“Mr. Lee"), Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao
and Mr. Ng Chi Kit. Mr. Lee is the chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Lee
has professional qualification and experience in accounting and financial
matters.

The Audit Committee has met and discussed with the external auditors of
the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the audited
results of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee considered that the
consolidated results of the Group for the Year are in compliance with the
relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and that appropriate
disclosures have been duly made in accordance with Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules in this report.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company (the “Register of Members”) will
be closed from 5 June 2020 to 10 June 2020 (both days inclusive), for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend the annual
general meeting, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending the annual
general meeting, the shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, No.183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration by
no later than 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2020.
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The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO0.084 per share for shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members on 18 June 2020. The Register of Members will be closed from
16 June 2020 to 18 June 2020, both days inclusive, and the proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid on or around 16 July 2020. The payment of
dividends shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company expected to be held by 10 June 2020. In
order to be qualified for the proposed final dividend, shareholders should
deliver share certificates together with transfer documents to the
Company'’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m.on 15 June 2020.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Mingming (B B3BA), aged 51, is the founder of the Group, the
chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the chief executive officer
of the Group. Mr. Zhou is mainly responsible for the Group's overall strategy
planning and investment decisions. Mr. Zhou received a bachelor's degree
in chemistry from Hangzhou Normal University (71 1 B &8 £ B%) in July
1990, and has over 20 years experience in the lead-acid battery industry.
Mr. Zhou is the younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin, and the son of Mr.
Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. Also, Mr.
Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

Mr. Zhou Longrui (EFE X ), aged 81, is an executive Director of the Group.
He is mainly responsible for the overall supervision of the technical aspects of
our production process. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in January 1998. Mr.
Zhou has rich experience in the lead-acid battery industry gained at the
Group and through previous employment. Early in 1994 and since then, Mr.
Zhou published several professional articles in the field of lead-acid batteries
on various magazines such as Batteries ((Z& &), International Power
Information ({ BB} & JR #1155 )) and Power Technologies ({ TR 1M1 ), etc.
Mr. Zhou was appointed the vice-chairman of the First Session of Lead-acid
Battery Committee (5 — [E A EEMWE X ZE 2RI EFZ E) by
China Electrotechnics Technology Academy (FF B & T ¥ i1 £ €)in
August 2008 and a member of National Lead-acid Battery Standardization
Technology Committee (2Bl #5 B B MR %L B ilTZ B ) in July 2007.
He is the father of Mr. Zhou Mingming and Mr. Yang Xinxin and the spouse
of Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. He is also a father-in-law of
Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

Ms. Yang Yunfei (3 Z ), aged 77, is an executive Director of the Group.
She is mainly responsible for the management of the Group’s procurement
and building. She has been with the Group since January 1998. Ms. Yang has
worked in several battery manufacturing factories, responsible for
manufacturing and overall operation of the factories and worked for the
establishment preparation of the Group. Ms. Yang has accumulated rich
experience in the lead-acid battery industry gained at the Group and
through previous employment. Ms. Yang Yunfei is the mother of Mr. Zhou
Mingming and Mr. Yang Xinxin and the spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui, all being
executive Directors. She is also a mother-in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-
executive Director.
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Mr. Yang Xinxin (37 #7), aged 53, is an executive Director of the Group.
He is mainly responsible for assisting Mr. Zhou Mingming in the discharge
of Mr. Zhou's duties in the overall management of the Group. Mr. Yang
joined the Group in August 2011. He has vast experience in the
management of sizeable organisations. Immediately prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Yang was the secretary of the party committee (EZ Z52) and
deputy head (&IFt &) of Zhejiang Design Institute of Water Conservancy
and Hydroelectric Power (AT I /K F7K B #)813% 5B ), and had served
in such positions since August 2006. Mr. Yang was the deputy head (&l 5%
%) of the People’s Government of Anji County, Zhejiang Province GHT /T4
2 E %% AR BURT) between June 2001 and August 2003. Mr. Yang was the
deputy director of Water Resources Department of Zhejiang Province (J#f
I & JK F| EE) between August 2003 and August 2006. Mr. Yang is a
professor-level senior engineer (F A = A& TF2AM). Mr. Yang obtained a
bachelor degree from Anhui University of Science & Technology (% 32
T K&, formerly known as Huainan Mining Institute (FEFIIBZ£E2BT), in
July 1988 and a master's degree from Zhejiang University (1 )T A £) in
March 1991. Mr. Yang is an elder brother of Mr. Zhou Mingming, the son of
Mr. Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. He is
also a brother-in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Fang Jianjun (52 ), aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Group on 17 November 2013. Ms. Fang received a bachelor’s
degree in chemistry from Hangzhou Normal University (F75/H Al &8 A £2) in
July 1990. From August 1990 to October 1998, Ms. Fang was a teacher at
Hongxi Middle School (XT& A1 £2) in Zhejiang Province, the PRC. Ms. Fang is
the spouse of Mr. Zhou Mingming, an executive Director, the chairman of
the Board, and the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company. She is also a daughter-in-law of Mr. Zhou Longrui and
Ms. Yang Yunfei, a sister-in-law of Mr. Yang Xinxin, all being executive
Directors.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jigiang CE#58), aged 80, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Group. Mr. Wang has more than 50 years of experience in the field
of electrochemistry. Before he retired in December 2008, Mr. Wang has been
working in the 18th Research Institute, China Electronics Technology Group
Corporation (FREFEHTEBATIE T/ \BFTH) since October 1962 as a
vice-chief engineer. In addition, Mr. Wang received various awards of national
and provincial levels for his achievements on development of new battery
technology, such as the first class award on science and technology
advancement (BHEFfiTHE 2F—254%) from the former Ministry of Electronics
Industry (presently known as MIIT) on his research on lithium rechargeable
battery technology in October 1999. In view of his contribution, Mr. Wang was
awarded a “Celebrating the 70th Anniversary of the Founding of the People’s
Republic of China” commemorative medal in 2019. Mr. Wang received a
bachelor's degree in electrochemistry from Fudan University in 1962, and went
to Stanford University in the United States as a visiting scholar on government
sponsorship from 1982 to 1985. After returning to the PRC, he received the title of
professor and was mainly in charge of new battery technology development.
After his retirement, Mr. Wang has continued to assist China Industrial Association
of Power Sources (R B{L 2 EYIEE FITEH D) to organise various
international and domestic technology exchange activities, including China
International Battery Fair (4 R IEE S R AT ®) which is held
biennially.

Prof. Ouyang Minggao (BXf Bi ), aged 61, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group. Prof. Ouyang graduated from the
Technical University of Denmark with a doctorate degree in Engineering in
1993. He worked at Tsinghua University (& AKE2) since 1994, and is
currently a Ministry of Education Scholar Chang Jiang Special Professor (24
BRI BERIEHUR). Prof. Ouyang is also a Standing Member of the
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FEIARBUAHEEHEHEZEE S EFZE B). Prof. Ouyang
is an independent non-executive director of Baic Bluepark New Energy
Technology Co, Ltd. (Stock Code: 600733) (Ab/A 8 AL REHI R E
fR 2 7)), a company listed on the Main Board of Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Prof. Ouyang also served as independent non-executive Director of
Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited (Stock Code: 3808) and Zhuzhou CRRC Times
Electric Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 3898), both being companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from July 2007 to December 2015 and
from August 2017 to March 2018, respectively, Shanghai Diesel Engine
Company Limited (Stock Code: 600841) (/845 BEA KB BRAR), a
company listed on the Main Board of Shanghai Stock Exchange, from May
2012 to May 2015, and Chongging Changan Automobile Company Limited
(Stock Code: 000625) (EE KL /SERD AR /AT]), a company listed on
the Main Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange from May 2012 to March
2016.
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Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (2= # ), aged 65, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group. Mr. Lee received a bachelor's degree in
arts from the Kingston University (formerly known as the Kingston
Polytechnic) in London in July 1980 and obtained his postgraduate
diploma in business from the Curtin University of Technology in Australia in
February 1988. Mr. Lee served as a partner of Ernst & Young for 29 years
until 2009 and had held key leadership positions in the development of
such firm in the PRC. Mr. Lee is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Chartered Accountants, Australia
and New Zealand, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Macau Society
of Registered Accountants. Mr. Lee currently also serves as an independent
non-executive director of West China Cement Limited (Stock Code: 2233),
China Modern Dairy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1117), GOME Retail
Holdings Limited (formerly known as GOME Electrical Appliances Holdings
Limited) (Stock Code: 493), NVC International Holdings Limited (formerly
known as NVC Lighting Holding Limited) (Stock Code: 2222), Yashili
International Holdings Ltd (Stock Code: 1230), GCL New Energy Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 451), China Rundong Auto Group Limited (formerly
known as China Greenland Rundong Auto Group Limited) (Stock Code:
1365), WH Group Limited (Stock Code: 288) and Guotai Junan Securities
Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 2611), all being companies listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, since July 2010, October 2010, March 2011, March
2011, November 2012, November 2013, May 2014, July 2014, August 2014
and April 2017, respectively. Mr. Lee also served as an independent non-
executive director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 966), China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1237), CITIC Securities Company Limited
(Stock Code: 6030) and Tibet Water Resources Ltd. (formerly known as Tibet
5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd.) (Stock Code: 1115), all being
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from October
2009 to August 2013, from July 2014 to September 2015, from November
2011 to May 2016 and from March 2011 to February 2020 respectively, and
Sino Vanadium Inc. (Stock Code: SVX), a company listed on the TSX Venture
Exchange in Toronto, Canada, from October 2009 to December 2011. Mr.
Lee was for 10 years a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Hunan Province in the PRC.
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Mr. Ng Chi Kit (R E#E), aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Group on 2 December 2010 and was re-designated as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 February 2017. Prior to that, Mr. Ng was the
Group's chief financial officer and company secretary. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor’s
degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is an
Associate Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a Fellow Member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Ng worked in the Assurance and Advisory Business
Service Department of Ernst & Young. Mr. Ng has over 18 years of experience
in accounting and auditing. Mr. Ng is also currently an independent non-
executive director of Great Wall Motor Company Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2333) and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601633).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Jingning (BR#&E 28 ), aged 46, is the investment director and head
of the new energy division. Mr. Chen graduated from the University of
Science and Technology of China (91 B B2 517 K22 ) with a bachelor's
degree in Industrial Automation in 1995 and obtained a Master of Business
Administration from University of Science and Technology of China in
2005. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2003 as assistant to chairman and has
since 2011 held his current position as the investment director.
Prof. Chen Tixian (FR#815), aged 81, is the head of the research and
development department and is responsible for leading the research
activities of the Group. Prof. Chen graduated with a bachelor's degree in
chemistry and physics from Xiamen University (BF9AE2) in 1961. Prof.
Chen has over 30 years of experience in the lead-acid battery industry. Prof.
Chen lectured in the chemistry department of Xiamen University between
1961 and 1989 when he retired as a professor. Prof. Chen joined the Group in
April 2004 and has since held his current position as the head of the research
department of the Group.
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Mr. Pan Xuexiang (B2 %£), aged 45, is the marketing director and is
responsible for, among others, marketing planning, brands management
and products planning. Mr. Pan graduated with a bachelor's degree in
economic management from Hefei University of Technology in Anhui in
June 1997. Mr. Pan joined the Group in 2009 and has held several positions
including deputy director of sales channel department and marketing
director.

Mr. Leung Wai Yip (12#), aged 44, was appointed as the Group's chief
financial officer and company secretary (the “Company Secretary”), on 2
December 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Leung was the financial
controller and the company secretary of Tiangong International Company
Limited (X T B4 B8 & PR 2 A]) (Stock Code: 826), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from June 2007 to November 2010. Prior to
such appointment, Mr. Leung was an internal auditor of the Swire Group and
was previously a manager with the assurance and advisory business services
department of Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Leung
graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
Alberta in Canada in 1998 and obtained a Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2010. He
is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and an
Associate Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Leung currently serves as an independent non-executive director of HPC
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1742), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, since April 2018. He also served as an independent non-
executive director of Miko International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1247), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from December
2013 to February 2016.
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FFEBIEWMS

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. The Company acknowledges the important role of the Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s business,
and ensuring transparency and accountability of the Company’s
operations. The Board sets appropriate policies and implements corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the
Group's business.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders. The Company has complied
with all code provisions of the CG Code of the Listing Rules throughout the
Year, except for the deviations as stated below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is
currently both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its
operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that non-
executive directors should attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders, and code provision
E.1.2 of the CG Code provides that the chairman of the Board should attend
the annual general meeting. Mr. Zhou Mingming, the chairman of the
Board and executive Director, and Ms. Fang Jianjun, the non-executive
Director, were unable to attend the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 12 June 2019 due to other business commitments.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and management of
the Company and oversees the Group's business, strategic decision and
performances in attaining the objective of ensuring effective functioning
and growth of the Group and enhancing value to investors. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing business
strategies and management of the daily operations of the Group's business
to the management. The Board exercises a number of powers which
include:

formulating long-term strategy

approving public announcements

approving financial statements, including interim and annual results
approving major acquisitions, disposal and capital projects
authorising significant changes to the capital structure and material
borrowings

any issue or buy-back of equity securities under the relevant general
mandates
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making recommendations and/or declaration of dividend and
reviewing dividend policy

approving appointments to the Board

setting the Group remuneration policy

reviewing operational and financial performance

reviewing the effectiveness of internal control and risk management

The Board meets at least 4 times a year and additional meetings are held
when required to discuss significant events and issues. The Company
Secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing agenda for Board
meetings. Board meetings are held with at least 14 days’ advance notice,
and all Directors would be served with an agenda with supporting papers
at least 3 days before the Board meetings, so as to ensure that there is
timely access to relevant information. The Group ensures that all the Board
members are informed of the Group's latest developments and thereby
assists them in the discharge of their duties. The Directors may take
independent professional advice as and when appropriate, at the
Company's expenses. Minutes of the Board and Board committees are
taken by the Company Secretary. Such minutes of the Board and the Board
committees, together with supporting papers, are made available for
inspection by any Director following reasonable notice. Draft and final
versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment and records.

The Company has arranged directors and officers liability and company
reimbursement insurances for the Directors and senior management of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. It includes the review and monitor of
the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and
the senior management of the Group; the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; the
development, review and monitoring of the code of conduct of the
Company’s employees and Directors; and review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors (Mr. Zhou
Mingming, Mr. Zhou Longrui, Ms. Yang Yunfei and Mr. Yang Xinxin), one
non-executive Director (Ms. Fang Jianjun) and four independent non-
executive Directors (Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao, Mr. Lee
Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Ng Chi Kit who was re-designated from a non-
executive Director to an independent non-executive Director on 10
February 2017). Among the executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Mingming is the
younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin. They are both sons of Mr. Zhou
Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, and Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms.
Yang Yunfei. Also, Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Mingming.
Biographical details of the Directors of the Group as at the date of this
annual report are set out on pages 31 to 36 of this annual report.
Independent non-executive Directors account for more than one-third of
the members of the Board. The independent non-executive Directors
come either from the battery industry or have related professional
background, bringing valuable expertise and experience that promotes the
best interests of the Group and its shareholders. The role of the
independent non-executive Directors is to provide independent and
objective opinions to the Board for its consideration.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the Year, the Board has held a total of four Board meetings for the
main purposes of formulating business development and prospects of the
Group, reviewing and considering the financial and operating
performance.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings are set out below:
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Attendance/Number of
Board Meetings

Name of Directors EEgE HERY ESEERNRHE
Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Zhou Mingming JEJBR AR 5 A 4/4
Mr. Zhou Longrui AR m T & 4/4
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERL LT 4/4
Mr. Yang Xinxin SRR 4/4
Non-executive Director FHITES

Ms. Fang Jianjun FREELL 2/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Wang Jigiang AR A 4/4
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 5 IR S R 4/4
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FHRETE 4/4
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REBERAE 4/4
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is
currently both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its
operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and continues to consider each of them to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time either
by shareholders’ resolutions in general meetings or by resolutions of the
Board. New Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
during the Year are required to retire at the first annual general meeting
following their appointments and new Directors appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy during the Year are required to retire at the first
general meeting following their appointments, and in both cases, the
acting Directors will be eligible for re-election at such general meeting. All
Directors are required to retire by rotation at least once every 3 years at the
AGM, subject to re-election by the shareholders. All non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are appointed
for a term of not more than 3 years.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Directors have been informed of the
requirement under code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding
continuous professional development. The Company updates the Directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by the Directors during the Year is as follows:
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Type of Continuous
Professional Development

Programmes
Name of Directors = BESERRTEER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming [ERAER S & A B
Mr. Zhou Longrui [EReiR & A B
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERLZ L A B
Mr. Yang Xinxin IR A A B
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Fang Jianjun FTREELL A B
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Wang Jigiang A Fiibitas A B
Prof. Ouyang Minggao BN R S 2 A B
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai THRETE A B
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REBRE A B
Notes: Hiat -
A: attending training sessions and/or seminars A IR R AT E
B: reviewing materials and updates relating to the latest development of the Listing Rules and B: YERI B BT i A AR A i E B AT S AT R AR

other applicable regulatory requirements

HEER
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the remuneration committee (the "Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) for
overseeing the particular aspects of the affairs of the Company. All the
Board committees have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website “www.chaowei.com.hk”
and the website of the Stock Exchange and are available to the
shareholders upon request. All the Board committees would report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All the Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai, Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof.
Ouyang Minggao and Mr. Ng Chi Kit. Mr. Lee is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. He has professional qualification and experience in accounting
and financial matters.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is mainly responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, reviewing the financial information of the Company and
overseeing the relationship with external auditors. These include reviewing
and recommending for the Board's approval of the interim and the annual
financial statements; reviewing the external auditors’ independence,
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process; and reviewing and
recommending to the Board for approval of the external auditors’
remuneration and reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management systems of the Group.
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During the Year, the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out as follows:

REE BEFEHEEZZEGRNEREIIN
T

Attendance/Number of

Audit Committee Meetings

Name of Directors =Y e HERY, BEREESY
BEXE

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai BB EE 2/2
Mr. Wang Jigiang USRS A 2/2
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 55 B e 2 2/2
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGRE 2/2

The meetings were held together with the external auditors of the
Company and the chief financial officer of the Company, and discussed
auditing, internal control, risk management and financial reporting matters
which included the review of the interim and annual financial statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Mr. Zhou Mingming, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang Jigiang. Mr. Lee is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The principal responsibilities of
the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure and the
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, in which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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During the Year, the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group were reviewed and discussed at the meeting of
the Remuneration Committee. The Directors’ attendance of the meetings
of the Remuneration Committee is set out as follows:

AEE FHREENE LEAMTRAKEE
$&ﬁ?&afi/\ﬁﬂ’]$ﬁ@ﬂ%% EEhREFME

BEggdnBREsmT

Attendance/Number of

Remuneration Committee

Meeting

Name of Directors EEHR HERY, FHEES
=N

Mr. Zhou Mingming EFREA % A& /1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai THEERE /1
Mr. Wang Jigiang E SR A 1

Details of the remuneration of each Director of the Company for the Year
are set out in note 12 to the financial statements contained in this annual
report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhou Mingming, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang Jigiang. Mr. Zhou is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the corporate
strategy. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for the Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The purpose of the Board Diversity Policy is to set out the basic
principles to be followed to ensure that the Board has appropriate balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the selection of the Board
candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives with
reference to the Company’s business model and specific needs, including
but not limited to gender, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience, which are
the measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board and shall
give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy in selection of
the Board candidates. Board nomination and appointments will continue
to be made on merit basis based on its business needs from time to time
while taking into account diversity.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy, developing and reviewing measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy and monitoring the progress on
achieving these measurable objectives. The review of the Board Diversity
Policy and the measurable objectives shall be carried out at least annually
to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has considered the Board
Diversity Policy and whether the Board has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. After due consideration, the Nomination Committee has
concluded that based on the Company'’s existing business model and
specific needs, the current composition of the Board satisfies the Board
Diversity Policy for the Year.

Board nomination policy (the “Board Nomination Policy”) is in place to
ensure that all nominations of Board members are fair and transparent in
order to facilitate the constitution of the Board with a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives that is appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.
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Nomination procedures:
The nomination procedures to select and recommend Board candidates

could be summarised as follows:

46

The Nomination Committee shall consider suitability of an individual
pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Board Nomination Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy, and the independence of an individual for the
position of independent non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee shall make recommendation to the
Board's for consideration.

The Board shall consider the individual recommended by the
Nomination Committee pursuant to the Listing Rules, the CG Code,
the Board Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

For casual vacancy and addition of new Directors, the Board shall
confirm the appointment of the individual and the new Director
shall be subjected to re-election by shareholders of the Company at
the next annual general meeting in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company.

For re-appointment of retiring Directors, the Board shall, based on
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, recommend
the retiring directors to stand for re-election at the annual general
meeting. The appointment of retiring Directors shall be subjected to
the approval of shareholder at the annual general meeting.

The Board reserves the right to final decide on the matters in relation
to the selection and appointment of Directors.
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Selection criteria: FUBGA
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination Ri{HEHREFERABESHBLE EZE8€#(F
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate: BTIHEARERSZE

Reputation for integrity;

Accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company;

Commitment in respect of available time;

Merit and potential contributions that such candidate could bring to
the Board with reference to the Board Diversity Policy (as adopted
and amended by the Board from time to time), including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, independence, skills, knowledge
and length of service;

In case of a candidate for an independent non-executive Director of
the Company, to assess: (i) the independence of such candidate with
reference to, among other things, the independence criteria as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and (ii) the guidance and
requirements relating to independent non-executive directors as set
out in Code Provision A.5.5 of the CG Code and in the “Guidance for
Boards and Directors” published by The Stock Exchange; and

Board succession planning considerations and the long-term needs
of the Company.
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The Nomination Committee has the discretion to consider any other 1ERZE @A MIEHIZR TR RDEERST
factors and matters and nominate any person, as it considers appropriate,  BIFJIES| RIRE @ ZEEAMEMAEZE RSB EI IR
subject to the guidance and requirements of the Listing Rules and the CG ~ ZHRABEE M AL -

Code.
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During the Year, the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the
Nomination Committee is set out as follows:

REE BFRHERELZEGSENBEAHIIN
T

Attendance/Number of
Nomination Committee

Meeting
Name of Directors EENSR ERE REEES
SRR
Mr. Zhou Mingming [EIBABA 5 A& 1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FBEEE /1
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR E /1

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the Year, which were prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of the
Company on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set
out in the independent auditor's report on pages 77 to 82.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Wai Yip, the Company Secretary, reports to the chairman of the
Board. The details of his biography is set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. Mr. Leung also
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training during the Year .

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its overall responsibility for the Group'’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness in order to safeguard the interest of the Group and the
shareholders, and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems on an ongoing basis to ensure that
the systems in place are adequate.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are featured
with a defined management structure with limits of authority and well-
rounded policies and procedures, and are designed to facilitate effective
and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to identify and manage
potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the Group. Such systems are
designed to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s systems of risk management and internal
control covering all material controls, including financial, operation,
compliance and internal controls as well as risk management functions. In
addition, the Audit Committee will review and evaluate the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group at least once a
year to ensure that no material internal control loophole exists.

The Group has an internal audit department (the “Internal Audit
Department”), which is responsible for the internal audit of the Group,
independent assessment of risks, and internal control procedures and
systems, and reports its findings, with recommendations, to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department assesses the risks to which the
Group is exposed, and formulates an audit plan on that basis annually, so
as to ensure that the internal audit covers all areas of high risks. The annual
audit plan will be submitted to the Audit Committee for approval. The
scope of audit review is determined based on the risk assessment results and
special reviews will be conducted on matters which are of concern to the
management or the Audit Committee. During the Year, no major issues but
areas for improvement have been identified. All of the recommendations
from the Internal Audit Department will be properly followed up to ensure
that they are implemented within a reasonable period of time.

The Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to be adequate and effective for the Year. The Board
and the Audit Committee also considered that the key areas of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of our accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting staff, and their training programs and budget, are
reasonably implemented and the Group has fully complied with provisions
of the CG Code regarding risk management and internal control systems in
general for the Year.

The Group strictly follows the requirements of the SFO and the Listing
Rules and ensures that inside information is disclosed to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable. Before inside information is fully disclosed to the
public, such information is kept strictly confidential. The Group has further
enhanced the procedures with the establishment of a continuous
disclosure policy and provided with relevant training to all relevant staff of
the Group. The Board considered that the procedures and measures in
relation to the handling and dissemination of the inside information to be
effective and adequate.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group's external auditors are Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified
Public Accountants. In order to maintain their independence, objectivity
and effectiveness in performing the audit services, the audit committee
pre-approved all audit services and discussed with Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants the nature and scope of the audit
services.

During the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants in respect of audit services was
RMB2,400,000. The fee paid or payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
Certified Public Accountants for non-audit services, namely review of
unaudited interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2019, was RMB850,000.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ dealings in the Company's securities (the “Own Code”) on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Each Director has been
given a copy of the Own Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, each of them has confirmed that they have complied with the
Own Code and the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company and/or its securities. No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
relevant employees was noted by the Company during the Year. The
Company will notify the Directors and relevant employees of any restricted
period for dealings in the Company’s securities in advance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board and the senior management recognise the importance of
communication with the shareholders and accountability to shareholders.
Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational and financial
performance information to the shareholders. The senior management also
maintains close communication with investors, analysts and the media by
other channels including roadshows, briefings and individual meetings.
The Group has set up its own website “www.chaowei.com.hk”, which is
updated on a regular basis, as a means to provide updated information on
the Company to investors.
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GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s AGM provides a useful platform for direct communication
between the Board and the shareholders. Separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2019 AGM was held on 12 June 2019. The attendance record of the
Directors at the 2019 AGM is set out below:

BRERXE
ARANBRBFAGREZTSERARRER
RET—EERNYE  ARAFKRERRAE L
PEHEE L TRANEERE2BERESR

—E-NEFERRABFRECR _ZE-NFARA
TZERT -BEBER_T-NFERRBFAE
HY R RCERE DI T

Attendance/Number of
General Meeting
Name of Directors =Y o HERE
BRAERE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming [EIRRRA 5 A& 0n
Mr. Zhou Longrui BREmEAE Il
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERZ+ /1
Mr. Yang Xinxin BT 0/1
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Fang Jianjun FEELL 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAKHTES
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR S /1
Prof. Ouyang Minggao BN 5 IR S R /1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai BB EE 1
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGEE /1

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that non-executive directors
should attend general meetings to gain and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders, and code provision E.1.2 of the
CG Code provides that the chairman of the Board should attend the annual
general meeting. Mr. Zhou Mingming, the chairman of the Board and
executive Director, and Ms. Fang Jianjun, the non-executive Director, were
unable to attend the Company’s annual general meeting held on 12 June
2019 due to other business commitments.

The Company's external auditors also attended the 2019 AGM.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the shareholders of the Company to allow the shareholders to share the
Company's profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth. The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is
subject to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final
dividend will be subject to the approval of the shareholders. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia,
retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each of
the members of the Group; the Group's liquidity position; the Group’s
expected working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans; any restrictions on payment of dividends that
may be imposed by the Group'’s lenders; and any other factors that the
Board deems appropriate.

The Company'’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to the requirements
of the Listing Rules and all relevant applicable laws, rules and regulations in
the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its sole
and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid
in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirement under Paragraph O of the CG Code:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition
by shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") to be called by the Board. The
written requisition must specify the business to be transacted on the
meeting, which shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at Unit 1308A, 13/F, Lippo Sun Plaza, 28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the Board
fails to proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholder(s) concerned may
themselves convene an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
shareholder(s) making the requisition as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed by the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are

as follows:

Address: Unit 1308A, 13/F, Lippo Sun Plaza, 28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: ir@chaowei.com.hk

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)" enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant Board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to respond to the shareholder(s)’ questions.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward proposals at
general meetings of the Company shall submit such proposals to the
Board in writing for the Board's consideration not less than 7 days prior to
the date of a general meeting through the Company Secretary of the
Company whose contact details are set out in the paragraph “Procedures
for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board” above.,

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There has been no change in the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company during the Year.
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The Board is pleased to submit this annual report together with the
consolidated financial statements for the Year which have been audited by
the Company’s auditors Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants and reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and sales of
lead-acid motive batteries and other related products. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 54 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
For the business review of the Group for the Year, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Business Review” in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
An indication of the future development in the Group’s business is shown
on page 22 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the Year and the state of the Company’s and the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2019 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 83 to 231.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 83.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK$0.084 per share for
the financial year ended 31 December 2019, which shall be subject to
approval of the shareholders at the AGM of the Company to be held on 10
June 2020. The proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or
around 16 July 2020.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Please refer to notes 4, 44 and 45 of the consolidated financial statements
for risks and uncertainties.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately RMB5,211,000.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2019, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Law (Cap. 22) (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB943,885,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Mingming

Mr. Zhou Longrui

Ms. Yang Yunfei

Mr. Yang Xinxin

Non-executive Director
Ms. Fang Jianjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Jigiang

Prof. Ouyang Minggao

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai

Mr. Ng Chi Kit

The Directors will retire by rotation in accordance with the requirement of
the articles of association of the Company and the Listing Rules. The non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for periods of 3 years.

A confirmation of independence has been received from each of Mr. Wang
Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao, Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Ng Chi
Kit and the Company considers each of them as independent pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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EESRE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Article 164 of the Company’s articles of association provides that the
Directors, secretary and other officers and every auditor for the time being
of the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being
acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company and everyone of
them, and everyone of their heirs, executors and administrators, shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts; and none of them shall
be answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of the other or
others of them or for joining in any receipts for the sake of conformity, or
for any bankers or other persons with whom any moneys or effects
belonging to the Company shall or may be lodged or deposited for safe
custody, or for insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of or belonging to the Company shall be placed out on or
invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or damage which may happen in
the execution of their respective offices or trusts, or in relation thereto;
PROVIDED THAT this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors and the Company’s
chief executive in the shares (the “Shares”) or debentures of the Company
or associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO,
which will have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/
or short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or which will be
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are set
out below:

BEFFNRERX
ARRNEZBERARAE 164 FRTE - NARER
EER WENREMSBABRERREEDN AR
ERMARREREHTEZBFRARZFEA (A
BIARBRZEALREGREEA  EBHIT
ARBEEBEERAN  ARRZFALTHEMZEFA
T ZFEALTZERMEAAN  EBAITASEE
EEAEHS ARG R EAATERE SLRER
BERREMEL  BEZEREATMERMABRER
XZBE - BA - WE - BR - BEMRAX
AR B 2 BERNBESREEL 7] EERRH
WREFBE - ERZFATHHEEREMAL
2R 58 RRIBLMEE  THARN
ERENBRZ2HREMFBAREARAMNETFX
Tr AMERFRS T EFRE B g 2 E A RRTT
FHEHM AL ABA R FRE AR R EAR B AT RIE
SPEZERTRDEATRHAZFIALTHTE
BB REAREREAREREE TR
B TEEHABEMASE  EABERIS
PEREREMZEALTORFRATEHREBZ
EHEE -

EERKRG HEROKRES 2B

RZZB-NFF+_A=1+—8 EZRARAZE
RITBABRARRIHAEBOAE (E& R E5 LB
BGREIEXVER) Bt (T D EFHF - BA
RIBFEH REEGRBIE XVEBE 7 R 8 BH/AE A
NE MR P s (BRERIEE S KA BRI £
MREREEIRRERNOER N, FAR) - &
RIEFE 5 K EE G DI5E 352 (RRE LN ZIGPT LS
O i aR - SRR B AR BIMT 8+ SR 2 <7
QARG ARNR KB Pt - #HIAT
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Long positions in the Shares RIRGHIF R
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
in the Company/
Associated
Corporations
Number of oY NN
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares LB R
EEnE B HntE RHEE BHABEDL
Mr. Zhou MingmingM@®® Interest in controlled corporations, 416,084,500 37.68%
("Mr. Zhou") interest in spouse and beneficial owner
JEIRR AR % A e R EEERD  EBERREREAA
(TA%XAED
Ms. Fang Jianjun® Interest in a controlled corporation, 416,084,500 37.68%
HEEr L interest in spouse and beneficial owner
RErEER  REERERERERA
Mr. Zhou Longrui® Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,362,500 6.37%
AREmEE interest in spouse and beneficial owner
RErEER  KEEELRERERA
Ms. Yang Yunfei®” Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,362,500 6.37%
BERLZLT? interest in spouse and beneficial owner
RiEEELD  REERRERERA
Mr. Yang Xinxin® Interest in a controlled corporation 21,000,000 1.90%
SRR E© and beneficial owner
RIEEERRREREAA
Mr. Wang Jigiang® Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%
TR TEEO EnEBA
Prof. Ouyang Minggao‘'? Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%
L5 R m 2R 10 EHEAA
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai‘'" Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%
FEEEED EnEBA
Mr. Ng Chi Kit? Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%

R GSEAE
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Notes:

(1)

@)

3)

4

5)

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State Investments Limited
(“Great State”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 242,145,000 Shares held by
Great State.

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride (PTC) Limited (“Jolly Pride”)
and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 58,942,500 Shares held by Jolly Pride. In
addition, pursuant to a trust deed dated 14 June 2010 and deeds of exclusion of beneficiaries
dated 30 May 2014 and 13 October 2014, entered into between Mr. Zhou and Jolly Pride in
favour of 49 individuals who are employees of the Group (collectively, the “Jolly Pride Trust
Deed"), the economic interest of all the Shares which it holds from time to time shall belong to
the said 49 employees. However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all other
rights as shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights and right to participate in
shareholders meetings of the Company) shall not be exercisable by the said 49 employees and
shall be exercised by Jolly Pride exclusively. As Mr. Zhou is the sole director of Jolly Pride, Mr.
Zhou also controls the exercise of the shareholders rights (other than economic interest) of all
the Shares held by Jolly Pride by virtue of the terms of the Jolly Pride Trust Deed.

Mr. Zhou directly holds 1,360,000 Shares. Mr. Zhou is also deemed to be interested in 500,000
Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of
the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019,

respectively.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested
in 111,637,000 Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested by reason of her being the sole
shareholder of Bai Xiang Limited (“Bai Xiang”) and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and
150,000 Shares which may be issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to
heron 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai Xiang and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 111,637,000 Shares held by Bai Xiang. Ms. Fang Jianjun is also
deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be
issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse
of Mr. Zhou, pursuant to the SFO, she is deemed to be interested in the 1,360,000 Shares
directly held by Mr. Zhou, and in the 242,145,000 Shares and 58,942,500 Shares which Mr.
Zhou is interested by reason of his being the sole shareholder of Great State and Jolly Pride
and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the
exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March
20189, respectively.
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(12)
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5 4 &5

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High Joy Investments
Limited ("High Joy") and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 32,137,500 Shares held by
High Joy. Mr. Zhou Longrui is also deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares
and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options
granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively. In
addition, as Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei, pursuant to the SFO, he is
deemed to be interested in the 36,225,000 Shares which Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested by
reason of her being the sole shareholder of Shiny Century Limited (“Shiny Century”) and
500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to her upon the
exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March
2019, respectively.

Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny Century and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 36,225,000 Shares held by Shiny Century. Ms. Yang Yunfei is
also deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which
may be issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse
of Mr. Zhou Longrui, pursuant to the SFO, she is also deemed to be interested in the 32,137,500
Shares which Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder of
High Joy and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him
upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and
25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Yang Xinxin is interested in the entire issued share capital of Tong Sheng Limited (“Tong
Sheng’) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 20,000,000 Shares held by Tong Sheng.
Mr. Yang Xinxin is also deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000
Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on
4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Wang Jigiang is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares, 250,000 Shares and 100,000
Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on
4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Prof. Ouyang Minggao is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares, 250,000 Shares and
100,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to
him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares, 250,000 Shares and
100,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to
him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Ng Chi Kit is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares, 250,000 Shares and 100,000
Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on
4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as the Directors were aware, the following A ==
persons have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, directly or indirectly, interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the

FERFREALTROGREBRRAFH
*gf_ﬁ&/%)a

T-NE+A=1t—RH BE=HH A
TALTHAERERE S LAEGRHFEXVEE2RE3
7 EBEVE SR T IR AV A 2 R B ) AR R AR 10 19
*E:ﬁ:ﬂz B RERNEEREEHARNNAA
ERATRAKEERKER
(EAAI AR RN (B 5% Sk A _E AR -

ARRAE LERE

Group.
Approximate
Number of Percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Shareholding
=18 B HntE BRHEHE REMOB DL
Mr. ZhouM@e® Interest in controlled corporations, 416,084,500 (L) 37.68%
JB 5 A e interest of spouse and beneficial owner
XL E R  EBERREREAA
Great State!” Beneficial owner 242,145,000 (L) 21.93%
RFO EnlEAA
Jolly Pride® Beneficial owner 58,942,500 (L) 5.34%
BEO EmEAA
Ms. Fang Jianjun® Interest in controlled corporations, 416,084,500 (L) 37.68%
HEEr L interest of spouse and beneficial owner
RLEER  EEBERNEREAA
Bai Xiang® Beneficial owner 111,637,000 (L) 10.11%
B EnEAA
Mr. Zhou Longrui® Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,362,500 (L) 6.37%
B Shp e interest of spouse and beneficial owner
R EE R  EBERREREAA
High Joy®© Beneficial owner 32,137,500 (L) 291%
S ERnBEEA
Ms. Yang Yunfei®” Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,362,500 (L) 6.37%
BERLZLT? interest of spouse and beneficial owner
RiEEEELD  REERRERERA
BRBNIERBIRAF / 2019F® 01
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Approximate
Number of Percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Shareholding
=L B EntE ROEE RESLB DL
Shiny Century?” Beneficial owner 36,225,000 (L) 3.28%
ACERO BEHEERAA
FIL Limited® Interest in controlled corporations 65,974,000 (L) 5.98%
XL E R
Pandanus Associates Inc.” Interest in controlled corporations 65,974,000 (L) 5.98%
XL R
Pandanus Partners L.P.19 Interest in controlled corporations 65,974,000 (L) 5.98%
XL E R
Tianneng International Investment Interest in a controlled corporation 111,680,000 (L) 10.11%
Holdings Limited " and beneficial owner
RIS RESEAA
FIDELITY FUNDS Beneficial owner 55,304,000 (L) 501%
BamlEBA
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. Agent 56,280,582 (L) 5.10%
REA 56,280,582 (P)

(L): Long position
(P): Lending pool

Notes:

(1)

@)

3)

)

62

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State and is therefore deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by Great State.

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride and is therefore deemed
to be interested in the 58,942,500 Shares held by Jolly Pride. In addition, pursuant to the Jolly
Pride Trust Deed, the economic interest of all the Shares which it holds from time to time shall
belong to the said 49 employees. However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all
other rights as shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights and right to participate
in shareholders meetings of our Company) shall not be exercisable by the said 49 employees
and shall be exercised by Jolly Pride exclusively. As Mr. Zhou is the sole director of Jolly Pride,
Mr. Zhou also controls the exercise of the shareholders rights (other than economic interest) of
all the Shares held by Jolly Pride by virtue of the terms of the Jolly Pride Trust Deed.

Mr. Zhou directly holds 1,360,000 Shares. Mr. Zhou is also deemed to be interested in 500,000
Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of
the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019,
respectively.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is also deemed to be
interested in all the Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested by reason of her being the sole
shareholder of Bai Xiang and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may
be issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.
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5)

(©)

7)

8

9

(10)

(11)

Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai Xiang and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Bai Xiang. Ms. Fang Jianjun is also deemed to
be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to
her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018
and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou,
pursuant to the SFO, she is deemed to be interested in all the Shares directly held by Mr. Zhou,
and in all the Shares which Mr. Zhou is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder
of Great State and Jolly Pride and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which
may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018,
21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High Joy and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by High Joy. Mr. Zhou Longrui is also deemed to
be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to
him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018
and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang
Yunfei, pursuant to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Ms. Yang
Yunfei is interested by reason of her being the sole shareholder of Shiny Century and 500,000
Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to her upon the exercise of
the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019,
respectively.

Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny Century and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Shiny Century. Ms. Yang Yunfei is also
deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares , 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be
issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse
of Mr. Zhou Longrui, pursuant to the SFO, she is also deemed to be interested in all the Shares
which Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder of High Joy
and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the
exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March
2019, respectively.

FIL Limited is interested in an aggregate of 65,974,000 Shares through FIL Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited and FIL Investment Management (Singapore) Limited

and the entities controlled by them.

Pandanus Associates Inc. is interested in an aggregate of 65,974,000 Shares through FIL
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited and FIL Investment Management (Singapore)
Limited and the entities controlled by them.

Pandanus Partners L.P. is interested in an aggregate of 65,974,000 Shares through FIL
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited and FIL Investment Management (Singapore)
Limited and the entities controlled by them.

Tianneng International Investment Holdings Limited directly holds 56,680,000 Shares and is
interested in 55,000,000 Shares through 17T K B¢ B ¥T1% & B3R H R A 7 and the entities
controlled by it.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Director of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the Senior Management are
set out on pages 31 to 36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 7 June
2010 (the “Share Option Scheme”), which became effective on 7 July 2010,
for the purpose of giving the eligible persons an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Group and motivating them to optimize their future
performance and efficiency to the Group and/or to reward them for their
past contributions, attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-
going relationships with such eligible persons who are significant to and/
or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth
or success of the Group, and in the case of executives, enabling the Group
to attract and retain such individuals with experience and ability and/or to
reward them for their past contributions. As at the date of this annual
report, the Share Option Scheme has a remaining life of approximately 3
months.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at 7 July 2010, being the listing date of the
Shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange, being 100,000,000 Shares,
which represented about 9.06% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report. No options may be granted to any
participant of the Share Option Scheme such that the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to
be granted to that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the
latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share capital from time to
time.
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Subject to the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an option impose any conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set out in
the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit, including the time or
period before the right to exercise the option in respect of all or any of the
Shares shall vest, provided that such terms or conditions shall not be
inconsistent with any other terms or conditions of the Share Option
Scheme.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the Board
and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant under the Share
Option Scheme. There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme
are required to pay the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on
or before 28 days after the offer date. The exercise price of the options is
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less
than whichever is the highest of:

(@)  the nominal value of a Share;

(b)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(c)  theaverage closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the offer date.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the adoption date, after which no further options will be
granted or offered.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Year was the Company, or
any of its holding companies or subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Details of the movement of share options granted under the Share Option — AFERIFIERETZIR DA BIREN S5
Scheme for the Year are as follows: [N
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Category and Exercise asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Name of Price per 1 January during during during  31December
Participants Date of Grant Share 2019 the Year the Year the Year 2019
R=B-N% R=ZB-1%
-R-H XEEE T-A=t-H
SEERRIRES RUBH BRITEE MATE AFEERL AFEEGHE  RW/BAX HA{TE
Directors
B2
Mr. Zhou Mingming 4 April 2018 4332 500,000 - - - 500,000
[ERAR —Z-\EmAmAY
21 December 20187 3114 350,000 - - - 350,000
“E-\FrZAZt-B"
25 March 2019% 309 - 150,000 - - 150,000
“E-NF=ZA=t+HA"
Mr. Zhou Longrui 4 April 2018 4332 500,000 - - - 500,000
REhAE —Z-\EmAmAY
21 December 20187 3114 350,000 - - - 350,000
“E-\FrZAZt-B"
25 March 2019% 309 - 150,000 - - 150,000
“E-NF=ZA=t+HA"
Ms. Yang Yunfei 4 April 2018 4332 500,000 - - - 500,000
ES - \¥MAmAY
21 December 20187 3114 350,000 - - - 350,000
“E-\FrZAZt-B"
25 March 2019% 309 - 150,000 - - 150,000
“E-NF=ZA=t+HA"
Mr. Yang Xinxin 4 April 2018 4332 500,000 - - - 500,000
ki —Z-\EmAmAY
21 December 20187 3114 350,000 - - - 350,000
“E-\FrZAZt-B"
25 March 2019% 309 - 150,000 - - 150,000
“E-NF=ZA=t+HA"
Ms. Fang Jianjun 4 April 2018 4332 500,000 - - - 500,000
ARERL —Z-\EmAmAY
21 December 20187 3114 350,000 - - - 350,000
“E-\FrZAZt-B"
25 March 2019% 309 - 150,000 - - 150,000
“E-NF=A=t+HA"
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Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Category and Exercise asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Name of Price per 1 January during during during  31December
Participants Date of Grant Share 2019 the Year the Year the Year 2019
RZB-n¥ RZB-1F
—-B-H AEEE tZA=1-H
SAEERRSER R A% BRAEE HMATE AFEERY AFEROR RE/BAX AT
Mr.Wang Jigiang 4 April 2018" 4332 250,000 - - - 250,000
TELE ZE-\ERAmAY
21 December 2018% 3114 250,000 - - - 250,000
“E-N\FtZAZt-AY
25 March 2019 309 - 100,000 - - 100,000
ZE-NEZA=tEAY
Prof. Ouyang Minggao 4 April 2018" 4332 250,000 - - - 250,000
BERRAE —Z-\F@MAmAY
21 December 2018% 3114 250,000 - - - 250,000
“E-N\FtZAZt-Ae
25 March 2019 309 - 100,000 - - 100,000
ZE-NEZAZtEAY
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai 4 April 2018" 4332 250,000 - - - 250,000
FHhELE —Z-\F@MAWmAY
21 December 2018% 3114 250,000 - - - 250,000
“E-N\FtZAZt-Ae
25 March 2019 309 - 100,000 - - 100,000
ZE-NEZAZtEAY
Mr. Ng ChiKit 4 April 2018" 4332 250,000 - - - 250,000
REGTE —Z-\F@MAWmAY
21 December 2018% 3114 250,000 - - - 250,000
“E-N\FtZAZt-Ae
25 March 2019 309 - 100,000 - - 100,000
ZE-NEZAZtEAY
Employees 4 April 2018" 4332 29,000,000 - - - 29,000,000
= ZE-\ERAmAY
21 December 2018% 3114 33,000,000 - - - 33,000,000
“E-N\FtZAZt—Ae
25 March 2019 309 - 29,500,000 - - 29,500,000
ZZ-NEZA=tEAY
Total
st 68,250,000 30,650,000 98,900,000
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Notes:

(1) Validity period
of the share
options:

Vesting dates of
the share

options:

Performance

target:

(2) Validity period
of the share
options:

Vesting dates of
the share
options:

Performance
target:

(3) Validity period of
the share
options:

Vesting dates of
the share
options:

Performance
target:

The share options granted shall vest in the proposed grantees in
accordance with the timetable below, each with an exercise period

commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending 8 years after the

date of grant.

(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
4 April 2018

) 20% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
4 April 2019

(c) 70% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
4 April 2020

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of certain
performance targets as set out in the respective offer letters, during the

validity period of the share options.

The share options granted shall vest in the proposed grantees in
accordance with the timetable below, each with an exercise period
commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending 8 years after the

date of grant.

(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
21 December 2018

(b) 20% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
21 December 2019

(c) 70% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
21 December 2020

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of certain
performance targets as set out in the respective offer letters, during the
validity period of the share options.

The share options granted shall vest in the proposed grantees in
accordance with the timetable below, each with an exercise period
commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending 8 years after the

date of grant.

(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
25 March 2019

(b) 20% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
25 March 2020

(c) 70% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest on
25March 2021

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of certain
performance targets as set out in the respective offer letters, during the
validity period of the share options.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted, cancelled or
lapsed during the Year.
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The table showing movements in the Company’s share options held by the
Group's employees (including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries) and valuation of the share options are also set out in the
section headed “Share-based Payment Transactions” under note 51 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year save as disclosed under the sub-
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” below and “Related
Party Transactions” in note 50 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and “Related Party Transactions” in note 50 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director or controlling shareholder or any of their
respective subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group, to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a part, during the Year.

During the Year, no contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was made.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not
determinable by the employing company within 1 year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES [ E - HEHEE FH R A

During the Year, the Company repurchased an aggregate of 3,785,000 AR » A T LAAA KB 10,909,870 78 7T i1 1B HE 32
Shares of its own issued ordinary share capital through the Stock Exchange  FTRE IR & & 3817 4@ AR AN A & 3£ 3,785,000 A% AR
at an aggregate consideration of HK$10,909,870. The highest price paid per 5 « BN &R &= ERKR A3058 T B SK R

Share is HK$3.05, and the lowest price paid per Share is HK$2.73. KEBRBNA2738TT -
Details of the repurchase are as follows: i EEES =y N
Number of Highest Price Lowest Price
Shares  Paid per Share  Paid per Share
Date of Repurchase Repurchased (HKS) (HKS)
ENER [ERRE=7:
BEER REE®K
§BE A BERGOHE (B7x) (B
21 January 2019 —ET-NF—HA=Z+—H 200,000 2.95 2.95
22 January 2019 —ET-NF—HA=+=H 1,073,000 2.97 2.87
23 January 2019 —ET-NF—A=+=AR 403,000 286 2.80
24 January 2019 —ZE—-AF—AF=+WmH 522,000 292 2.79
25 January 2019 —E-NF—A=Z+HA 802,000 2.83 2.73
28 January 2019 —E-nF—H=+N\H 100,000 2.82 2.79
29 January 2019 —E-NF—HA=ZTANA 200,000 2.94 2.90
30 January 2019 —E-hEFE—-A=1H 200,000 3.03 2.94
31 January 2019 —E-hEF-A=1+—H 250,000 3.05 3.03
1 February 2019 —ET—hF-_HA—H 35,000 3.05 3.03
Total 185 3,785,000
As at the date of this report, all repurchased shares have been cancelled. RAREBE - FTERBLRGDE WerE -

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries  B& F XTI E SN - A AT K EH RN E D TR
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed Shares AFEHMEEES « BEE LA A FEA LMK
during the Year. e
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the Year except for the deviations to the code provision A.2.1,
A6.7 and E.1.2. For details, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report
on page 37 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee. For details, please
refer to the paragraph headed “Audit Committee” of the Corporate
Governance Report set out on pages 42 to 43 of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group emphasises the importance of personal development of
individual employees. The Group has in place remuneration policies to
ensure providing adequate rewards to employees with recognised
experience for the assigned roles and duties. The Group also provides other
benefits including bonuses and shares as incentives.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good relationship with our
customers. The Group always strives to maximize customers satisfaction
and to add value for our customers. The Group identifies areas for
improvement. Customer's complaints once acknowledged and reported
will be dealt with timely, fairly and diligently.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers during the Year is as follows:

9.26%/14.93%
25.72%/42.37%

The largest customer/supplier
Five largest customers/suppliers in aggregate

At no time during the Year had the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
During the Year, the Group achieved 100% cadmium-free production and
has fully applied cadmium-free enclosed battery formulation process.

In parallel with enlarging its economic benefits and continuously enhancing
production technology, the Group has adhered to its environmental
protection philosophy of minimizing consumption of resources, pollution
and emissions. The Group continues to advocate the harmonious and
symbiotic relationship between business and the environment to fulfil its
long-term goal of “green production”. To guide the lead-acid battery industry
towards green, healthy and sustainable development, the Group has united
enterprises both upstream and downstream in a lead-acid battery industry
alliance for promoting green development and recycling during the Year.
Through a series of activities intended to improve the brand image, the
Group has strived to become the top green energy brand in the PRC.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and the
Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in
the PRC. The Group’s establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.
During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied
with all the relevant laws and regulations in all material aspects.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, a member of the Group continued to be a party to the
following continuing connected transactions which are subject to
announcements and reporting requirements but exempt from
shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by reason of
all of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) being
less than 5% on an annual basis and the annual cap amount exceeding
HK$3,000,000:

Purchase of battery production equipment

Chaowei Power Group Co., Ltd. (“Chaowei Power”) and Zhejiang Doulan
Intelligence Equipment Co,, Ltd (“Zhejiang Doulan”), a connected person of
the Company by virtue of Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules, entered into a
battery production equipment purchase agreement (the “Battery
Production Equipment Purchase Agreement”) dated 29 December 2015,
by which Zhejiang Doulan has agreed to supply batteries intelligence
manufacturing equipment and ancillary facilities to Chaowei Power for a
term of 3 years from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018, renewable upon
expiry (subject to compliance with the relevant provisions of the Listing
Rules regarding continuing connected transactions). Zhejiang Doulan is
60% owned by Mr. Zhou Mingming and is therefore an associate of Mr.
Zhou and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to the Battery Production Equipment Purchase Agreement,
Chaowei Power agreed to purchase batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities from Zhejiang Doulan from time to time
at price with reference to actual costs (including labour costs, costs of
materials, technology development costs, rental expenses and
depreciation expenses related to batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities ordered by Chaowei Power) plus
reasonable gross profit margin of Zhejiang Doulan, ranging from 20% to
25%, which is, to the best knowledge the Company, in line with the then
market practice as for the Company engaged in the similar industry and
with the similar scale, which shall not, in any event, be higher than the
prices of the products with comparable nature and scale charged by other
independent third party suppliers. For the purpose of ensuring the
consideration being fair and reasonable, the Company has taken into
account the following factors:

(1) the quotations from independent third parties for similar projects;
and

(2)  the historical price of similar projects procured by the Group.

For the 3 years ending 31 December 2018, the proposed annual cap
amounts for the transactions under the Battery Production Equipment
Purchase Agreement are set at RMB80,000,000, RMB110,000,000 and
RMB150,000,000, respectively (tax excluded).

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 29 December 2015.

On 28 December 2018, Chaowei Power renewed the Battery Production
Equipment Purchase Agreement by entering into another battery
production equipment purchase agreement (the “Battery Production
Equipment Purchase Agreement (2019-2021)") with Zhejiang Doulan for
another term of three years commencing from 1 January 2019 and ending
on 31 December 2021, renewable upon expiry (subject to compliance with
the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules regarding continuing connected
transactions).

For the 3 years ending 31 December 2021, the proposed annual cap
amounts for the transactions under the Battery Production Equipment
Purchase Agreement (2019-2021) are set at RMB40,000,000, RMB40,000,000
and RMB50,000,000 respectively (tax excluded).
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ESTRES

During the Year, purchase of batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities from Zhejiang Doulan amounted to
approximately RMB16,757,000, which is within the 2019 annual cap of
RMB40,000,000.

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 28 December 2018.

REVIEW BY INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions of the Group and have confirmed that
these transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor
of the Company to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group on pages 72 to 74 of this annual report in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

74 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited  /  Annual Report 2019

AREFZ - (AT SO R B B T S Rl A AR D
EXRMAOANRE 167570007 © WEBHE -ZE—Ah
FRFEE R AR 40,000,000 7T °

PR ZNE-—FFBIRARR B/ =X
—N\F+ZAZ+N\BKHRE -

RRARBLFATEEREHBEN ZFRH

BN TEFEENASE LRBERERS -
THREERS

() ‘EARARBEEER—BREHREIL:
(i)  ERRERGREIL &

(i) RIBEBREWZ L - MARIGFTIIBR
FRE  ANAARDAIRRERNE -

B ETRAE14A061E EESKBELESE
TYEARRIZE 300055 [ BAEMBERBTREFR U
INNEBTIE| W ERBSRASHRMHE
TERRRREE 74058 [ B8 LR BT HERER S
B A% BREM R 1 | ZEEARQ R BN A EE M
BEREISHERRE - ZHMERE LETHRAE
V4ASCIEBE N EBREEANEMY  ERHBERN
AEBRAFRENEHEWEFEBERIS
MEFER R o AR RE B A0 K EFRE
FEEZ AT



DIRECTORS” REPORT
EFZHRS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF

NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Zhou Mingming, Great State and Jolly Pride (collectively the
"Controlling Shareholders”) has confirmed that for the Year, each of them
has complied with the deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
competition”) dated 7 June 2010 executed by the Controlling Shareholders
in favour of the Company. There has not been any opportunity in any
restricted business (being business which is or may be in competition with
the business of any member of the Group from time to time) being referred
by the Controlling Shareholders to the Company for the Year. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance of
the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders for the Year
and considered the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the Deed
of Non-competition during the Year.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
A financial information summary of the Group is set out on page 232 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in any business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, during the Year
and as at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Mingming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
30 March 2020
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHAOWEI POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chaowei Power
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 231, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
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and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

ARELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Warranty provision

We identified warranty provision as a key audit matter due to
the significance of this provision to the consolidated financial
statements and the management’s estimates involved in
estimating warranty provision at the end of the reporting
period.

Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the
time of sale based on past warranty claims and unit sales
history, and further adjusted to reflect actual costs incurred as
information becomes available.

Details of the key estimation uncertainty of warranty provision
are set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RERE

HRREREHREMBHRRMNEEEN RS PERE

S RAFRERBELNGIMEEREN Bl
PR R B RAREZSEIE -

EmRIERANGARAREERENBEREFRRR
BHEEETRR  YERMEERELE—FTHE - A
RREFRAA ©

REBRFBEZEATEERARFBERNEG
ETR

CLE e

78 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2019

Our procedures in relation to warranty provision included:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodologies used
by the management for estimating warranty provision;

Testing the underlying data and challenging the
assumptions used by the management based on past
events in estimating warranty provision and changes in
market conditions; and

Comparing actual warranty outflows subsequent to the
end of reporting period to those expected at the end of
reporting period.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among ~ RFIEEEA HEB(EhBIE)ETH2E8E
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant BB ZEER B AR EE - SRERMAEET AR
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that AR % Bl 9 ISP ES 1R 8 KR 5K ©

we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement thatwe ~ BR{FITNAEIEATER - HERFACTEEBESE
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding MMM EBEEENR  WHEESEAAIEESE
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other R A S ERX BN BEBAEREEMER
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and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor's report is Kay Man Wo, Dick.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOS5 AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
moBEmNXEMEBWmMD

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_T-NFT-_A=1t—HLEFE

019 2018
—\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB"000
B & ks ARETTT
Revenue WA 5 27,181,732 26,948,237
Cost of sales 5 & B (23,788,459) (23,712,969)
Gross profit EF 3,393,273 3,235,268
Other income and other gains H U A R E b Uk 25 7 308,880 274,231
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRHEER (828,010) (917,817)
Administrative expenses THAX (632,801) (630,693)
Research and development expenses R RS2 (797,570) (884,914)
Other expenses and other losses HAtnF S R EAbE1E 8 (62,957) 45, 865)
Impairment losses recognised, net of reversal BEARRBEREE (NkREEE) 9 (232,449) (88,126)
Finance costs BE AR 10 (300,642) (336 478)
Share of result of joint ventures e E DR (29,917) (12,132)
Share of result of associates (el NG e (12,321) (15 765)
Profit before tax R & AT AE 11 805,486 577,709
Income tax expense TS fi X2 14 (298,831) (200,202)
Profit for the year FRFE 506,655 377,507
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hib 2w (Ax) ¢
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HREs e EEE
profit or loss: BiEmAIEE
Exchange differences on translation of HRE G INETE I TS TR
financial statements of foreign operations ROGE H =R 2,552 (1,690)
Fair value (loss) gain on receivables at BRATESAREMER
fair value through other comprehensive Wz (e AFERA
income (“FVTOCI") Hip 2 mE e )&y
B RIE AT E
(B 18) Y (5,638) 9,051
Fair value loss on equity instruments at FVTOCI 12 A F(EzF A H AL
2EREAER A
NEEEE (8,922) =
Other comprehensive income (expense) FREMAEZEWRE (FAX) -
for the year, net of income tax HIBRFT 158t (12,008) 7,361
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKZEEE 494,647 384,868
Profit for the year attributable to: LA A LG RFE
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZZ =N 561,340 412,714
Non-controlling interests JEFE R M 2 (54,685) (35,207)
506,655 377,507
Total comprehensive income for the year AT ATEEEA
attributable to: SHEWELBEE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZZ =N 549,332 420,075
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 (54,685) (35,207)
494,647 384,868
Earnings per share BRRAF
— Basic and diluted (RMB) —ERNEE(ARKEIT) 15 0.51 037
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RO RS AR 7R

i

At 31 December 2019
RZZE—NE+_HA=+—H

019 2018
—ET-NF
Notes 000 RMB'000
B =E R ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment M - MR KRR 17 4,991,116 4,991,790
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 494,736 -
Prepaid lease payments FEHAERIE - 458,976
Investment properties LB 19 42,318 42,327
Goodwill EES 20 49,447 49,447
Intangible assets EREE 21 288,803 294,149
Interests in joint ventures REERE S 22 172,163 191,080
Interests in associates AN P 23 91,127 131,160

Equity instruments at FVTOC| BAHEAEREMEE
WamEs TA 24 3,500 10,722
Loan receivables EUE R 25 4,608 78,949
Deferred tax assets REFIAE B 26 569,022 477,286
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE K B Ath FE UK IE 30 65,795 47433
Amounts due from related parties FE UK B S 75 TR 50 133,085 173,085

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BB © B K kA
plant and equipment Fridi&® 200,678 140,609
7,106,398 7,087,013

CURRENT ASSETS mEEE

Prepaid lease payments FEHERIE - 9,367
Inventories FE 27 2,659,852 2,163,059
Loan receivables JEWE K 25 129,873 143,659
Trade receivables JEWE 5 Bk K 28 1,820,586 2,024,755

Receivables at FVTOC BAFEGFAEMEE
U Z5 B FE W S T8 29 1,401,425 634,864
Prepayments and other receivables TE A~ FRIE B B Ath FE I R IR 30 1,355,026 1,226,497
Amounts due from related parties JE s Ba s 5 5K IE 50 191,638 212,406

Financial assets at fair value through profit A ER AR
or loss (“FVTPL") (MEATE ABEH])

e E A E 41 151,779 66,427
Restricted bank deposits SR 4RI TR 31 633,339 1,159,844
Bank balances and cash RITHER KRR S 31 1,958,428 2,975,507
10,301,946 10,616,385
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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At 31 December 2019
R=ZE—hEF+=—H=+—~8”

019 2018
—E—)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BT S AREEFIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEME
Trade payables FETE SRR 32 2,346,796 2,057,807
Bills payable ARETH 33 1,427,557 1,145,288
Other payables and accruals E b B 5B M ERTE 34 1,310,359 1,473,255
Amounts due to related parties P& RE RS 5 5RIE 50 26,270 29,232
Tax liabilities HIEAE 242,795 151,545
Lease liabilities HEBE 5,991 =
Warranty provision REER A 36 494,402 535,253
Contract liabilities aHAaGE 37 680,331 578,037
Borrowings Rt 38 2,571,185 3,761,691
Short-term note HHIEE 39 - 299,930
Medium-term note HAE I 39 648,365 -
Corporate bond TEES 40 416,991 -
10,171,042 10,032,038
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFHR 130,904 584,347
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERRBEE 7,237,302 7,671,360
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#EiE
Share capital A% 7R 42 74,704 74,961
Reserves & 4,460,483 3,927,707
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KAEHER AEIERZS 4,535,187 4,002,668
Non-controlling interests SRR 54 880,803 926,162
TOTAL EQUITY AR 5,415,990 4,928,830
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEEF
Deferred tax liabilities BT IEAE 26 12,660 3,529
Deferred income IEEWA 35 279,497 284,224
Borrowings BEE 38 1,519,415 1,392,754
Lease liabilities HEAE 9,740 =
Medium-term note AR EAZE 39 - 646,331
Corporate bond EES 40 - 415,692
1,821,312 2,742,530
7,237,302 7,671,360
The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 231 were approved 83 E X F 231 EiH NG MERED =

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2020 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Zhou Mingming
L
DIRECTOR
EF

TEF-RA=tRREEE SRR T

B TIEERREE

Zhou Longrui
AR
DIRECTOR
BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

GOMRERE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
NF+ZA=+—HBIEFE

HE_Z—

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FQUITY

ANEREAEGRE
Equity
Statutory Share Exchange attributable to
Share Share surplus option Fvrocl Other translation Retained non-controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve eamings Subtotal interests Total
RAYE
ARH
EE BRE 2EkE FERER
e RiEE BHRRE R R Ao EiiffE REEF it s &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE#TT  ARMTT  ARETT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARET  ARETR  ARETR
(notei) (noteil)
(HizE) (i)

At 1 January 2019 R=F-NF-HF-A 74,961 47,301 685,076 21,47 (7.477) 306,871 (4,908) 2,509,597 4,002,668 926,162 4,928,830

Proftfor the year ERilE - - - - - - - 561,340 561,340 (54,685) 506,655

Other comprehensive income for theyear R E (2 E Wz - - - - (14,560) - 2,552 - (12,008) - (12,008)

Dividend paid to ownersof the Company ~~ BRAAREAARE (Hizk 16)

(note 16) - - - - - - - (62,388) (62,388) - (62,388)

Dividend declared to REERERSRRE

non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - (5,144) (5,144)

Recognition of equity-settled share B RESE IR RER

based payments BES - - - 54,896 - - - - 54,896 - 54,896
Capital contribution by FERERTE
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - 2470 2470
Shares repurchased and cancelled BEpHENRA (257) (9,064) - - - - - - (9321) - (9321)
Acaquiston of a non-wholly owned W52 BEEHONRAA
subsidiary (note 49) (Ht49) - - - - - - - - - 12,000 12,000
Transferto resenves BAGE - - 174143 - - - - (174,143) - - -
At31 December 2019 RZF-AE+ZA=1-H 74,104 408,237 859,219 76,143 (22,037) 306,871 (2,356) 2,834,406 4,535,187 880,803 5,415,990
t 1 January 2018 R=%-)\5-5-A 74%1 47301 5035 = (16528) 309,905 (3218 232829 363307 1014826 4647897

Proftforthe year FNHE = - - - - - - 42714 42714 (35.207) 377507

Other comprehensive income for theyear — FREM2ERR - - - - 9051 - (1690) - 7361 - 7361

Dividend paid to ownersof the Company ~~ ERAAREEARE (Hizk 16)

(note 16) = = = = = = = (68691) (68,691) = (68691)

Dividend declredto REERERSRRE

non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - (71984) (71.984)

Recognition of equity-settled share ANRESENRH AR

based payments e = = - 2047 - - - - 141 - 2047
Capital contibution by FEhERTE

non-controling interests = = = = = = = = = 6038 6038
Acquisiion of additional nterest WEHEAFME e

in subsidlaries - - - - - (2.969) - - (2965) 142 (1543)
Disposalof partilinterests insubsidiaries A ERAHETHENBAT

withoutlosing control HivER - - - - (69) - - 69) 1069 1000
Acquiston of a non-wholly owned YE-RF2ERERNHRAA

subsidiary (note 49) (Kizk49) - - - - - - - - - 99% 99%

Transfer toresenves BARE - - 16722 - - - - (162722 - - -

At31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+-A=+-B 74%1 47301 685,076 1047 (7417) 306871 (4908) 2509597 4002,668 926,162 4928830

Notes: Bitet -

(i) In accordance with the articles of association of all subsidiaries established in the People’s @i RIEAT B FEFEARKFE ([ B ) 557 69118 2 FIAY
Republic of China (the “PRC”), those subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of profit after RAEIEFRE - ZEHE L AR ABERIE S BB ST E
taxation reported under the relevant accounting policies and financial regulations in the PRC R TZHLT 2 AR R TN 10% 205 EREAGHE
to the statutory surplus reserve until such reserve reaches 50% of their registered capital. EEZFHEESHTMERZ50%  BREES DX #E
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity owners. The Rt BN RS AT ° DA & 1 1 AT
statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous year's losses, expand the existing RIEAEBEFREREIR - R B F LB B
operations or convert into additional capital of the subsidiaries. RAIAGEESNEA -

(ii) Other reserves are mainly arising from (i) the difference between the fair value of the (ii) At tEEE ERE () BN BRI E 6 2 F (6 5 A 5

consideration paid/received and the carrying amount of the net assets acquired from/
disposed to the non-controlling shareholders; (i) debt waived by a related party; and (iii) paid-
in capital of Chaowei Power (as defined in note 54) transferred during the reorganisation
made on 9 March 2010.

86 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2019

”Hﬁ/&‘%#ﬁ(%/bﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁ/g&ﬁ%@@ﬂégﬁ (i) B
B ey ®s o R (i) BEER (E&ELH AT 54) RA%E
BR—F—FF= I AETEMNEEN TSR -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\\/T\ i% /\7 ;)IEL E %

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

019 2018
—E-N\F
000 RMB’000
55 ARETIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETER
Profit before tax BRI A0 A1 805,486 577,709
Adjustments for: EE
Interest income R E U A (78,773) (50,909)
Finance costs Bh & Ak 2N 300,642 336,478
Share of result of joint ventures JEihEE XS 29,917 12,132
Share of result of associates FER B R R SEE 12,321 15,765
Loss on changes in fair value of financial EQ?EJ)\EEE’\]@@EE
assets at FVTPL NEEZEHEE 9,809 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - WE &ZEEE
plant and equipment 38,748 8,878
Depreciation and impairment of property, Y - R M EREITE MORE
plant and equipment 528,074 405,921
Depreciation of investment properties BT E 2,995 2,832
Amortisation of intangible assets R A A 38,315 32917
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 16,110 =
Prepaid lease payments released to stABSERTENHEE A
profit or loss - 8,558
Release of government grants from FH 3R FIE M5 A B 3 T 4 B
deferred income (37,569) (48,375)
Allowance for credit losses on trade receivables BUE ZERR M EEEERE 156,207 75,170
Allowance for credit losses on other E IR M S B B EEE
receivables 11,613 12,956
Allowance for credit losses on amounts JE UL Fa s 5 IR B B R B
due from related parties 64,629 -
Share option scheme RERREET 2 54,896 21,247
Operating cash flows before movements in EELASHHNRKSHESRE
working capital 1,953,420 1,411,279
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEOEM) R (495,235) 154,863
(Increase) decrease in receivables, FEWERIE ~ e RIS FIA (38 0)
deposits and prepayments A (891,419) 1,465,438
Increase in amounts due from related parties JFE Uit a5 TR IE I N (24,843) (14,008)
Increase in payables, deposits received EARIE - e RTEIRE AN
and accrued charges 343,885 306,999
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities BHEEE M CR) 102,294 (129,481)
(Decrease) increase in provision for warranty {REFBEEAE R ) BN (40,851) 52,086
(Decrease) increase in amounts JE 1<) BB Bge 77 5k 38 Ol ) 38 N
due to related parties (20,008) 15,484
Cash generated from operations EUEFTISIR G 927,243 3,262,660
Income tax paid ERFTEH (275,757) (270,181)
Net cash from operating activities K EEE TS IH & H 5 651,486 2,992,479
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

019 2018
2 —FE-N\F
Note 000 RMB"000
B =E R ARBT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Assets-related government grants received B & B AR B U 4 B 32,842 57,549
Interest received B UH E 75,846 46,721
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BENLERE (364,155) (734,213)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE - BE K& E
plant and equipment TS z8 51,895 38,812
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEEYIZ ~ BB Kk iE
plant and equipment Fridi&& (200,678) (140,609)
Purchases of investment property HEREE (3,144) (2,217)
Purchase for leasehold lands included in BETAEREEEDN
right-of-use assets THE T (22,733) -
Addition to prepaid lease payments TR &I N - (102,214)
Net cash (outflow) inflow on acquisition B ATIRS Ont)
of subsidiaries MAEER 49 (17,179) 153
Capital contribution to joint ventures AEETETE (11,000) (21,400)
Capital reduction from a joint venture —REEBEEREIR - 18,240
Cash paid for establishment of associates ByEENTNRE - (27,020)
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BEREAFETAEBRA
SREE (161,346) (64,106)
Disposal of financial assets at FVTPL HEEAFER ABmH
TREE 66,185 =
Purchases of equity instruments at FVTOCI BEIR AT EF AEA
PEEERNER TR (1,700) -
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits REZ R HIERTTIE 11,462,932 7,072,254
Placement of restricted bank deposits TFHERHISRITER (10,936,427) (7,179,324)
Advance of loan receivables EURE R - (81,500)
Collection of loan receivables BIEKER 88,127 9,116
Loans to associates Bl NCI =& (7,236) (129,244)
Collection of loan to an associate BB —RBERRER 17,203 4,116
Advance to related parties ) BAHS 5 2K (31,248) (18,988)
Repayments from related parties A 5 (238 2R 42,263 =
Proceeds on disposal of interests in associates B N RS
FriS k18 14,967 -
Repayment from a former associate —RPTHEE AN TE 13,200 6,600
Net cash from (used in) investing activities EEERE(FTA)
8 & F5E 108,614 (1,247,274)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2019
E_T-NFTA=T—HILEEFE

;I:—?

019 2018
: —E-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB"000
iz R ARBT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEED
Shares repurchased and cancelled HE 18] 37 5 $H O AR (D (9,321)
New bank borrowings raised FERENRITEE 2,560,263 4,443,016
Repayment of bank borrowings EERRITEE (3,635,108) (4,490,434)
Repayment of finance lease payables BRENRERE - (75,000)
Short-term note raised ERMNEHEE - 300,000
Payment of issue cost for raising short-term note SN BRI ER A ET
AR - (970)
Repayments of short-term note BREHEZE (300,000) -
Payments of lease liabilities STNHEEAE (4,839) =
Interest paid BHE (316,524) (336,453)
Dividends paid to the owners of the Company BEAQEHE ARKE (62,388) (68,691)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest [RENEZ2 e £ ¥ (31,488) (45,640)
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests R EREE 2,470 6,038
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary U BE — K KT /B A 1A EESN
R - (1,543)
Partial disposal of equity interests in subsidiaries HE R B A RAEE S
s - 1,000
Advance from related parties 2K B B 5 2Kk 17,046 -
Net cash used in financing activities BEEE AR S 43 (1,779,889) (268,677)
Net (decrease) increase in cash RERASEEY (R2)
and cash equivalents B hnFEE (1,019,789) 1,476,528
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year #1374 KIR & ZHEY 2,975,507 1,501,319
Effects of exchange rate changes EREF & 2,710 (2,340)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of theyear, FRRE KRB L ZEY -
represented by bank balances and cash BETHBRRAERT
(note 31) (Mt=E31) 1,958,428 2,975,507
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-—NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 18 January 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and its shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with effect from 7 July 2010. The
address of the registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1205 Cayman Islands, and the address of its principal place of
business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") is No.18,
Chengnan Road, Huaxi Industrial Function Area, Changxing County,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and
most of its subsidiaries. The principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are manufacturing and sales of lead-
acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and other related
products.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to IFRSs
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB")
for the first time in the current year:

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRIC-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
to IFRS 9

Amendments Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
tolAS 19

Amendments Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
to 1AS 28

Amendments Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
to IFRSs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

2.1

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. IFRS 16 superseded IAS 17 Leases (“IAS 17"), and the
related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply IFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying IAS 17 and IFRIC-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a
lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance
with the requirements set out in IFRS 16 in assessing whether
a contract contains a lease.

2.

PR A0 AT B B Bt R R o 2 B ([ B B
M| ERER ) RIEFT A (&)

7N 57 B 5 ) 2E K B9 R AT B PR B B R o 2
R R AERT 2= (4&)

BRIXEEEN  RAFERBZEHIE
BREI IR EER REFTAH ARBARFE R
PBEFENPBRRARRALHZEHFE
MR BELEERTE

21 ERAEBRTHEREEANF16HFHEY
BT BRNEEREH
AN B A E R E B % R
EEBIE 165 o BB EIREERE
T65t B R BB g5t 2RI E 1757 &
([ERR e ERIZE175% ) RiERERE -

HEREZE
AEBECEBRAITREN L BLEA
e BIFR & 5t A5 17 5% MBI BR B 75
BERBRES -RERIRECLH
ELRERAEEBNRHEENGNER
BB SRS EAIE 165% - ML EE
MY ARBRNSBEHEENG RS
R ZER o FItE - AN I E G
REXERERCFENEGH -

AR -_F—hFE—-A—BHZKFTZ
HEBRWEHNNE - AKERFEHE
HWRGESHERRERBEMERE
EHF 16BN RTRBEENTE
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-—NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

92

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.1

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As alessee

The Group has applied IFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the
related lease liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or accrued
lease payments by applying IFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits and comparative information has not
been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
IFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following practical
expedients to leases previously classified as operating leases
under IAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to
the respective lease contracts:

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application;

ii. applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at
the date of initial application. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant group
entities range from 5.655% to 6.115%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S A\
i

7 %5 g < B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily N6 BE ol ) AR R B T AT B BR B RS R A
effective for the current year (continued)
Impacts and changes in accounting policies of

application on IFRS 16 Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

2. BRAVHETEIRR S R 2 R ([ BB
M| ERER ) RIEFT A (&)

RIRAERT 2 (4R)

21 FERABEBRMEREENEL16KEEY
B BENTEREE (H)
1ERZHBEN (&)

Operating lease commitments disclosed
as at 31 December 2018
Less: Practical expedient — leases with lease term
ending within 12 months from the date of
initial application
Undiscounted lease obligations
(excluding practical expedient adjustment)

Lease liabilities relating to operating leases
recognised upon application of IFRS 16

R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H

WAL EHEAE 13,660

B AITTRE S — R E R
FEFR BRI 12EAN

HROEE (90)
RAMEHEESHT
(TBEATEE S AAE) 13,570

& PR BIR  75 o5 22 R 56 16571
HE

Analysed as:
Current
Non-current

REeBEc2HENHERR 10,895
V-1

ED 4,137

FERE 6,758

10,895
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)
2.1

PR A0 3 AT B B Bt R R o 2 B (T B B
i mERER ) RIEFT A (&)

7S 4 [ 38 1l A R A9 R RT B PR B A R S
RAIRAZRT 2 (4])

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of 2,1 EAEBUEBREERNE165RHES
application on IFRS 16 Leases (continued) S RENTENREE (8)
As a lessee (continued) 1ERENA (&)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 January RZZE-—NF—H—B CHAEEE
2019 comprises the following: FEREEEEUTIER -
Right-of-use
assets
EREEE
Note RMB'000
B E ARETT
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases & FA BRI B B 7S S 2 2E B 28 16 91518
recognised upon application of IFRS 16 HRELCEHERAZEREEE 10,895
Reclassified from prepaid lease BENEEFIESEHHE
payments — leasehold lands —MHE T @) 468,343
479,238
By class: bizg i1l
Land and buildings — rented premises THREF — EHAME 10,895
Leasehold lands HELH 468,343
479,238
(@)  Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC were @ MRPBREELHMZEMRBER-F

classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31 December
2018. Upon application of IFRS 16, the current and non-
current portion of prepaid lease payments amounting
to RMB9,367,000 and RMB458,976,000 respectively were

reclassified to right-of-use assets.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.1

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 16, the
Group is not required to make any adjustment on transition
for leases in which the Group is a lessor but account for these
leases in accordance with IFRS 16 from the date of initial
application and comparative information has not been
restated.

Upon application of IFRS 16, new lease contracts entered into
but commence after the date of initial application relating to
the same underlying assets under existing lease contracts are
accounted as if the existing leases are modified as at 1 January
2019. The application has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January 2019.
However, effective 1 January 2019, lease payments relating to
the revised lease term after modification are recognised as
income on straight-line basis over the extended lease term.

Before application of IFRS 16, refundable rental deposits
received were considered as rights and obligations under
leases to which IAS 17 applied. Based on the definition of lease
payments under IFRS 16, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right-of-use assets and were adjusted to reflect
the discounting effect at transition. The adjustments to fair
value have had no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current year.

Effective on 1 January 2019, the Group has applied IFRS 15 to
allocate consideration in the contract to each lease and non-
lease components. The change in allocation basis has had no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the current year.

Impact of transition to IFRS 16 on retained earnings

The transition to IFRS 16 has no impact on retained earnings at
1 January 2019.

PR A0 3 5T B B B R 3R o R
MEREER ) RIERTA (4

3 ([ B B
&)

7N 6 [ 38 1l A R A9 R RT B PR B A R s

Al R AERT A (#E)
2.1 EREBRMEREELFE165FHEE

B BENTEREE (H)
TERLEA

RIBBIR I 3R E LR E 1650 218K
FX - AEEBEARAEEERTHE
AZZEHELBRELEMAE
B8 8 BRER B BRRZEEE T
BEENF 1R EREAR B
HEER L EED -

F& P B B 75 S o5 R RSB 16 57 1% - T
RIMERBEREMRBMEKRASL B
BRAHEANETHNHARBEREE
BERMFMAESNRBIMAAHEED
RZB-—NF—-A—HETRAK-
ERZEAHARER T NF—
A—BMEEMBRARNRLBZE -
A BZFE-NAF-A—BBEXR
& HELEFTTHERABOEENTR
IR NIRERARER RS o

ERBIR M mEERFE 16585 - B
WrROESRERESEAERE
FHERIE 17 AERE THENRE
£ REBRMBERELERNE 1658
ENFHES ZEREAIFEFA
BEERBONR  BEFHEARBR
RBERZTHRZE - B FENH
EUHAKBENANFENES M BRE
WEEBRTE -

AEEE-—T-NF-A—HBEEH
BRI B REERE 1SHEHEO 2R
BOREEMERIFHEEMEKED -
DEEEEZNEHAREERAEEH
RAEMBRRLBEATE -

R E BIRR B 5 ¥R 5 BRI % 16 5 HTR
B 5 | ) 5

R-ZFB-NAF—A—H BEEER
MBREERNE 1SR URE RN E

2B
7
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

2.1 Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on IFRS 16 Leases (continued)
Impact of transition to IFRS 16 on the consolidated statement of
financial position
The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

R 40 1 5T B B Bt 7 R o 2 B (] B B
MR EER |) RISFT A ()

7 £F 5 38 1) A 2B R BT BB B A R S
RIRAERT 2 (48)

2.1

FERERMEREENL16REEY
B BENTER S (F)

AR E BIRRB 5 #8 &5 SE R % 16 5 E A7
BHBMNI XA ZE
ER-ZFE-NF-A—HOEAUHK
ARARERNSFHECIEHATRE -
THEBHTENANHBLEZS -

Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
reported at IFRS 16
31 December at 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
R-B-I#F
G 91 —B—BRE
R=Z—N\F B R B 7 3 o
+=A=+—8H ZHIZE 165
2RV REE R YRR TE 1B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB"000
ARBTT  ARETE  ARETR
Non-current Assets FREEE
Prepaid lease payments FET S FE 458976 (458,976) =
Right-of-use assets FREEE = 479,238 479,238
Current Assets REEE
Prepaid lease payments B HEERIE 9,367 (9,367) -
Current Liabilities REEE
Lease liabilities HEAE = 4,137) 4,137)
Non-current Liabilities FREBEME
Lease liabilities HERE = (6,758) (6,758)

Note:  For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities under
indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019, movements in
working capital have been computed based on opening consolidated

statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above.

Impact of applying IFRS 16 as a lessor on the consolidated
financial statements

The impacts of applying IFRS 16 as a lessor on the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019 and its consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income and cash flows for the
year ended 31 December 2019 were insignificant.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

2.2 New and amendment to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments Definition of a Business?
to IFRS 3

Amendments Sale or Contribution of Assets between
toIFRS 10 an Investor and its Associate or
and IAS 28 Joint Venture?

Amendments Classification of Liabilities as Current
to IAS 1 or Non-current®

Amendments Definition of Material*
to IAS 1
and IAS 8

Amendments to  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform®*
IFRS 9, IAS 39
and IFRS 7

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs, a
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was
issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that
the application of all these new and amendments to IFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

2.

R 40 3 5T B B Bt 7% R o 2 B ([ B B
MR EER |) RIEFT A ()

24 [ 345 o 4039 5T B 0 3 5 0

B R A5 8T 2 ()

22 DIEME MR ERGHTEBS B R
HAEAR BT
S B 48R 718 A T E ARG Y
SRR ST RS S R R 4
5T -

B BR B 7 R 5 2 RBEA
F17%

B BR B 7 R 5 2 EBNER?
£3% (BaIA)

B BR B 7 R 5 2 REEBHEBENT
F10RREBR e FAEEREZHN
RHEBF(BITA) BAEHEHFES

Bl @Rt EAIE 5 HEESEARD
({BFTK) EESER

Bl @Rt EAIE 5 BANER!

REREHEA
F85R (ERIA)

BIRR B TS TR 2R GRS
F95% - ARG
1% 39 5% K EIR
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(BETE)

HEYE
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HiR AR
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3.

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or
IAS 17 (before application of IFRS 16), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests according to
the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination under
common control are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that
deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at
fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business
When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do not
constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to the financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other individual assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition, which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than
an operating segment.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the cash-
generating unit within the group of cash- generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash- generating
unit within a group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative values
of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group'’s
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss In the
current year in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
"

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “contro
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

of the goods underlying the

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of goods)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Warranties

If a customer does not have the option to purchase a warranty
separately, the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance with
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets unless
the warranty provides the customer with a service in addition to the
assurance that the product complies with agreed-upon
specifications (i.e. service-type warranties).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers(continued)
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would otherwise
have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably expects
that the effects on the consolidated financial statements would not
differ materially from individual leases within the portfolio.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and equipment that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever: the lease
term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise
of a purchase option, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held

under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components,
the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate consideration in a contract to
lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments from
lessees.

The Group as a lessor (prior to 1 January 2019)
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’'s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss In the current year in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group's interests in associates/joint ventures.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e., RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Effective 1 January 2019, any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or
sale is included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the current year in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes,
including state-managed retirement benefits schemes in the PRC
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of
the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit/loss before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expenses that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’'s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply In the current year in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and the
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. When current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect
is included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with the
tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which itis incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes other than construction in progress are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in
the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant
and equipment.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the current year in which the item is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the current
year in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, directs labour
costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions (continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty
obligations under the relevant contracts with customers for sales of
lead-acid motive battery products are recognised at the date of sale
of the relevant products, at the Directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the Group's obligation.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except
that at the date of initial application of IFRS 9/initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI") if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

(i

(if)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for receivables
classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest income calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these
receivables are recognised in OCl and accumulated under the
heading of FVTOCI reserve. Impairment allowances are
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to
OCI without reducing the carrying amounts of these
receivables. The amounts that are recognised in profit or loss
are the same as the amounts that would have been
recognised in profit or loss if these receivables had been
measured at amortised cost. When these receivables are
derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
(iii)  Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in OCl and accumulated in
the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will
be transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income and other gains”
line item in profit or loss.

(iv)  Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other income and other
gains” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade receivables,
receivables at FVTOCI, other receivables, loan receivables, amounts
due from related parties, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and
cash. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The
ECL on trade receivables are assessed individually for debtors in
severe financial difficulty and/or collectively using a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower,

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

Nature of financial instruments

Past-due status;

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for receivables that are measured at FVTOCI, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables, other receivables and loan
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account. For receivables
that are measured at FVTOC], the loss allowance is recognised
in OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve without
reducing the carrying amount of these receivables. Such
amount represents the changes in the FVTOCI reserve in
relation to accumulated loss allowance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of receivables that are measured at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2019

FEESBUR (])

$RI A (&)

ERMEE(H)

BRIFERSHEE
AEBEZREEERIRSRNE LIEF
[EmEs A EREERZEEMEENS
AEBDERKEEREEES BB - 7 g
RIEEREREE - WASE W REZ I E
REEFT A ERE RIS R & Bl R - WAEE
THIEEENEE - A ANSERRE(RA E
mAEEREFASTNNEEAEBEAR -
WAEENRBEE RS EENFTBED
BEREBD R RO HR - ANE E A B TR %
SREE - WA WENW TG FIRRER —
HARKREE -

RILFERIZBIER AT ENEREER - &
ERmEEC B MERREANMZ SR E
HENIRmER

RILFERR A FHERF AR M2 EKEAEN
FEW R IARS - ERTINMR R FER ARMEE
Wb RSB RS O BB o

RIFER NS BRI ERRERRATE
APAEMEE RS ENER T ARER
AN REEGEHBRTNEENBEERTE
MokEiEn  BEERERENE -

TR ENRER

D REF S

BN EE TRARENTHAR  UARER
BELERTANERDBATR A EE

o

N
4

E
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
 E—T-NF+-_A=t+—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade payables, bills
payable, other payables and accruals, amount due to related parties,
short-term note, medium-term note and corporate bond are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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4.

132

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Warranty provision

The Group provides a warranty period up to fifteen months starting
from the sales of all lead-acid motive battery products. Under the
terms of warranty, the Group undertakes to repair or replace the
battery free of charge in the event of any malfunctioning within the
warranty period.

Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the time
of sales of all lead-acid motive battery products based on past
warranty claims and unit sales history and further adjusted as
required to reflect actual costs incurred, as information becomes
available. As at 31 December 2019, the Group recognised provision
for warranty amounted to RMB494,402,000 (2018: RMB535,253,000)
and details are disclosed in note 36.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment of lifetime ECL on trade
receivables. Except for the debtors in severe financial difficulty, which
are assessed for impairment loss individually, the Group uses a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings to assess ECL on trade
receivables collectively. The provision rates are based on debtors’
aging because trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers with common risk characteristics and their aging are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. As at 31
December 2019, the carrying amount of trade receivables amounted
to RMB1,820,586,000 (2018: RMB2,024,755,000), after taking into
account the ECL of RMB432,809,000 (2018: RMB285,782,000). The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 28 and 45.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The licensed technology and trademark are amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Group’s management
determines the useful lives of these intangible assets to be 10 years.
The Group assesses annually the useful lives of these intangible
assets.

If the expectation differs from the original estimate due to changes
in the expected level of usage and/or technological developments,
such difference will impact the amortisation charge in the year in
which such estimate is changed.
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—E-NF+A=t—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets are allocated to respective cash-generating unit for
the purpose of impairment testing whenever there is indication that
the intangible assets may be impaired. The recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit has been determined based on value in
use calculation. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. No impairment loss
of intangible assets has been recognised in current year.

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the residual value, useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment, as disclosed in note 17. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual residual value and useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
keen competitions from competitors. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where residual value or useful lives are less than
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete assets.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment being lower
than its carrying amount. No impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment has been recognised in current year.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Recognition of deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2019, deferred tax assets of RMB569,022,000
(2018: RMB477,286,000) in relation to allowances for ECL and
inventories, deferred income, accrual and provision, tax losses and
other temporary differences have been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses of
RMB1,057,133,000 (2018: RMB753,423,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisation of the
deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are more or less than expected, a material
adjustment of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such an
adjustment takes place. Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in
note 26.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2019, the carrying amount of goodwill was RMB49,447,000 (2018:
RMB49,447,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 20.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 5. SHERRKA
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with i) BFEHABADH
customers
019 2018
q —E-N\EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ¥ ARBT T
Types of goods EmER
Lead-acid motive batteries THERE) ) E
Electric bike battery BEETEEM 17,249,455 19,417,251
Electric vehicle battery and BEESMREKRAS
special-purpose electric vehicle battery EEHEEMW 7,626,285 5,199,516
Li-ion batteries SEEET S 259,132 790,840
Materials include lead and active additives  ##+ (B &85 R EY) 2,046,860 1,540,630
Total wet 27,181,732 26,948,237
019 2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
Timing of revenue recognition ERUWAERE
A point in time F—B52 27,181,732 26,948,237
(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with (i) BFEHNZENER

customers
The Group sells lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion
batteries and other related products to customers. Revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
when the goods have been delivered to the customers’
specific locations (delivery). Following the delivery, the
customers have full discretion over the manner of distribution
and price to sell the goods, have the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bear the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods. The Group generally allows a
credit period of 45 days to its trade customers with good
trading history, or otherwise sales on cash terms are required.
(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers
All batteries and related products are delivered within period
less than one year. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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HE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the chief executive officer, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment focuses on revenue analysis by products.
No other discrete financial information is provided other than the
Group's results and financial position as a whole. Accordingly, only
entity-wide disclosures, major customers and geographic
information are presented. No segment assets and liabilities, and
related other segment information are presented as no such discrete
financial information is provided to the CODM.

Geographical information

Most of the external revenues of the Group during the year are from
customers established in the PRC, the place of domicile of the
Group's operating entities. Most of the Group’s non-current assets
are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers
No single customer contributed 10% or more of the total revenue of
the Group during the both years.
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7.

138

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS

019 2018
—TN\F
B’000 RMB' 000
= ARHFIL
Government grants AT B
— grants related to income (note) — I A B RH B (FsE) 144,100 96,306
— grants related to assets (note 35) — HEESBAmEE (FE35) 37,569 48375
Interest income on bank deposits RITFE A EWA 55,846 37,191
Interest income on loan receivables FEUW B FR A A E U A 14,930 9,434
Interest income on loan to an associate ) — KB = A R B RAF) B A 7,997 4,284
Rental income e WA 6,104 35,722
Sales of scrap materials SHE R 25,197 21,202
Gain on disposal of derivative financial HESTE SR T AR
instruments - 3,310
Others HAh 17,137 18,407
308,880 274,231
Note: Kt
Government grants mainly include various government subsidies received by the Company's BT B F Z 6115 7K 2 AT 8 2 74 BR 2 1B 46 B B AT
subsidiaries from relevant government bodies for various purposes including enterprise BBBEIEE R REER - HERR - RIRIEMHEER
expansion, technology advancement, environmental protection measures enhancement and EmA¥EEZRA 82 ZHBITHY RZF—NFR
product development. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching to —E-N\FZA=1+—H ZFEWBRRERLFHE
these grants and subsidies that have been received and recognised as at 31 December 2019 R A R 0 A 1) AR A B IR TR A -
and 2018.
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8. OTHEREXPENSES AND OTHER LOSSES 8. HipxRHEMEE
019 2018
—E-NF
B'000 RMB' 000
s AREEFIT
Depreciation of investment properties WEYENITE 2,995 2,832
Depreciation of property, plant and EAESWANDZE - BE K&
equipment generating rental income BEITE 1,129 16,001
Donations b=l 5,211 6,192
Loss on disposal of machinery and HEHES M ER i R B 1R
equipment (note) (K3E) 38,748 8,878
Loss on fair value of financial assets at FVIPL 12 AP EFF ABFHN S REE
Z A HEEE 9,809 =
Net foreign exchange losses SN 5 18/ R 3,352 2,376
Others Hit 1,713 9,586
62,957 45,865
Note: HtaE -
During the current year, certain subsidiaries of the Company upgraded their production RINEEF » K G5 THB 2 Gl B 4 ER U EA
facilities to expand production capacity and/or improve production efficiency and hence, EERER B ELEME A BT RRERL
certain machinery and equipment were disposed of and replaced by new machinery and EWIAZTHESRRIEIRA B EEHEBEREER
equipment, resulting in a loss on disposal of machinery and equipment. PR o
9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL 9. RERE (HREE)
019 2018
: —E-N\F
B'000 RMB'000
S AREETIT
Impairment losses recognised on: THEIBEER 2 HERRE :
— trade receivables — EUWE FERFX 156,207 75,170
— other receivables — H b U GRIE 11,613 12,956
— amounts due from related parties — FEUR BE s 5 5RIE 64,629 -
232,449 88,126
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December FEBE_ZE—NFRE-N\F+H
2019 and 2018 are set out in note 45(c). =+ —HLEFEMNREFGEFBIHNME
45(c) °
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. REE LA
019 2018
—E-NF
B’000 RMB’000
R AREBTFT
Interest expenses on: FERAX :
Bank borrowings RITHEE 226,794 253,291
Corporate bond TEESH 34,464 34,923
Medium-term note FEIEE 51,033 51,033
Short-term note EHIERE 951 15,483
Lease liabilities HEBE 800 -
Finance leases BEEE - 1,791
Total borrowing costs BEKAEE 314,042 356,521
Less: amounts capitalised in construction B R ERIBPERMEEE
in progress (13,400) (20,043)
300,642 336,478
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 December BHE_Z-NFT+-A=1+—HILFE &
2019 arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by TEAZEBEXNARE —REER - Wi
applying a capitalisation rate of 5.03% per annum (2018: 5.22% per BEREBERZS0B% (ZT—N\F: FEL
annum) to expenditure on qualifying assets. E5200%) ERNMEEELLRETH -
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11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11. BR¥E AR E
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting): MRS ATAE&FIRR (5T A) T8I & IES =R -
019 2018
< —E-N\F
B’000 RMB’000
Sc ARBT T
Salaries and other benefits costs & M E MK A 1,312,058 1,152,299
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIEF B R 49,480 42,863
Labour cost (note) BTN (FEE) 112,943 209,791
Share-based payments PARR D BEFERS R 54,896 21,247
Total staff costs (including directors’ BT ARZE(BRESHE)
emoluments) 1,529,377 1,426,200
Less: amounts capitalised in inventories W R FEENME R (1,102,413) (989,865)
426,964 436,335
Amortisation of intangible assets A E R 38,315 32,917
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)3 - BiE M REITE 528,074 405,921
Total depreciation and amortisation WE R HARE 566,389 438,838
Less: amounts capitalised in inventories W REEERN &% (352,274) (279,188)
214,115 159,650
Depreciation of investment properties REYENTE 2,995 2,832
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETE 16,110 -
Prepaid lease payments released to FFABEMTENHEERIE
profit or loss - 8,558
Cost of inventories recognised as expense R AR IFEEKA 23,167,807 23,217,375
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN < 7,817 7,655
Research and development costs recognised TR AR S AT RS AR 2N
as expense 797,570 884,914
Gross rental income from investment properties % & Y28 & I A (4,431) (4,253)
Less: direct operating expenses arising from B EEESWARNIREYH
investment properties generating rental BB EELERY
income 1,538 1,872
(2,893) (2,381)
Note:  The Group has entered into labour dispatch agreements with several service Bt : A5 (B 52 22 5K 75 7N 45 B 1R (R 45 TR 7% A AR 7% i 1
organisations providing labour service to the Group. I8 TRE % ©
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. ESRFETHAEME
EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the Directors during the AEBRERNRESLMOMESFBOT :
year are as follows:
Salariesand Contribution
other to retirement
benefit- benefit  Share-based
Fees in-kind scheme payments Total
FeREM BB R 5
e ENEA TR ERNAR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETr ARETT ARETT ARET:R
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_Z-hE+-A=t-HLEE
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Zhou Mingming (note) JEIBRER % A (ffaE) - 1,218 8 562 1,788
Mr. Zhou Longrui A e - 368 - 562 930
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERZL - 368 - 562 930
Mr. Yang Xinxin Lot ik ipte - 1,980 8 562 2,550
Non-executive director: FHTES !
Ms. Fang Jianjun HERELL 350 - - 562 912
Independent non-executive directors: FIFHTES :
Mr. Wang Jigiang TERTE 350 - - 340 690
Prof. Ouyang Minggao LIS 6 350 - - 340 690
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai TRELAE 350 - - 340 690
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGSEE 350 - - 340 690
Total @t 1,750 3,934 16 4,170 9,870
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE_Z-\E+-A=t-HLEE
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Zhou Mingming (note) JEBRER & A (ffaE) = 1216 7 327 1,550
Mr. Zhou Longrui EES e - 366 - 327 693
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERZL - 366 - 327 693
Mr. Yang Xinxin Lot ik iipited - 1940 7 327 2274
Non-executive director: FBTES:
Ms. Fang Jianjun HEELT 350 - 7 327 684
Independent non-executive directors: FIUFHTES :
Mr. Wang Jigiang TEREE 350 - - 163 513
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B A = s 350 - - 163 513
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai TRELAE 350 - - 163 513
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGEE 350 - - 163 513
Total @zt 1750 3,888 21 2,287 7,946
Note: ez

JEIBRBESE 4 TR 2 I TTI AR, - T X AT 5228 2 B
B IR E R EETTARR AT (AR °

Mr. Zhou Mingming is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above also include those for services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

12.

13.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group. The non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as the Directors.

During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group under the share option scheme
of the Company. Details of the share option scheme are set out in
note 51 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
included two directors (2018: two directors), details of their
emoluments are set out in note 12 above. The emoluments of the
remaining three individuals for the year (2018: three individuals) are
as follows:

12.

13.

EERTETHRAEMS (B)

EXFRBTESHERRFRAEETERAR
BIRASEEH 2 HARSM S » EXXA
RERATEZRBIYIFRITESME KRS
EEEERHBMmMA -

TR ETEFRESRAKENRBRE
ARz B SR BRE - ARBK
BN BEN GRS M HRRM TS -

hERESHFALTHHES

FR - ARENAERSHALTEEMEE
E2(ZTEN\EF  MEBEZR) HMeFHEH
REXHER2- FR - BRT=BAL(ZZF
—N\F: ZBADHBENT

019 2018

—F—)N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

R AREEFIT

Salaries and other allowances e K HAMERL 5,612 8,660
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RO FFT SR 24 7
Share-based payments LARR 1 A EERERY 15X 218 262
5,854 8,929
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BE

13.

14.

144

—E-NF+A=t—HILFE

EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

The above employees’ emoluments were within the following
bands:

13.

EERSFATHHE (F)

bEiEEMEEATEHE :

Number of individuals
ANLTEE
019 2018
—E—)\F

Nil to Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") 1,000,000

=% 1,000,000 7% ([ 77T 1)

HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000
HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000

1,500,001 57T 2 2,000,000 7 7T
2,000,001 7 7T 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001 7 7L 3,000,000 7T
3,000,001 78 7T 2 3,500,000 78 JC
3,500,001 78 7T 2= 4,000,000 78 7T

[ |

During the year, certain non-director highest paid employees were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group under
the share option scheme of the Company. Details of the share option
scheme are set out in note 51 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year.

FR - ETUIEENGESFTALIRFESER
REBHRGRIEANA 7 2 B 2ER
BARAE - BRBRET EINFBEN GRS
TSRS o

FR - ARBYENEEIARZSHAL
XANBE - (ERINARR A SR B 1) 42
Bk ERERAR(E - £ BIEBESHEEM

M -

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FRBBIRAXX
019 2018
—E-N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
FS ARETT
Current tax: BNER%H IR -
— PRC enterprise income tax — R EMEH 381,103 259,562
Under provision in prior years BEFEREDT
— PRC enterprise income tax — R EMEH 111 10,574
Deferred tax credit (note 26) EER AR R (s 26) (82,383) (69,934)
298,831 200,202

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25%. In accordance with the “Notice of the State
Tax Bureau of the Ministry of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential
Treatment Policies on Enterprise Income Tax”, New and High
Technical Enterprise is subject to income tax at a preferential tax rate
of 15%. Certain subsidiaries of the Company were qualified as New
and High Technical Enterprises in accordance with the applicable EIT
Law of the PRC and are subject to income tax at a preferential tax
rate of 15%.
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HE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. FRIBFHBAX (&)

Other subsidiaries established in the PRC were subject to income tax
rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 25%). The
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI"), Germany, Hong Kong and other countries had no
assessable profits during the year (2018: nil).

The EIT Law provides that qualified dividend income between two
“resident enterprises” that have a direct investment relationship is
exempted from income tax. Otherwise, such dividends will be
subject to a 5% to 10% withholding tax under the tax treaty or the
domestic law. The Group is currently subject to withholding tax at
10%. During the year ended 31 December 2019, withholding tax on
intra-group dividend amounting to RMB14,360,752 (2018:
RMB37,346,129) was paid by the Group to relevant tax authorities.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

HE _ZT-NAF+-_A=t+—BILFE R
REKHEMHBARMTEHRHREA
250% (ZF— )\ : 25%) - AAE B HNE
BHEBAHES((RBERRES]) - £ -
EEREMEREMRZOKBAR @ £A
WEERERRAE(ZZ—N\F : £) o

TEMBHERTE  MREAEEREBRRE
WIEBRGE] ZENEERBKRERA - &
FEFTISH o BRULASN » ARIBFLTE KAk =
WIERE - REABFEN F5%E10%~FH
REMTEINF o B AT - ANEEER10% T
REMBBNF - BE_ZT—HLFE+ A
=t+—HIEFE  A5EEREEARARM
RERBBAEESREINSENHARKE
14,360,752 70 (ZE— N\F : AR#E 37,346,129
JT) °

AT BB TR A B R E R E
R B BATR AT

019 2018
z < —T-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARBTT
Profit before tax BR Mt AT A 805,486 577,709
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of 25%  %3@ F FT{S R i R 25% =T & /) £ 18 201,372 144,427
Tax effect of income tax deduction granted to  [A]Fff B 2 F14% RO R 3 B L P15 55t
subsidiaries in research and development R R A s &2
expenditure (84,999) (90,040)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PRAIHIF A OB & 11,006 3,634
Effect of preferential tax rates on income BEREREETHEATRA
of certain subsidiaries Ve 49,629 15,779
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERHIBEEENRETE 88,542 76,006
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B 2 B AR Z TR IEE 8
recognised - (4,498)
Tax effect of share of result of associates DIEEE R R FENTIETE 3,235 3,941
Tax effect of share of result of joint ventures DIEEELEXENTIALE 7,324 3,033
Withholding tax on undistributed profits LA R B A m AR D B FER
of PRC subsidiaries TEHFIIR 22,611 37,346
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 111 10,574
Income tax expense for the year FANMEHRAYT 298,831 200,202

The details of deferred tax for the year are set out in note 26.

FRIRTEB IR = BEMNIRE26
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RABER ARBEHERERNRESZTT)
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following BIRA T EURETHE
data:
D19 2018
g —TN\F
B'000 RMB' 000
S5ie ARET T
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings HEREARRBFMNE AT
per share (profit for the year attributable (RRAREE ABGEFEATIE)
to owners of the Company) 561,340 412,714
01 2018
: —T-N\F
000 000
i T
Number of shares Azt Ex B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ Bt &R E AR ZE F| M = HY
for the purpose of basic earnings per share B NEEEE R 1,104,382 1,107,912
The outstanding share options of the Company did not have dilutive AANRATTEZERESAAEEZE-T
effect to the Company's earmings per share during the year ended 31 —NERZZT—N\F+ZA=1+—HILFE
December 2019 and 2018 because the exercise prices of these 2ERABNTEE ST E  NZEEREY
options were higher than the average market prices of the TEBRZMRBEAEE SN ARTIIRMG 2 FEH
Company’s shares for both years. TIHER °
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16.

17.

DIVIDENDS

16. RE

Dividends declared for distribution during the year: A5 #)k 2B IR S,
ZZE— \FREKE
— §HR0.066 BT
T EFREEE

2018 final dividend — HKDO0.066 per share

2017 final dividend — RMB0.062 per share

— BRARE00627T

019 2018
—ZE—)N\FE

RMB’000 RMB'000
R AREFIT
62,388 -
- 68,091

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 of HKD0.084
(equivalent to RMB0.075) (2018: final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2018 of HKD0.066 (equivalent to RMB0.056))
per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of HKD92,747,000
(equivalent to RMB83,083,000) (2018: aggregate amount of
HKD73,122,000 (equivalent to RMB62,388,000)), has been proposed
by the Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the

forthcoming general meeting.

RBEBRE  EFEERBE_T—NF
T+ A=+ BUEFERGTRBAREERE
A% 008478 T (HERARK 0075 7) (ZF
—\F: pEE_ZTE-N\F+=-A=+—-H
LEF IR R AR B & 8% 0.066 7T (FEER
AR 00567T)) * #8584 92,747,000 7% 7T (A8
SN ARBES3,0830007T) (ZE—/\F : &
¥H573,122,000 7% 7T (FBE R A K # 62,388,000
TL)) ' AERAEEEREEFAT LA
R SR o

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BMERRE
Furniture,
Plantand Motor fixturesand Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
& BE
BT BERESE RE  RERRE EIR @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR
cosT BA
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-/\$—H—H 2,020,467 2363235 267,164 228318 1219715 6,008,899
Additions RE 64,090 269,502 71,243 30,925 469,100 904,860
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—Z BN
(Note 49) (PizE49) - 350 - - - 350
Transfers B 218,843 184,962 2601 1,115 (407,521) =
Eliminated on disposals rfisags - (47,126) (16,069) (5532) = (68727)
At31 December 2018 RZE—\F
+-RA=+-H 2,303,400 2,770,923 324939 254,826 1,281,294 6,935,382
Additions NE 79,726 158875 92,846 19,678 263921 615,046
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FRMB LA
(Note 49) (PiE49) - 1,982 198 191 626 2997
Transfers R 93,684 493,042 12,802 4181 (603,709) -
Eliminated on disposals e B 1 4 (175) (114,076) 45,717) (3,446) - (163414)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NF
+=-A=t—H 2476,635 3,310,746 385,068 275430 942,132 7,390,011
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

148

17. M5 - BER&RE (&)

Furniture,
Plantand Motor fixturesand Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
& EE
BT BERESE RE RERRE ERIE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARET:
DEPRECIATION AND FERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—-\E—A—H 457,891 819,005 147,546 134,266 - 1,558,708
Provided for the year ENEE 120657 22722 30075 12467 - 405,921
Eliminated on disposals HE B 8 = (17,080) (867) (3,090) - (21,037)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—\F
+-A=t—8H 578,548 1,044,647 176,754 143,643 - 1,943,592
Provided for the year FREE 123389 309,619 64,791 30275 - 528,074
Eliminated on disposals HER (103) (44.424) (25578) (2,666) - (72,77)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+-A=+—H 701,834 1,309,842 215967 171,252 - 2,398,895
CARRYING AMOUNT FEE
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NE
+-A=+—H 1,774,801 2,000,904 169,101 104,178 942,132 4991116
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—\F
+-A=+—-H 1,724 852 1,726,276 148,185 111,183 1,281,294 4991,790

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into account of
their estimated residual values on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings 4.75%-9.5%
Plant and machinery 9.5%
Motor vehicles 19%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9.5%-19%

Details of property, plant and equipment pledged are set out in note
46.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. Y% - BMER&RE (B)

The Group as lessor

The Group leases out a number of machineries under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 2 years.
None of the leases includes variable lease payments. The
disaggregation of these machinery under operating leases included
within plant and machinery and the reconciliation of the carrying
amount at the beginning and end of the period are set out as below:

FEBEESHEA
AEBERKEEHERHE TS - HE—K
NERINE2F - EHERSWEHEE
Ik - FFFARE RSN EHERT
=5 2 BRAR B HA ) B A R AR [ B 2 BT RR )
o

RMB"000
ARBTFT
cosT %N
At 1 January and 31 December 2019 RZZE-—hF—HA—BEk+ZH=1+—H 6,259
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—H—H 1,599
Provided for the year FARE 1,189
At 31 December 2019 R—ZE—NF+-_A=+—H 2,788
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2019 R—Z—NF+=-_A=+—H 3,471
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BE

18.

—E-NF+A=t—HILFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

As at 1 January 2019

R-ZE—hF—HA—H

18. EHAEE

Carrying amount BRMEE 468,343 10,895 479,238
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—NEF
t=A=+-8
Carrying amount BREE 479,549 15,187 494,736
For the year ended BRBE-ZE—NEF
31 December 2019 +=ZB=+—HIFE
Depreciation charge TEER 11,527 4,583 16,110
Expense relating to short-term leases  E245 HAFH & K FAHAR & X
and other leases with lease terms J7E FA B0 R B 7S a5 2 |
end within 12 months of the date Fi1658E BT 12 AR
of initial application of IFRS 16 AERE) E A SRR A
H 4,717
Total cash outflow for leases (note) TSR @58 () (33,403)
Additions to right-of-use assets ERREEEE N 31,608

Note:  Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease liabilities, short-
term leases, and payments of lease payments on or before lease commencement
date (including leasehold lands). These amounts could be presented in operating,
investing or financing cash flows.

For both years, the Group leases various offices and manufacturing
buildings for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 16 to 116 months. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where its
manufacturing facilities are primarily located and office buildings.
The Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.
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18.

19.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB15,731,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets RMB15,187,000 as at 31 December 2019.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various offices and warehouses under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically
run for an initial period of 2 to 4 years with fixed lease payments.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the property at the end of lease term.

18.

19.

ERAEEE (&)
HERNRGIHZY
s - FHE B EARE 15,731,000 7T £2 48 78

FREEEARK15187000R=—E— N
F+ZA=+—HER - BREBEAFEHAE
EEEZERERIN BERZTEINER
24 HEBETSHAEEEER -

BREM=
AEERGEHERRZEMRERRE -
HEeEABAXN - AEHEE—RIT A2
4% HEMNKEE °

AREE Y ERNABEE L HERINERLE -
THRMBEEEONEEERSENIRE
BitE - BHUTBEFIBREBEERE X
EHARBERRBEZSMROER -

RMB'000
ARBT T
CoST D%
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\FE—H—H 54,900
Addition NE 2217
Exchange realignment PE 5 FE X 256
At 31 December 2018 R—E—N\E+=-_A=+—~ 57373
Addition NE 3,144
Exchange realignment BE 4, e B (189)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—hE+-_A=+—8H 60,328
DEPRECIATION weE
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—NF—H—H 12,180
Provided for the year FREAE 2,832
Exchange realignment PE 5 3 X 34
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+_A=+—H 15,046
Provided for the year FARE 2,995
Exchange realignment bE 54, 8 31
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-hAE+=—A=+—H 18,010
CARRYING VALUES EREE
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NF+_A=+—8H 42318
At 31 December 2018 R-_EBE—N\FE+=_A=+—H 42,327
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19.

152

—E-NF+A=t—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the commercial properties have been determined
by the management of the Group with reference to valuations
carried out by independent professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. The valuer has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation for the property were determined
by direct comparison method based on market observable
transactions of similar properties and adjusted to reflect the locations
and conditions of the subject properties.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in the
prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Group's investment properties and information of the
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are as

19. REWX (F)
BRMELAFEDNAEETEELZ2EER
SEYEEENE L EXABRAEMET
MBERERE - ZRGLEMABSEER
AsIBRBRnHMELUYRETHE -
WMENBEDREN S ERUMENRIBR
RHERERLBORETE - YCIFRABRUR
R RE Y ZE B 4 2 KRR, ©

PSR R T R BB AR T ) -
REE LN ATEE MRS R
Pt BE MM -

RIFEEK - ARBREMENFERAT
EEMRMERIT

follows:
O De b
0 D
N
i [H] 1B =
D00 D00
Commercial property unit located in the PRC 77 H Bl 4 72 FR W) 22 B8 iz 3,815 25,737
Commercial property units located in Germany {37 722 B 1 72 FB 1) 22 B8 iz 38,503 35,092
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19. REWE(E)
Level 3

fair value as at
Carrying 31 December

amount 2018
3
R-Z—N\F
+=ZA=+—8
REE A FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTFT
Commercial property unit located in the PRC 77 Bl A 7 FR W) 3£ B8 i1 3,345 25,819
Commercial property units located in Germany 37 713 B 1 72 R ¥ 3£ B8 iz 38,982 35,234
The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line B Y A B AR A T EE L R EHE
basis at the following rates per annum: E
Commercial property units located in the PRC 6.33% P B AP A 2 BB L 6.33%
Commercial property units located in Germany 5.60% A 1= B A s Y 2 BB L 5.60%
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year. FRWEE A REHEIR -
20. GOODWILL 20. BE
019 2018
—E-N\F
B’000 RMB"000
s ARBTFT
cosT T
At beginning and end of the year RE) R F 4L 49,447 49,447
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BE

20.

154

—E-NF+A=t—HILFE

GOODWILL (continued)
Goodwill of the Group resulted from the acquisition of the
subsidiaries below in the past few years:

BE (%)
7458 B 0 R T 5 9 P M 5 B TR T3
HHEAR -

019 2018

< —E-N\F

B’000 RMB’000

A ARBT T

Anhui Chaowei (as defined in note 54) ZRBE (& RHES4) 14,956 14,956

Anhui Yongheng (as defined in note 54) LK E (FE& R M 54) 9,342 9,342
Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang I RE S XSG (E&EMES4)

(as defined in note 54) 576 576
Jiangsu Yongda (as defined in note 54) LERokiE (EE RMIEES4) 23,524 23,524
Qinyang Libiao (as defined in note 54) OSIE (F % B MisEs54) 295 295
Huzhou Changguang Haotian Power Co, Ltd. MR EE X EIRAR A 7 754 754
Total A=t 49,447 49,447

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill set out above has
been allocated to the respective individual Cash Generated Units
("CGUs") representing six acquired subsidiaries that engaged in
manufacturing of motive batteries or accessories of motive batteries.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, management of the
Group determines that there is no impairment on each of these
CGUs. The basis of the estimation of the recoverable amount of each
of these CGUs and the major underlying assumptions are
summarised below.

The recoverable amount of each of these CGUs has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budget of each of these CGUs
approved by the management of the Group covering a 5-year
period, and discount rate of 13% (2018:13%). These CGUs' cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 2% (2018:
2%) growth rate in revenue. The growth rate used is based on
management’s best estimation on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based
on each of these CGUs' past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount of each of these CGUs to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO RS R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BEEE
Yangzhou
Huaxiang
(as defined Henan

Moll GE SCPS in noteiii) Chaoli Total
BMNER
(B&BR

Moll GE SCPS Wistii)  SUEED st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%TR
(note i) (note i) (note i) (note ii) (note iv)

(MEED) (M&Ei) (&L (BitsEii) (M&Eiv)

CosT D%
At 1 January 2018 and RZE-N\¥
31 December 2018 —A—Bk

—T-\F

+-A=1+—-H 23758 94776 47435 184,199 = 350,168
Acquisition of a subsidiary  WE—RIEAA = - - - 32,969 32,969
At31 December 2019 R-E-hE

+-A=t+-H 23758 94,776 47435 184,199 32,969 383,137
AMORTISATION ok
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-\5—HA—H 8316 4739 2372 7,675 = 23,102
Provided for the year FREE 2376 9477 4743 16,321 = 32917
At 31 December 2018 RZE—\F

+-A=t—8 10,692 14216 7115 23,99 - 56,019
Provided for the year ERREAE 2376 9,478 4,744 18420 3,297 38315
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF

+-A=1+—-H 13,068 23,694 11,859 42416 3297 94334
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF

+-A=1+—-H 10,690 71,082 35576 141,783 29672 288,803
At 31 December 2018 R-Z—N\&F

+-A=1+—-H 13,066 80,560 40320 160,203 - 294,149
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

21.

22.

156

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group'’s intangible assets
comprise:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

the specific technologies and know-how relating to the
production of start-and-stop batteries for automotive
industries and a licence right to use the brand name of MOLL
(as defined in note 23) in the start-and-stop batteries to be
produced by the Group;

the specific technologies and know-how relating to the
battery technology and a licence right to use the patents and
know-how from two independent third parties, Société de
Conseil et de Prospective Scientifique (“SCPS”), a French
company and GE Technology Development Inc., an American
company, respectively;

the specific technologies and know-how relating to lead-acid
battery recycling and lead production together with a licence
for lead-acid battery recycling and lead production through
acquisition of a subsidiary, namely Yangzhou Huaxiang
Nonferrous Metals Co., Ltd. ("Yangzhou Huaxiang”), in 2017.
The licence will be expired in December 2020 and the Group
is in the process of applying a new licence as the Group is now
upgrading the facilities owned by this subsidiary and a new
licence is required pursuant to relevant regulations. In the
opinion of the Directors, the new licence can be obtained in
due course without incurring significant costs; and

the specific technologies and know-how relating to the Ni-Zn
battery technology and a licence right to use the patents
through acquisition of a subsidiary, further details of which are
set out in note 49.

The above intangible assets have limit useful lives of 10 years. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
useful lives.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follows:

21. BREE (&)
RoE-NER-F-NE+ZA=+—
B - AREREEOR

22.

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

YU E HE RNF B A E 2 AR A E R AT
DEENG URAEBRBEEE
REEMFERAMOLLAEEZE(TER
BMoaE23) 2 HFRE

2 Bl 2K B M 4 78 32 58 = 75 Société de
Conseil et de Prospective Scientifique
(Iscps) ( — R & B 22 & ) RGE
Technology Development Inc. ([ GE]) (—
KEBRQF]) BN BB E R
MREZERND  ARERZEFZMNR
BBV

(o] 12 i Pl BB 5t B A E S A AR B R RE A
MEkBEXMAH  ERAN_FT—LFB
BRE-—RMELRF - BFREMNT
ENEEcBERARHMNEND -
1S #E 5 [O We sn B BBt N AR EE 8 O & F
e ZFARR T _2F+_H3
B AR AEEE/RENBARES
BVRRBE T AR - MARIR AR R AR IR BUS
FEFR] - MOANSRE B AR BT
BREETR - BEZREREL AT
MEBEBREEEAKRANERT
G &

SR8 B b BT M) MR B A E R e
M ARERRBKE-RMELQ
RIS A EM R E— %
FBENEE49

taEpEENRERFEHAR - B0
F o REEVEERBHENAERFHE

REELXENER
AEERSEERNREFBOD

019 2018

2 —E—N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

R AREFT

Cost of unlisted investments EEMIRERKA 214,060 203,060
Share of post-acquisition loss DEUEE RSB (41,897) (11,980)
172,163 191,080
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 22. REELENER (H)
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, details of the Group's joint RZE—hEFER_E—NF+_A=+—
ventures are as follows: H AEBEHNESELEZFFEANT :
Proportion of nominal
Country of value of registered capital and
establishment voting power held by the Group
Name of entity and operation Registered capital as at 31 December Principal activity
R+t=A=t-R%5E
RUREE FERMEANEER
BRLE FEER AMER sty LAl EE33 4
019 2018
24 —I-)\%
; %
Changxing Kewei Venture Capital Investment LLP PRC RMB100,000,000 57 57 Venture capital investment
(‘Changxing Kewei ") il AR%10000000070 fXESRE
REMFAZREARER (RENE])
Zhejiang Pulangte Electric Vehicle Co, Ltd. PRC RMB150,000,000 48.33 4833 Technical service of
(‘Zhejiang Pulangte”) R AR 15000000070 new energy vehicles
MIERBEHAEERAT (NHLEHE]) AN
Changshu Huaxing Chuang Yi Technology PRC RMB100,000,000 56 56 Manufacture of new energy
Co, Ltd. .("Huaxing Chuang Yi") HEl AR#1000000007C vehicles batteries
FRER HURNRERAR ((ERA-]) REMEREE
Zhejiang Tulante Energy Storage PRC RMB100,000,000 57 57 Manufacture of storage batteries
Technology Co, Ltd. e AR 1000000007C SEREEN

T ERE RN RARAR

Bejjing Huaxia Green Energy Network PRC RMB10,000,000 58 58 Technology service
Technology Co, Ltd. R AR%100000007C R
I RERREARRRERAA

Hengyang Xinyue Chaowei Supply Chain Private PRC RMB67,000,000 49.25 N/A " Venture capital investment
Equity Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership) HEl AR 6700000070 TR BIFEERE

GG EREMEELERELS AR OE
(BRa%)

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in SEBPE R IFT ARG S M FEHE -

these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the material joint
ventures’ financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

2. REERENES ()

BRASENERSEEENMIEMHEER
FINT o TSR 7 5 B AR RIEE
R BREERRHENEAS S XN KR
RFTREOBREE -

Changxing Kewei RERE
019 2018
—E-N\F
B'000 RMB' 000
R ARETIT
Current assets mBEE 530 4,231
Non-current assets IERBEE 85,280 90,180
Current liabilities pEIN=RE - 21,000

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:

PREENBESEEEATIEAR

Cash and cash equivalents BHEREEEED 530 370
019 2018
—ZE-N\F
B’000 RMB’000
FS 5 ARBT T
Revenue A 12,406 2,111
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income S RFE (BE) k2 EIkES
(expense) for the year (AX)BsE 12,399 (1,826)
Dividends received from Changxing Kewei F R U E R B S
during the year - =
Capital reduction = eNC D - 32,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 22. REEDLENER (E)
Changxing Kewei (continued) RER R (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the it B R B R B B K AR A B S TR FTRERR
carrying amount of the interest in Changxing Kewei recognised in RERERE AR REESR

these consolidated financial statements:

019 2018
—E-N\F
B’000 RMB'000
s5ic ARBTIT
Net assets of Changxing Kewei KRR A& EFE 85,810 73411
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest  Zs£= B &= B} g &9 A #E L 5l
in Changxing Kewei 57% 57%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest RNEBNEER B EZSHEEEE
in Changxing Kewei 48,912 41,844
Zhejiang Pulangte HOLE B4
019 2018
—E-N\F
B’000 RMB’000
KR AREFIT
Current assets MENEE 115,534 98,673
Non-current assets FEREEE 208,274 209,413
Current liabilities mEaE 286,211 236,285
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: tREELRBESEVIEANER
Cash and cash equivalents BEMESEEY 3,810 11,901
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade neeReETeREENES
and other payables and provisions) R SR R H A JE A5 SRIB AN 54 5,000 5,000
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BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 22. REELENER (E)
Zhejiang Pulangte (continued) WL E B4 ()
019 2018
—E-N\F
B’000 RMB"000
R AREFIT
Revenue A 62,354 74,386
Loss and total comprehensive expense FAEEREAERZ B
for the year (34,204) (3478)
Dividends received from Zhejiang Pulangte FRUEUHTT BRI B
during the year - -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the il B S BRI B R 4R A B S R SR PR
carrying amount of the interest in Zhejiang Pulangte recognised in T X BA 4 i 4 25 9 BR T (1 S BR -
these consolidated financial statements:
019 2018
: —E-N\F
B’000 RMB'000
R AREFIT
Net assets of Zhejiang Pulangte WL LRSS EFE 37,597 71,801
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest — ZN%= B34 L & BAFE HOHE A 1
in Zhejiang Pulangte 5l 48.33% 4833%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest INE B O T R R RS AY
in Zhejiang Pulangte REE 18,171 34,701
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HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 22. REEDLENER (E)
Huaxing Chuang Yi FEHEP —
019 2018
—E-N\F
B'000 RMB'000
S AREFIT
Current assets mMENEE 95,787 91,215
Non-current assets EMBEE 38,043 29,025
Current liabilities TENAE 101,607 69,523
Non-current liabilities EMBAE 7,028 =
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: P EERBELSESENTIER :
Cash and cash equivalents BEMhEEEEY 483 3,020
019 2018
—E-N\F
B’000 RMB’000
S AREFIT
Revenue WA 9,845 55,618
Loss and total comprehensive expense FNEE K2 S 425
for the year (25,522) (8,057)
Dividends received from Huaxing Chuang Yi F R UL B EE B Al — A% B
during the year - _
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the it AR B R AN S B B SR TR
carrying amount of the interest in Huaxing Chuang Yi recognised in REMA| — RS EEEE SR
these consolidated financial statements:
019 2018
—E-N\F
B’000 RMB'000
ks ARETTT
Net assets of Huaxing Chuang Yi EBA—NEEFE 25,195 50,717
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest N2 (L 2E Bl A — B9 A HELL )
in Huaxing Chuang Yi 56.00% 56.00%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest NEBNEF A — M BREE
in Huaxing Chuang Yi 14,109 28,402
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BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 22. REELENER (F)
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not ERmMELFERNEELEERER

individually material

019 2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
% ARBT T
The Group's share of loss and total FRAREESHEER

comprehensive expense for the year ZHMAS B (6,161) (4,898)
019 2018
—E-NF
RMB’000 RMB"000
% ARBTFT

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEERZEESERERN
interests in these joint ventures ERRmERAHE 90,971 86,133

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. REFE QT RER

019 2018
] —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
% ARBT T
Cost of unlisted investments RETIRE 2 AR 132,175 161,922
Share of post-acquisition loss D EE1E B (41,048) (30,762)
91,127 131,160
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HE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, details of the Group’s material
associates are as follows:

Country of

incorporation Fully paid-up/
Name of entity and operation registered capital

Bl
BREH REEER HR/EMER
Akkumulatorenfabrik MOLL GmbH & Co. KG (‘MOLL) Germany Euro (‘EUR') 3,966,000
Akkumulatorenfabrik MOLL GmbH & Co.KG (TMOLL]) fH 39660008 7T ([BR7C )
Zhejiang Yuanli Power Technology Co, Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000
IR ENRARAR hEl AERH 500000007
Riyue Huixin (Henggin) Financial Holdings Limited PRC RMB100,000,000

(‘Hengqin’) (note) GlEi AR 100000000 7T

ARES(RE)SRERERAR (RE])(K)
Zhejiang Shidarui Electric Vehicle Co, Ltd PRC RMBB6,000,000
WILERESEARAT L ARE 860000007

The associates of the Group are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

Note:  Henggin has been dissolved in January 2019.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
material associates is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the material
associates' financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

23. REtEQNFES (F)

RZE-—NER_ZE—N\F+t_A=+—
B REBWEARBES QG ZFEBOT :

Proportion of nominal value of
registered capital and voting

power held by the Group as
at 31 December Principal activity
HET-R=t-A%%E
i RERNEE
REREEM LA TEEK
019 2018
TN\
%
34.46 3446 Manufacture of start-and-stop
batteries
HENREH
45 45 Manufacture of new energy
storage system
B RERAR
note 40 Equityinvestment
i R E
311 3721 Manufacture of electric vehicle
REEHE

RERE B L N R AR RDR S AR R A B 7%
¥ o

Wit : BWEER=F—NE—AMH -
BREAEEEZMNHE QR B AR
FHMT - O BE M E MR RIER

FREI SRS E AR B E AR Z QAR
RFTRHOBEE -
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. REE QAR (&)
MOLL MOLL
019 2018
—E-N\E
B’000 RMB’000
R ¥ ARBTT
Current assets mMENEE 129,445 123,079
Non-current assets JEMENE E 89,889 94,651
Current liabilities mENAE 149,222 150,787
019 2018
: —E-N\F
B’000 RMB'000
R ARBT T
Revenue A 541,790 535,599
Profit (loss) for the year FRFE(EE) 4,647 (38,440
Total comprehensive income (expense) FARZERE (FX) 88
for the year 3,169 (38,440)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the _E LK B 75 B R B AN AR S B IS R P RERR
carrying amount of the interest in MOLL recognised in these A MOLL B 25 #Y BR (B ¥ 8K -
consolidated financial statements:
019 2018
—ZT—)\F
B’000 RMB’000
R ARETTT
Net assets of MOLL MOLL #) & 2/ FE 70,112 66,943
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest — ZN$= &4 MOLL &%k & # Lk 51
in MOLL 34.46% 34.46%
Goodwill EES 8,666 8,666
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REBNMOLLIEZSEREE
in MOLL 32,827 31,735
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

23.

24.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material

23. REE QT NER (B)
BERMELERERNBEAREHER

019 2018

q —E-N\%F
L RMB'000
= ARMEFTT

FAREE D HEER N
EHEMAXEE

The Group's share of loss and total
comprehensive expense for the year

(2,519)

019 2018

—E-N\F

RMB RMB'000
i AREEFIT

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REERZ
interests in these associates S AR E

58,300 99,425

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI

TH
The amount represents the Group's equity interests in certain
unlisted entities established in the PRC and the United States of
America measured at fair value.

24, ROFEHFARMZERSENES

TREASERATENE  RPBEMREE
PRILEVE T IE LT B ARHE -
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HE-Z-NF+-A=+—BILFE

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES

25. EER

166

Summary of the loan receivables are set out below:

R E BT

019 2018
2 —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
=t ARETFIT
Chisen Electric Entrusted Loan (note a) ERBRETENR (MizEa) 69,863 75,174
Jiangxi Changxin Entrusted Loan (note b) IARFZFEER (D) - 20,308

Entrusted loan granted to government and ETHEE —REBRERN
a state-owned company (note c) ZREEF (o 59,949 78,949
Other loan receivables (note d) HAt U E R (5 d) 4,669 56,027
134,481 230,958
Less: allowance for credit losses (note e) S EEEEEE (Mizte) - (8,350)
134,481 222,608

Analysis for reporting purposes as: BEREZ DT

Current assets MENEE 129,873 143,659
Non-current assets ERBNEE 4,608 78,949
134,481 222,608

The amounts represent a loan to Chisen Electric Jiangsu Co.,
Ltd (“Chisen Electric”) under entrusted loan arrangement
through CITIC Trust Co,, Ltd. (“CITIC Trust”). The entrusted loan
is secured by property, plant and equipment and inventories
held by Chisen Electric and Chisen Electric Zhejiang Co., Ltd.
(“Chisen Zhejiang”, the immediate holding company of Chisen
Electric), 98% equity interest in Chisen Electric and 100%
equity interest in Chisen Zhejiang, and guaranteed by the
ultimate beneficial owner of Chisen Electric, carrying fixed
interest rate of 8% per annum, and was expired in December
2019.

The Group, together with CITIC Trust, is now negotiating with
Chisen Electric on the settlement arrangement about this
entrusted loan. Based on assessment by the Directors, the loss
given default is low in view of the estimated recoverable
amount from disposal of the collaterals, which have been
stipulated in the loan arrangement and registered and
published in the National Enterprise Credit Information
Publicity System. Therefore, the Directors consider the ECL for
this loan to be insignificant as at 31 December 2019.

The amounts represent a loan to Jiangxi Changxin Power Co.,
Ltd. (“Jiangxi Changxin”) under entrusted loan arrangement
through CITIC Trust. The entrusted loan is secured by property,
plant and equipment and inventories held by Jiangxi
Changxin and guaranteed by the ultimate beneficial owner of
Jiangxi Changxin (together with his spouse), carrying fixed
interest rate of 7.2% per annum, and has been repaid in full in
November 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
 E—T-NF+-_A=t+—HLFE

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

() The amounts consist of:

(i) As at 31 December 2019, RMB56,449,000(2018:
RMB75,449,000) represents a long-term loan to Qinyang
City Construction Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd. (“City Construction”), of which 49% share of equity
is owned by State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission (“SASAC") of Qinyang City.
The loan is unsecured and guaranteed by Qinyang
Qinbei Construction Investment Co., Ltd., a company
wholly-owned by SASAC of Qinyang City at a floating
rate based on the borrowing rate announced by the
People’s Bank of China, and is repayable on a five-year
annual instalment basis from 2016 to 2020. The
counterparty has repaid the loan by instalment in
accordance with the repayment schedule.

(i)  As at 31 December 2019, RMB3,500,000 (2018:
RMB3,500,000) represents a long-term loan to
government of Gangcheng Town, Ningyang County
("Ningyang Government”). The loan is unsecured and
guaranteed by Ningyang County Jincai Investment Co,,
Ltd., of which 40% share of equity is owned by the
Ningyang Government and remaining is owned by
another state-owned entity, at a floating rate based on
the borrowing rate announced by the People’s Bank of
China, and is repayable in December 2020.

(d)  Asat 31 December 2019, other loan receivables are unsecured
and carrying fixed interest rate ranging from 6% to 8% per
annum. Except for a loan with principal amount of
RMB4,608,000 to be repayable in December 2021, other loan is
repayable within 12 months.

() Asat 31 December 2018, a debtor of loan receivable with
carrying amount of RMB8,350,000, which was included in “other
loan receivables” in the table above, was in severe financial
difficult and therefore loss allowance of RMB8,350,000 is charged
against the balance. During the current year, the Group has
written off the whole balance as the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

(0

25. ERER(E)

TREERE

) RZZE—NEF+=—A=+—8"
A R #56449000t( =& — N\
& AR#754490007T) HE% T
WETHMERIRERRERA
AT &R+ E49% % # A
WEmMEAEEEEEERELZE S
(DL mMAEZD#ESR) R
B - BERAEEA - WIS
mbib R EBR A A OO0k
MAEZ2EHREENRR)) (EE
R FBIEFBEARBITAME
FEEERNEGFE  RZT—X

E_E_TF LAFHERFE
EEHHEE - RPHEREE
HEFBRDBEEER

(i) MZZE—NF+=ZA=+—8"
AR ¥ 35000007 (=& —/\&F :
A R #35000007C ) 5% T E 5
SIBWEBUR ([ 5 ET ) &
HER - BERAEKR  WhHE
55 < B & B R A7) (H 40%
RiERZEGERNES 2 T 3D
HE—BEEERER)IEER-
AEZPEARBITAMRZE
EHEEFRAE  WAR-_ZE-F

F+-AEE

o

R-ZZE—hE+-A=+—8  Hih
ERE R AEEA - WiRE T FF =X
6%E%T B B A2 A AR
4608000t ERER T = —4F
+ZREEN HERAR12EA
REE -

RZZE—NE+=-A=+—08 —%
AR 1B A& A R %5 8,350,000 7T K JE U &
HREBAGIALR EMERER])
HEEEREMBEE  BE B%&H
OBk &5 18 H8 455 A R #88,350,0007T ° 7
REE  AEEE2EMBEZES
EH B REE  WEERES KD
SKIH °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

26.

168

DEFERRED TAXATION 26. EILEHIR
The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group and the REFRFERNERNELHIBEEE (AE) X
movements thereon, during the year are as follows: HEEHMT :
Allowance
for credit Fair value
lossesand  Deferred Accrual/ Tax adjustment Withholding
inventories income  provision losses  on assets tax Others Total
FEEE EstRE  BEER BEMN
REEEE EZWA Ve 1| NFEBFE B Hit st
RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—N\F
—A—H 108938 41,645 197,457 58,458 1327 = (985) 406,840
Credit (charge) to profitorloss st A (318 ) 1828 15,398 303 (17,655) 70,667 1,171) - 2392 69,934
Charge to other reserve MNEEtEE - - - - (3,017) - - (3,017)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+-A=+—H~ 124,336 41,948 179,802 129,125 (2,861) - 1,407 473,757
Credit (charge) to profitorloss s+ A (F15 ) 1825 45,724 (495) (4,031) 51,304 108 (8,250) (1,977) 82,383
Charge to other reserve MNEEtEE - - - - - - 1,879 1,879
Acquisition of a subsidiary WHE—RIB AR
(note 49) (BizE49) - - - - (1,657) - - (1,657)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NEF
+=-A=+—H 170,060 41,453 175,771 180,429 (4,410) (8,250) 1,309 556,362

reporting purposes:

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

N BB 53R S B e fE RIRE B R A& AR
DA

019 2018
—E-N\F
B’000 RMB’000
R ¥ ARBTT
Deferred tax assets RIEFIBE E 569,022 477,286
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE (12,660) (3,529)
556,362 473,757
Details of the Group's unused tax losses are as follows: REBREBAMRIBEEFTBNOT :
019 2018
—ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ¥ ARBTT
Tax losses already recognised as ERRRELEHIBEENTIBEE
deferred tax assets 1,098,807 730,204
Tax losses unrecognised for deferred tax assets & AEF: T8 & EE B AR HE SRR T8 65 18 1,057,133 753,423
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BHE

26.

27.

E-NF+A=t—HILFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
The unrecognised tax losses will be expired in the following years:

26. EIEHIE (&)

REER B IREEAR A TFEZRE

019 2018

—E-N\F

B'000 RMB'000

KR AREFIT

31 December 2019 —E-NFt+=-B=1+—H - 50,458

31 December 2020 —E_FEF+_HA=+—H 13,020 13,020

31 December 2021 SIS SIS 47,978 47,978

31 December 2022 —E-—F+=-A=+—H 171,258 171,258

31 December 2023 —E-=F+4+=HA=+—H 125,678 125,678

31 December 2024 —ENF+ZA=+—H 210,280 -
Expire in and after 31 December 2024 (note) R-Z_WHE+—-_A=+—8H

N E & 5 H (Ff9a1) 488,919 345,031

Total 1,057,133 753,423

Note:  According to the newly effective announcement published by the PRC tax authority,
tax losses arising from those entities qualified as New and High Technology Enterprise
can be carried forward for 10 years. Accordingly, the expiry of the tax losses arising
from those subsidiaries qualified as New and High Technology Enterprise is extended
to 10 years.

No deferred tax assets have been recognised in relation to certain
tax losses as shown above due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
RMB3,548,544,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB2,769,168,000).
No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of these
differences because the Group is in a position to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Kiet - RIEF B EB A AT £ BB FEEH
PR B A X S EREATE LR B R IR AT A5
H10F - Bt - (A SHERLEEREZESH
BRAIELRHEEREHELRE10F °

AR BETRRIR AR AR - Et sl
METHRABREARLEHRAEE

R B A R R ERIELER BB BERRD
KA EENRREEZEAEN T —LF
+=A=+—HB4% A AR¥3548544,000 7T
—ZT—)\F: AR¥2769,1680007T) ° M
A2 55 [ A 122 ) i B 2= B A 43 [ 5 S R 72 1]
AR BEEREAETSED - R ER it
EERBERELEHRBALE -

INVENTORIES 27. 78
019 2018
—T-N\F
B'000 RMB"000
S ARETIT
Raw materials B R 317,753 466,804
Work in progress pank LA 1,763,193 1,097,119
Finished goods B o 578,906 599,136
2,659,852 2,163,059
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BE_Z-hFE+-_A=+—RHILFE
28. TRADE RECEIVABLES 28. EWE SR
019 2018
—E N\
RMB’000 RMB'000
S ARETIT
Trade receivables — contracts with customers  JEWE R — B &4 2,253,395 2,310,537
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEa G (432,809) (285,782)
1,820,586 2,024,755
As at 1 January 2018, trade receivables from contracts with R-ZE—N\F—H—B BFAAZEKRE
customers amounted to RMB1,941,109,000. S8RF Z%/\E?f@] 941,109,000 7T, °

170

The Group generally allows a credit period of 45 days to its trade
customers with good trading history, or otherwise sales on cash
terms are required.

AEE-RARFEHERIFNRZEFIEM
45 ANEEHE] - BRIHE AR SETT

The aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for credit RBREHRERE - IREEEEREROE
losses presented based on the goods delivery date, which is the WE ZERR KRR D ITIZRZE B H (BN A
same as revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting period REHE)Z25mT
is as follows:
019 2018
—T)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
R ARETTT
0-45 days 0-45 H 745,712 1,034,670
46-90 days 46-90 H 423,196 284,160
91-180 days 91-180 H 216,261 409,937
181-365 days 181-365 H 344,693 240,876
Over 1 year 01 F 90,724 55,112
1,820,586 2,024,755
Before accepting any new customer, the Group internally assesses EEMETAEFELR - NEES AT EZ
the credit quality of the potential customer and define appropriate BEXFNEEER  YETHEHANEER

credit limits. Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
receivables and considers the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out in note 45(c).
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(E_T-NEF+A=T—HBIFE

29. RECEIVABLES AT FVTOCI 29. BAFEFTAEMZEKRZWER

The balance represents bills receivables held by the Group which is
measured at FVTOCI since the bills are held within the business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Details of pledge of bills receivable for the Group’s secured bank
borrowings are set out in note 46.

In addition, the Group has discounted certain bills receivables to
banks and transferred certain bills receivables to its suppliers to settle
its payables through endorsing the bills to its suppliers. These bills
are issued or guaranteed by reputable PRC banks with high credit
ratings, therefore the Directors consider the substantial risks in
relation to these bills is interest risk as the credit risk arising from
these bills is minimal. Upon the discount/endorsement of these bills,
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks (i.e. interest risks)
of these bills to relevant banks/suppliers, therefore Group has
derecognised these bills receivables.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's maximum exposure to loss
and cash outflow, which is same as the amount payable by the
Group to collecting banks or the suppliers in respect of the bank
issued bills discounted and bank issued bills endorsed, should the
issuing banks fail to settle the bills on maturity date, of which
amounted to RMB719,120,000 and RMB191,727,000 (2018:
RMB214,300,000 and RMB547,285,000), respectively. All the bills
receivables discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers of the
Group have a maturity date of less than one year from the end of the
reporting period.

IE

BREASEMTAER A ERARLMEE
Wt BMEERE  REASZEERERE
BRBUBMAEHNRERERLESCHEEES
BENEBEATRE  MRENASRE
ERAERAREERSEONBHOMNK -

BREAEEREAERASENA EITR
TEEZFHITEN K FE 46 °

AN - AEEEMRITERE TRKRERR
BRAMEHERSERRREHERERE
TREZBEANERNFTIE - ZERER
BERULAREEFRZPRRITHETX
BR BEFRBERZEIERNAID A
BRANEERE AZERRELNEERR
i - RZERBRIR BEK - AREE
# % FRIERBAE S Bk (RIS Rk ) 83
BERBRT HER  BEAKEEKLE
ERZERWER -

RZZE—NF+—A=+—8 ' RZIRT
REEIHEREBEZE  A5EEEAZES
BERRERHENSTRBERNAEE BIRTT
BITHEBBERE S ENZ BB EHUER
RITHEEFNEMEZT DR ABARE
719,120,000 & A R # 191,727,000t ( = &
— N5 A R #2143000007T & A R #
547,285,0007T) - RIEHR - XEBAAED
BIRGIRITHREEE THERNERZEZ
BERHIR—F o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

30. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 30. ENRIERHEMEWKIE
An analysis of prepayments and other receivables is as follows: TE SRIE S B At R R IB ) S AT AR T
019 2018
—B-N\F
B'000 RMB’000
R AREFIT
Other receivables H fib fE U 118 635,182 750,570
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEIEEE (50,639) (39,381)
584,543 711,189
Prepayments to suppliers TE I it FE P A SR IE 836,278 562,741
1,420,821 1,273,930
An analysis of other receivables is as follows: H At B KIBAITLAT -
019 2018
—E-N\EF
B'000 RMB' 000
R AREFIT
Value-added tax recoverable A Y [B] 32 (B & 359,279 438,690
Income tax recoverable AUk el AT S FR - 14,207
Interest receivable & U R B 5,462 2,535
Prepayments to employees m{E BB RIE 37,061 39,002
Prepaid service fee B AR & 31,626 25,620
Deposits for borrowings (note i) BERRE (fEi) 55,962 45,802
Other deposits Bz s 46,018 29,699
Amount due from a shareholder of B —REEPE —RBIREBEHRIE
ajoint venture (note i) (P i) 20,000 20,000
Amount due from a former associate (note iii) ~ JEUL — 5% AT H & A 71238 (M s i) 13,200 26,400
Others Hib 66,574 108,615
635,182 750,570
Notes: Hiaz
(i) The amount represents the deposits placed in the independent financial institutions (i) TEEEGFHRE B HHEN RS  RBERAME
to secure borrowings from these financial institutions. HEIEIR (B B 1EELR »
(ii) The amount is unsecured, carrying interest rate of 4.7% per annum and with maturity (i) DEERBEE  IRFEFE47%518 - B+ =1E
of 12 months. A
(i) The amount is secured by the former associate’s property, plant and equipment, (i) BRI E RN Y - BERRIEERA
interest-free and repayable on demand. BERBEERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

30.

31.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
Analysed for financial reporting purposes:

30. AMNFERHEMEWKIE (&)

SRS BT

019 2018

2 —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

i AREEFIT

Non-current JEBNEA 65,795 47433
Current BNHR 1,355,026 1,226,497
1,420,821 1,273,930

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out in note 45(c).

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Restricted bank deposits represent the Group's bank deposits
pledged to banks to secure certain facilities granted to the Group by
banks.

The restricted bank deposits carry market interest rate of 0.30% per
annum to 1.65% per annum (2018: 0.30% per annum) as at 31
December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, bank balances and cash comprise cash and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less
which are held with banks and carry interest at prevailing market
rate arranging from 0.30% per annum to 1.35% per annum (2018:
0.30% per annum to 1.35% per annum).

Most of the Group's bank balances and cash and restricted bank
deposits are denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible
currency in the international market. The exchange of RMB is
determined by the Government of the PRC and the remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restriction
imposed by the Government of the PRC.

31.

ERHEE—_Z—NGFER_ZE—N\F+=A
—t+—BUFEHEMERZIEZRETEZ
FEIE I EE45(0) °

ERHEBRTERRBRITEHRRES

RBHIRITFFIEAEEE R TRITART
T AERRITAAKRERLE TRENE
& °

R-ZB-hAE+-_A=+—8  ZREIHET
FEFIR ISR EF030% 2 FF165% (=
T—)\F : BF030%)5F 5 o

R-ZB-hFE+-—A=1+—8 " RT&#HK
WELHBREL RRERNHE A=A ARNNE
HATERAERK - BTN ERTT - IR E R
MR EBGF0I0%EFF135%(=ZF— N\
F : FF030%EFF 135%) 5T 8 °

REDAKBEORITESR LIRS - UEER
HIRITEREZUAREE MARER
TAIRBERTZ EERLBNER Bk
HTERAEE  MEEESELTBEA
P BB B e A0 SNE PR B P AR 8L o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

32. TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade
purchases and ongoing costs. The Group normally settles its trade
payables within 30 days (2018: 30 days) from the goods receipt date.

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the goods

receipt date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

32. EREZERX
ENBSEREEAERNOTSERRSE
RN - ZEE MR HKE B E#E308 (=
T—N\F :308) NEEENEIER -

RS BERE - BNESRFIZWE A
MR DATEAT -

019 2018

—E-N\F

B’000 RMB’000

K% AREFT

0-30 days 0-30 H 1,324,838 979,624
31-90 days 31-90 H 432,133 591,483
91-180 days 91-180 H 246,518 317,701
181-365 days 181-365 H 151,117 116,996
1-2 years 1-24F 166,620 21172
Over 2 years 00 F 25,570 30,831
2,346,796 2,057,807

33. BILLS PAYABLE

The aged analysis of bills payable presented based on the issue date

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

33. BERHEiE
R EHAGE R - A EEEE D HENEE
BT :

019 2018

—TN\EF

B’000 RMB"000

R ARMETFTE

0-90 days 0-90 H 535,529 98,370
91-180 days 91-180 H 748,310 1,046,918
181-360 days 181-360 H 143,718 -
1,427,557 1,145,288

All the bills payable are of trading nature and will mature within one
year from the issue date.

174  Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Annual Report 2019

PIAERNRIEHBER ZEE A KRN EL B
R —FREIH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RO RS R MY 5

I\

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

34.

35.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 34. HtWENFIEREFTEH
An analysis of other payables is as follows: EMENAZELWTIT
019 2018
—E-N\F
B'000 RMB'000
e AREEFIT
Accrued payroll and welfare fEstE € RiEF] 187,028 168,868
Other tax payables H fth fEIH1 I8 266,322 476,286
Dividend payable to a non-controlling i —KMB AR —%5
shareholder of a subsidiary FEIE IR IR R A AR B - 26,344
Interest payable FESE R B 38,526 45211
Deposits received from distributors and others #5885 78 &2 H b 75 W ER ) 38 & 312,596 233,812
Accrued commission EET A< 113,569 109,637
Accrued transportation cost FEFT 3K AR 58,074 78,103
Accrued utilities FEEt/KEE 69,157 63,659
Accrued other expenses JEET EAb 2 240,824 246,164
Other Hi 24,263 25,171
1,310,359 1,473,255
DEFERRED INCOME 35. IEZEWA
Government
grants
BT BN
RMB'000
ARETIT
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 275,050
Additions NE 57,549
Released to income (note 7) S AUA (BEE7) (48,375)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\F+-_A=1+—H 284,224
Additions NE 32,842
Released to income (note 7) AU A (FIEE7) (37,569)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hE+-_A=+—8H 279,497

Deferred income arising from government grants represents the
government subsidies obtained in relation to the acquisition of land
use right or equipment of certain subsidiaries of the Company,
which were included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as deferred income and credited to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term of the land use right or the
useful life of relevant equipment.

K B IR AT HE B R FE WA SE AU IB A A B
TP B 2 B Y - 3 18 PR AR SRR P IS BV B
FE) - RERE MR R AR AR R
A W LABARIEDS £ it i A 2 AH B S AR RE
R ABHY AT A A HART A B2 -
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36.

37.

176

WARRANTY PROVISION 36. RERE
019 2018
—E-NF
000 RMB' 000
R AREBTFT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BERENDNA :

Current liabilities meaE 494,402 535,253
Warranty
provision
RERE

RMB’000

ARBTT

At 1 January 2019 RZE—hE—H—H 535,253
Provision for the year FRNEAE 620,652
Utilisation of provision ) ARE (661,503)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AE+-_A=1+—8 494,402

The warranty provision represents management’s best estimate of
the Group's liability within fifteen months’ warranty granted on
motive battery products, based on prior experience for defective
products.

R7E

BHEENEBTRARER  ~AKEEXE

BHE N EME MM+ AE A REMASE

BEM&EMR -

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 37. BHEE
f De be At 31 December
019 2018
: RZZE—N\F
£ sl +—A=+—H
000 RMB'000
R AREFIT
Current: BNER :
lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries #SE&E) 1M - 42 BEFE
and other related products R EAth ¥E B 2= o 680,331 578,037

Revenue of RMB511,537,000 (2018: RMB707,518,000) recognised in
the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities, which
was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the
year. No revenue recognised in the current year relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

37. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 37. BHEEE)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract HERNEHNABSBETEN M HE
liabilities recognised are as follow: UK
lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and SEREN D E i - $EEE 7=t & H b 4E
other related products ER
The Group sells lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and AEBRBFIHEMBRE NSNS 8BTS
other related products to customers. The Group generally allows a & H A AHREE W o NEE A HEE
credit period of 45 days to its trade customers with good trading B SEFPIRMHE4sBNEEH - TS
history, or otherwise sales on cash terms are required. In addition, ENIRSETT - N KEEBHERETE
the Group may require certain customers to pay deposits in advance FREXMEZE N ER SR EE RS
and to fully settle the remaining balance before or upon delivery. Bt & -
38. BORROWINGS 38. fBE
019 2018
—E—)\F
000 RMB’000
R ARBTT
Secured borrowings (note i) BEAEE (KD 1,634,033 2,155,613
Unsecured borrowings EIEREE 2,456,567 2,998,832
4,090,600 5,154,445
The borrowings are repayable as AR FEMEEMNEE (FEi)
follows (note ii):
Within one year —FR 2,512,185 3,555,691
More than one year but not exceeding —E A BT BIBRE
two years 830,529 807,754
More than two years but not exceeding MEL B ERTE
five years 747,886 791,000
4,090,600 5,154,445
Less: Amount due for settlement within W AR —FAEELZS)
one year and shown under current RRB B ENZIE
liabilities (note iii) (B xiii) (2,571,185) (3,761,691)
Amount due after one year —F & E| BRI FRIE 1,519,415 1,392,754
Total borrowings BEE
— at fixed rates — ER 2,404,154 3,753,253
— at floating rates — 2B 1,686,446 1,401,192
4,090,600 5,154,445
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38.

39.

178

NF+ZA=+—HBIEFE

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(i) Included in total amount of secured borrowings, the Group’s bank borrowings of
RMB60,990,000 are also guaranteed by the non-controlling shareholders of the
subsidiaries of the Company.

(ii) The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements.

(iii) As at 31 December 2019, borrowings of RMB59,000,000 contain a repayment on

demand clause and therefore are presented as current liabilities.

Fixed interest rate borrowings were charged at the rates ranging
from 1.98% to 7.88% per annum (2018: from 3.40% to 6.90% per
annum) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Interest on RMB borrowings at floating rates is calculated based on
the borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of China.
Interest on HKD borrowings at floating rates is charged at 2.75% over
3 months Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate. Floating interest rate
borrowings were charged at the rates ranging from 4.05% to 5.79%
per annum (2018: from 4.75% to 5.23% per annum) for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Details of pledge of assets for the Group’s secured bank borrowings
are set out in note 46.

SHORT-TERM FINANCING NOTE AND MEDIUM-
TERM NOTE

SHORT-TERM NOTE

On 26 April 2018, Chaowei Power issued an unsecured short-term
note in the PRC with a principal amount of RMB300,000,000 and a
term of 270 days. The coupon rate of the short-term note is 7.00%
per annum and the effective interest rate is 7.46% per annum.
Chaowei Power has repaid in full in January 2019.

MEDIUM-TERM NOTE

On 16 October 2017, Chaowei Power issued an unsecured three-year
medium-term note in the PRC with a principal amount of
RMB700,000,000. The coupon rate of the medium-term note is 7.00%
per annum and the effective interest rate is 7.34% per annum.

As at 31 December 2019, an aggregate amount of transaction cost
totaling RMB1,525,000 (2018: RMB3,558,000) was included in the
balance of medium-term note, and will be released to profit or loss
as finance costs using the effective interest method over the note
period.
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40. CORPORATE BOND

41.

On 14 August 2014, Chaowei Power issued a six-year term corporate
bonds (the “Corporate Bond”) in the PRC with a principal amount of
RMB600,000,000. The interest rate of the Corporate Bond is 7.98%
per annum for the first three years up to 13 August 2017. At the end
of the third year, on 13 August 2017, the bonds holders have a right
to redeem all or part of the Corporate Bond to Chaowei Power at its
face value and Chaowei Power has a right to adjust upward the
interest rate of the Corporate Bond from a range of 1-100 basis
points (both fingers inclusive). The Company has provided an
irrevocable guarantee on the entire principal amount and interest of
the Corporate Bond. On 13 August 2017, the Corporate Bond holders
have decided to redeem part of the Corporate Bond from Chaowei
Power amounting to RMB182,196,000. The remaining portion of the
Corporate Bond keeps at the same interest rate and will mature on
13 August 2020.

As at 31 December 2019, an aggregate amount of transaction cost
totaling RMB812,000 (2018: RMB2,112,000) was included in the
balance of corporate bond, and will be released to profit or loss as
finance costs using the effective interest method over the bond
period.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

40. EES

R-ZE—MENA+IA  BEERRHH
BT RS E A AR 600,000,000 7C.2 75 F £
TEEHF([BEEH] - EEBEHFE=-FH
FERRAE7R8% HE - ZE—+tFNA+=
Bt - RE=ZFXK R=ZT—+tFNA+=
B E5FEAGRZAERBHERERD
2EHBOEESES  MBRBEREE LA
TEBHHFE  UNF 1102 (B8
EBHF)BR - ARG EREEESHZEE
REEEFERETTHE ZER - RZF
—tFENA+Z=H EEEFEEARER
BHERELDBOCERGLS  BEAREK
182,196,0007T ° (¥ EHFEBRE D #EIFIER
FEREBR-_ZE-_ZFN\A+=HFH -

R-ZB—AFE+-_A=1+—8 EEHE
HBEEALARKR12000T(ZF—/\F :
AR#211200070) 2 R B KALEE - Wi
REFHBERERMEE - (EAREKAR
T AIBE e

1. BAFEFABENESRMEE

019 2018

—E-N\F

B’000 RMB"000

K ARBTFT

— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — EE/E FTHRARES 151,779 6,427
— Unlisted managed investment fund —FLEMERREES - 60,000
151,779 66,427

The listed equity securities and unlisted managed investment fund
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, details of which are
set out in note 45(e).

ERARSZRIE LM ERREESRIEL
BUHEER NV ENE  BRFBERHE

45(e) °
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42. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

The details of the Company’s share capital are as follows:

42, RPER/RAER
ARARERAFEBMT

Number of shares

Shares capital

R EE [N
UsD’000
FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of United States dollars &% 0.01 27T ([T ]) BT BA%
(“USD") 0.01 each
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018~ W=-_Z—\F—H—H »
and 31 December 2019 —E-NF+ZA=1+—AHK
—E—hFE+=—B=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EERTRHRE :
Ordinary shares of USD0.01 each Fh%001 ETH T RAX
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 RZZE-—NF—H—H"
—E—N\E+=-_A=+—H 1,107,911,979 11,079
Shares repurchased and cancelled FRRER K HER D
during the year (3,785,000) (38)
At31 December 2019 R=ZE—h&+=-A=+—8~ 1,104,126,979 11,041
RMB"000
ARBTT
Presented at 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—BHEER 74,961
Presented at 31 December 2019 RZZBE-NETZA=+—HEER 74,704

180

During the year, the Company repurchased its own ordinary shares

ARARERNBBEBBRARSMARIDA

through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows: BOE B Tmikm T
No. of ordinary
shares of Aggregate
Month of repurchase USDO0.01 each Price per share consideration paid
gk 0.01%T
BE A4 ZEREE BRER e RERE
Highest Lowest
RE 45
HKD HKD HKD'000 RMB'000
BT BT FABT FHBT
January 3,750,000 3.05 273 10,803 9,231
—H
February 35,000 3.05 3.03 106 90
—A

The above ordinary shares were cancelled on 5 June 2019.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company's listed securities during the year.
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43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 43, BE ZBIfiEL B2 YR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from TRFVNAEBREZBSELEZEE(RE
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. HESKIIEREBEES) - gt EEBTE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash EHABERRERENAKRAESAEZERN
flows were or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s EESGSReRERT I EARME TG
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing HEenREaNaE -
activities.
A -3 G il 9 ]
Borrowings 5 5,154,445 - 5,154,445 (1,074,845 - 11,000 - 4,090,600
Short-term note EHRE 299,930 - 299,930 (300,000) - - 70 -
Medium-term note REZE 646,331 - 646,331 - - - 2,034 648,365
Corporate bond PEEF 415,692 - 415,692 - - 1,299 416,991
Dividend payable toanon-controling  FERf—RKMBAR—4
shareholder of a subsidiary R 2 RS 26,344 - 26,344 (31,488) 5,144 - - -
Dividend payable RS - - - (62:388) 62,388 - - - -
Lease abilfies HEAME - 10,895 10,895 (4,839) - 8,875 - 800 15,731
Amounts due to related parties [EfEERE 7R - - - 17,046 - - - - 17,046
Interest payable [EfIFIS 45211 - 45211 (316,524) - - 309,839 38,526
6,587,953 10,895 6,598,848 (1,773,038) 67,532 8,875 11,000 314,042 5,227,259
At 1 January Financing Dividend Interest At 31 December
2018 cash flows claimed expenses 2018
RZZ-\%F RZE—) ¢
—A—R REHTRE RECEN MERX TZA=1-
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARMTE  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR
Borrowings e 5,201,863 (47418) - - 5,154,445
Finance lease BEHE 75,000 (75,000) - - -
Short-term note BHRE - 299030 - 900 299930
Medium-term note PHRE 644,298 - - 2033 646,331
Corporate bond rEEH 41439 = - 1,300 415692
Dividend payable to a EA—RIBLR—%
non-controlling shareholder FERBRELRE
of a subsidiary = (45,640) 71984 = 26,344
Dividend payable ERTRE (68691) 68,691 =
Interest payable FERIHI 2 29376 (336453) - 352,288 451
6,364,929 274172) 140,675 356,521 6,587,953
BEBHERARAR / 201943 18]
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45.

182

—E-NF+A=t—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which mainly
comprises bank borrowings, corporate bond, medium-term note,
short-term note, net of restricted bank deposits and bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part
of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt.

44,

EchEREE
AREEELE L IARB AR A BLHE
@ ASEEECEBRRATE B
REHBAL R - A% E OB ERRIIE L
FEBRTE -

AEENEARBRIEFES  ETEER
BRTTEE  bEEF  THRE BHE
B MBRXBRHRITERLRRITEHRLIR
T URARBEEARGEER(ETEE
EETBRAREHR) o

EEERIEREM - (ERRH B
5 BEERELRAREEE AN A
B REEBORBER  AEEBEBE
(R, ~ BRI B LA DA R B T3 1B
R EHEREALE -

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited  /

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 45. $@T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) @I AEER
D19 2018
A =
B’000 RMB'000
R AREFIT
Financial assets TRMEE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) BRAFEF AR
(B RAFEFAERE)

— Mandatorily measured at FVTPL — RHE AT EF AER 151,779 66,427
Financial assets at amortised cost BB HN AT EN S REE 5,096,821 7,026,497
Equity instruments at FVTOC| BAFEGTAEMEE

WasriEm T A 3,500 10,722
Receivables at FVTOC| BAFEGFAEMEE
g 25 B pE W SR8 1,401,425 634,864
6,653,525 7,738,510
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost BSHAAR 9,813,588 10,550,482
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, receivables at FVTOC|, financial assets
at FVTPL, loan receivables, trade receivables, other receivables,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts
due from/to related parties, borrowings, trade payables, bills
payable, other payables, corporate bond and notes. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices.

(i) Foreign currency risk management

The Group has certain foreign currency bank balance,
cash and bank borrowings denominated in HKD, USD,
EUR and Canadian Dollar (“CAD"), which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

(b)

45. TR T A (&)

TREMREEBHRBEK

AEBEZIZeRIABERATE
AR EEEENERTAR  BA
FAERT A K fth 2 T e H) U GROR
BAFEFABGENERMEE  BW
R BUE SRR - EhEKHIR -
ERHRTER - RITEHEES
FEd FEISRARE T RIE - BB - BN
BHERR - EBNRE - HHEMF0R
CEEFMEER - SR TANFEBR
EHfEAL - BZESH T ARBN
RpeEmERR(E¥ERR - FXE
aREMERRR)  EERRNKRE
B Ak - BRRBIEZSREROEEK
;T - EEBEEEMERARR
% BRER AR EREE NS

5 ERE
AEENEHEREMAEAINEESR -
MEREREREBDOSREAR

) SMNEEBREE
AEBBEETABRL X K
TR INERTT (7T ) FHEA SN
WIRTTHER R REITEE
SASEESMNER LR - AEE
B B Il 5T SN EE SO IR © A
- EREERMNERAR Y E
NEEREZBE TERIER

[T
ZoN
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. €T B (/&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SEEKEERMNRBE(E)
(continued)
Market risk (continued) 5 E B ()
(i) Foreign currency risk management (continued) () SMNEREREEE (&)
The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency RIREHA A RBF - RN EE LASMNEE
denominated monetary assets at the end of the AEMESEERTEZY W
reporting period are as follows: i
019 2018
—E-N\F
B’000 RMB"000
S AREFIT
Assets EE
HKD BT
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB RIS 21,764 26,443
usD ET
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 22,106 9,320
EUR BX T
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 9 1,948
Amount due from related parties JFE U BB 5 08 19,442 19,209
Loan receivables FEWE K 4,608 4,608
Liabilities afE
HKD BT
Bank borrowings RITHEE 40,474 67474
CAD MEXTT
Bank borrowings RITEE - 14,910
UsD =
Bank borrowings RITEE 206,996 =
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

184

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in HKD,

USD, CAD and EUR against RMB.

The Directors’ assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rate is 5%, 5%, 5% and 5%
for RMB against HKD, USD, CAD and EUR respectively
(2018: 5%, 5% , 5% and 5% for RMB against HKD, USD,
CAD and EUR respectively), which is also the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally

to key management personnel.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

(i)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

For a 5% (2018: 5%) weakening of RMB against HKD,
there will be a decrease in the post-tax profit for the
year of RMB564,000 (2018: Decrease RMB1,539,000 the
post-tax profit) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the other
equity for the year for a 5% (2018: 5%) strengthen of
RMB against HKD.

For a 5% (2018: 5%) weakening of RMB against USD,
there will be an increase in the post-tax profit for the
year of RMB1,317,000 (2018: increase RMB350,000 in the
post-tax profit) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the other
equity for the year for a 5% (2018: 5%) strengthen of
RMB against USD.

For a 5% (2018: 5%) weakening of RMB against CAD,
there will be a decrease in the post-tax profit for the
year of RMB280,000 (2018: increase RMB559,000 in the
post-tax profit) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the other
equity for the year for a 5% (2018: 5%) strengthen of
RMB against CAD.

For a 5% (2018: 5%) weakening of RMB against EUR,
there will be a decrease in the post-tax profit and other
comprehensive income for the year of RMB311,000 and
RMB725,000 respectively (2018: increase in the post-tax
profit and other comprehensive income for the year of
RMB966,000 and RMB960,000 respectively) and there
would be an equal but opposite impact on the post-tax
profit and the other equity for the year for a 5% (2018:
5%) strengthen of RMB against EUR.

45. TR T A (&)

(b) EREMREERNHRBE(E)

G Ek ()
) SMNEEBREE(E)

BRE DT (&)

i AR EBITREN(ZF
— N\ :5%) + FAKRTEFE
R 2 A R 5640000 ( = &
—N\F  BRERFBRD AR
1,539,0007T) : i AR HAETTH
B (ZF—\F :5%) ' FK
BREEFEREMmERR S HER
HEBERANTE -

WMARBEETERER(ZZ
—\F :5%)  FARKRFEFE
% 1En A R#¥13170000( =&
—N\F : REBFIEEMARK
350,0007C) : fil A R H XA
B5%(ZF—/\F :5%) FA
BB FE R E R R IR
S ERAMNTEE -

i AR E Mt E%(ZF
— N\ :5%) + FARTEFE
R  A R 280000 ( = &
—\F : BREEZBFBEmMARE
559,0007T ) : fw A R H T A
BEsu(ZF—\F :5%) " FK
BREEFEREMmERAE R
HEBERANTE -

M AREEBITEREN(ZZ
—)\F :5%)  FARKRFEFE
REMEmEEES BB AR
#5311,0007T & A R ¥ 725,000 70
ZE-N\FBRBEEFBERE
fib 2 @ W =5 5 B8 A R
966,000 7C & A R # 960,000 7T )
i NRE BT HAER( =
—)\F :5%)  FARKRFREFE
RE iR e HIRESE AR R

=
RIF2 -
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45, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk (continued)

(if)

186 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited  /

Interest rate risk management

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to its fixed-rate loan receivable, loan to associates, fixed-
rate bank borrowings, corporate bonds and medium-
term notes. The cash flow interest rate risk of the Group
relates primarily to the restricted bank deposits, bank
balances and cash and variable-rate bank borrowings.
The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The Group's cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of borrowing rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group's RMB
denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For
restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash
and variable-rate bank borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis points
increase or decrease in interest rate on restricted bank
deposits and bank balances and cash and a 27 basis
points increase or decrease in interest rate on variable-
rate bank borrowings are used which represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
changes in interest rates.

Annual Report 2019
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

(if)

(iif)

Interest rate risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher/lower
for bank balances and cash with all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2019 would increase/decrease by
RMB1,944,000 (2018: RMB3,101,000).

If interest rates had been 27 basis points higher/lower
for variable-rate bank borrowings with all other variables
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the years
ended 31 December 2019 would decrease/increase by
approximately RMB3,217,000 (2018: RMB2,706,000).

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL. For
equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the management of the
Group focus on investment in batteries industry sector
where the management has extensive experience.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date. For sensitivity analysis of equity securities with fair
value measurement categorised within Level 1, the
sensitivity rate is increased to 30% in current year as a
result of the volatile financial market.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 30% (2018: 30%) higher/lower, the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2019 would increase/
decrease by RMB34,149,000 (2018: increase/decrease by
RMB1,446,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of
equity securities measured at FVTPL.

45. TR T A (&)

(b) EREMREERNHRBE(E)

G Ek ()

(i)

(iii)

T % 2 i B HE (48 )
BRRE DT (48)
HIBITHBMIRESFIR EF T
FR10MEE S - MATA HMh 8
BAE AAEEREE-T
—NE+-A=+—HIEEH
BRI EFBEEEm R AR
1944000 (ZZFE—NF : AR
3,101,000 7T) °

fif) 2 BIRITEBEFE EF TR’
27 B2 - AT H b2 B 45

& BIAEEREE_T—H
F+_A=+—HILFENKRH
BREERD IEMHARE
3217000t (ZFE—N\F: AR
& 2 706,000 TT) °

H M EE R R
AEBRKRER N FE A Es
8 A AR 8 75 T [ W X AN (B A
Rk - INEEBHERXZAMBER
RERE BN FEFT A B at
ENBRAESFMS  AKEEE
BEETREEHEEAREERLR
BB THITE o

BURE DT
BREDMERRE B HEROK
REBRRERETE AP B/E—
M2 B EFENRAFSH
REASTME @ HRERHIHK
B AFEHERELXRLEAE
30% °

ftEREAE R T A ER EF T
k300 ( = ZF — )\ : 30%) * H
IR AT AR A BB AN FE 5
AFEEE BE_ZT—LF
+-A=t—BILEENKRTE
MEBEMN B ARE
34,149,000t ( = & — )\ F : 1%
hn/m A AR #E 1,446,000 7T) ©
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. €T B (/&)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (c) EEREENBESTG

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's counterparties EERBIERASERISEFRERETT
AHNETERASEHRUBELN
Rk REBEHEMNEERREZR
BREKZE SRR BAFEFAEM
EREEMERGRIE - Eib R FIE -
FEUE 5K - FEUR BEEE 5 R - R
RITIFR - WITEHRLIRS o

default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, receivables at
FVTOCI, other receivables, loan receivables, amounts due from
related parties, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and
cash.

REFARBREEERR AEEEZ
AEEEEZE N ELHTAKHE
ZEERBRE - REORBRANE

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its
operation management committee to develop and maintain
the Group's credit risk gradings to categorise exposures

according to their degree of risk of default.

[E\B 3 4R -

The following table shows the Group's credit risk grading TRITASEEHESHEENEE
framework in respect of financial assets: [R\Be FEARAELE -
Internal credit Other financial
rating Description Trade receivables assets subject to ECL
HittERRREE
RS E R B FE E 5 R EBENESREE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
the contractual payments are not past due or Not credit-impaired
within a reasonable period since due dates
KER RHEHERLRRE  BEAONKKREIBH SHRBEEEFE— NEAEBEEER
SAEZH B A EHEA BEERE
Fair risk There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
risk since initial recognition through Not credit-impaired Not credit-impaired
information developed internally or external
resources
e BRABRINBERAEERSHNEE SHRBEEEE — 2PEBEEEE—
K2 B ¥4 R IE KR N BEERE BEERE
Substantial risk There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
EDNEN A BEBBRRNEECFEERNE SHRBEEERE — 2PRHEEEEE—
EEERE EfEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtorisin ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery
A BREBEBRTEBABABREMR - M % & FE M 3 1% & M

AEEEBEREE WL R
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HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

45, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. @ T A (&)

FE R RERT L ()

(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (c)
(continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's
financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment:

TRAVASEANGBRAEEEHR
MEREEMEERNEERR

Internal Gross carrying
31 December 2019 Notes credit ratings 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
R-ZB-N#F
+T=HA=+—8H M ABEETR REARZHEHAEEESRE HEREE
RMB’000
AR¥ T
Trade receivables 28 Note Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 2,130,296
W E 5 R M =E THAREEEE (BEER)
Note Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 123,099
M=t EHAMEEFE (BEEERE)
2,253,395
Loan receivables 25 Low risk 12-month ECL 64,618
ERER 1K /2L B2 12EAAHEEESE
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 69,863
BEXRER 2HAMEEER (BEEERE)
134,481
Other receivables 30 Lowrisk 12-month ECL 222,173
Hib FEU IR 1K /LB 12EAAHEEER
Fair risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 13,200
PEE 2HANEEFE (BEERE)
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 40,530
EXRER 2HAMEERE (EEERE)
275,903
Amounts due from 50 Lowrisk 12-month ECL 182,617
related parties KR b NEAEHEESE
FE WR BE B 5 FRIE Fair risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 162,885
hEE 2HANEEFE (BEERE)
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 43,850
BEXRER >HANEEFE (SEERE)
389,352
Receivables at FVTOCI 29 Lowrisk 12-month ECL 1,401,425
RAVEFAEMBEE 1K /LB 12EAAHEEEER
W 2 B PE R IR
Restricted bank 31 Low risk 12-month ECL 633,339
deposits
ZRHBIBITFER 1K /2L B2 NREARBEESE
Bank balances 31 Low risk 12-month ECL 1,958,428
RAITHE R 1K R B 12@AABREERE
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BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment

(continued)

45. @M T A (&)

(0 FERBRKBEFMG(E)

Internal Gross carrying
31 December 2018 Notes credit ratings 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
R=ZZE—N\F
+=-—A=+—H Mz REMEEFTR  2EAXZHBEHEEERE RRE(E
RMB'000
ARETT
Trade receivables 28 Note Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 2,270,017
FEWE 5 BR X FaE > HITEEE B 518 (BEERE)
Note Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 40,520
ks 2 HFEEEEE (BEEERE)
2,310,537
Loan receivables 25 Low risk 12-month ECL 230,958
JEWE K 1K =g REABEREEEE
Other receivables 30 Low risk 12-month ECL 257,143
H e W kIR {livE 1218 AFE B E E R e
Fair risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 20,000
e > HFEMEEEE (BREERE)
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 20,530
EWNE 2 HEEEEE (BEEERE)
297,673
Amounts due from related 50  Lowrisk 12-month ECL 385,491
parties
JE K Ak 5 k1B 16K B 1218 AFE B E E EE
Receivables at FVTOCI 29 Low risk 12-month ECL 634,864
BRATEFAEMEE 1K [ R2EAEREEEE
W2 ) FE W kIR
Restricted bank deposits 31 Low risk 12-month ECL 1,159,844
R FIRITIE K R B 218 AEEREEEE
Bank balances 31 Low risk 12-month ECL 2,975,507
RITHEER 2 B 1218 AR B BB 1A

Note:  For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for the debtor in
severe financial difficulty, which are assessed for impairment individually,
the Group uses a provision matrix with appropriate groupings to assess ECL
on trade receivables collectively
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

45, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. TR T A (&)

(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (c) fEEREBERBETMN(E)
(continued)
Trade receivables FEWE Z R
Before accepting any new customer, the Group internally EENEAFEERH  AEBE R
assesses the credit quality of the potential customer and T EZBERFNEESE UET
define appropriate credit limits. Management also closely BAENEERE - EEENBZER
monitors the credit quality of trade receivables. In this regard, EREZFRFANEEEE - LM E

the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade receivables, with exposure spread over a large number
of counterparties and customers.

The Group performs impairment assessment of lifetime ECL
on trade receivables. Except for the debtors in severe financial
difficulty, which are assessed for impairment loss individually,
the Group uses a provision matrix with appropriate groupings
to assess ECL on trade receivables collectively. The provision
rates are based on debtors’ aging because trade receivables
consist of a large number of customers with common risk
characteristics and their aging are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms.

The following provision matrix details the risk profile of trade
receivables. As the Group's historical credit loss experience
show significantly different loss patterns for different customer
portfolio, the provision for loss allowance based on debtors’
aging is further distinguished between the Group's customer
portfolios of different risk type. The estimated loss rates are
estimated based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

EERRAKEZEERRE XER
1K e

AEBEZEWEZERYEEERR
BAKTZER - BRARDDERZ
BARGHTREF -

AEEZEMEREEEEHERE
SERFCETREN G - REREEY
IR IR 18 75 (B B 7T 0R0 (B 5 1R =T
s REBEERAESED A EE
EREHELEZERNBHREEEE
EITRBNE - BEXRTDEREBA
MkE  RAREWEZRAAHUE
REHBHRRBRIFIER TP ATAEX
HERRATRRRERESOEREER
PrERN &8N -

51388 s AR ek 5 B M B 5 TR R A R
BN - AR ASENBEEEBE
RBRRRTREFEGNEEEAR
EEXRER  REBEBARKT RN
EEBEE - TRAKETRRARE
AMEFPHESIMARD - et EER
DERESABRFRABEMEH
BLEARELGE  URER L
E RN KL ) L AT RE 1 B BHE
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BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. ©RT A (&)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (continued) () FERKRBENG (&)
At 31 December 2019 (RMB'000): RZE-NF+ZA=+—H(AR¥
FE) -
0 0a
Od Ove
0 AN 2190 N f
=RE REET B B e
Primary market customers (note)  Weighted average expected creditloss rate 1.21% 7.08% 26.30% 100.00% 12.38%
—BmRge (M) METSRREEERR
Total gross carrying amount 138,654 33,532 1,863 19,409 193,458
FEEER
Lifetime ECL (1,678) (2,373) (490) (19,409) (23,950)
PHEBEERR
Subtotal 136,976 31,159 1373 - 169,508
Nt
Secondary market customers (note) - Weighted average expected credit loss rate 1.34% 9.09% 36.79% 100.00% 131%
ZBmRER (M) METHRSEEERR
Total gross carrying amount 703,987 339,548 82,839 12,538 1,138912
FEEGR
Lifetime ECL (9,399) (30,869) (30,478) (12,538) (83,284)
PHEREERE
Subtotal 694,588 308,679 52,361 - 1,055,628
Nt
Others Weighted average expected creditloss rate 1.53% 13.39% 63.43% 100.00% 25.38%
iff METSRREEERR
Total gross carrying amount 342,593 255,315 101,150 98,868 797,926
FEEGR
Lifetime ECL (5,249) (34,199) (64,160) (98,368) (202,476)
HRHEERR
Subtotal 337,344 221,116 36,990 - 595,450
It
Total 1,168,908 560,954 90,724 - 1,820,586
h
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HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. TR T A (&)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (continued) (c) fEEREBERBETMN(E)
At 31 December 2018 (RMB'000): R-ZZE-NFt+-_A=t—H(AR%
Fie) -
QOver 90 days,
Within 90 days within 1 year 1-2 years Qver2 years Total
(not credit- (not credit- (credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired)
ORA  BRK15A 1508 Bf
(BEERE)  (BGEAE)  (CRERE)  (ERERE) it
Primary market customers (note)  Weighted average expected creditloss rate 121% 9.08% 3031% 10000% 1162%
—fmsER (Hi) METSRREEERR
Total gross carrying amount 165970 101,607 20,746 18097 306420
FEEER
Lifetime ECL (2008) (9227) (6,288) (18097) (35,620
PHESEERE
Subtotal 163962 92380 14458 = 270800
It
Secondary market customers (note) - Weighted average expected credit loss rate 121% 11.68% 4457% 10000% 460%
ZgmnER (Hi) METHRBEEERE
Total gross carrying amount 923887 141,540 27,567 10775 17103769
FEEGR
Lifetime ECL (11,168) (16532) (12,286) (10775) (50761)
PHEREERE
Subtotal 912719 125,008 15,281 = 1,053,008
It
Others Weighted average expected credit oss rate 121% 1345% 67.9%% 10000% 18:48%
iff METSRREEERR
Total gross carrying amount 25114 500795 79258 34661 859828
FEEGR
Lifetime ECL (2,965) (67370) (53885) (340061) (158881)
HRAEEER
Subtotal 242149 433425 25373 = 700947
It
Total 1,318,830 650,813 55,112 - 2,024,755
h
Note:  Primary market customers consist of the manufacturers of electric bikes, HiiE : —RTEEFBEEBETERER M
while secondary market customers consist of customers in the replacement RIS EFPBEERE ) ETSE
motive battery market. e
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-—NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (continued)
In addition, as at 31 December 2019, debtors of trade
receivable with carrying amount of RMB123,099,000 (2018:
RMB40,520,000) are assessed for ECL individually and loss
allowance of RMB123,099,000 (2018: RMB40,520,000) is
charged against the balance.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

(c)

45. TR T A (&)

FEER KRR ENE (&)

N R=F—hF+=—A=+—8 -
FEREE A A RE 123,099,0007T (=&
—\F : AR #40,520,0007C) 2 fE U
BZEFEBAREANTEEHREES
B WEZESTBREEREARE
123,099000t( = F — \F: AR
40,520,000 7T) °

TRETERZEGEE T AR EU
BEEREHMEREEERZE -

approach.
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
2HENEEFE ZHRNGEEFRE
(BEERE) (BEERE) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETT ARETTT
Asat 1 January 2018 R=E-\E-A—H 83,136 153,242 236,378
Changes due tofinancial instruments RN —F—BHAS#HIE
recognised as at 1 January: FEE
— transfer to credit-impairment —EREEEERE (72459) 72459 =
— impairment losses recognised —ERRREESE - 1761 1,761
— impairment losses reversed —BREREESE (10677) (25184) (35,861)
— write-off —HsE - (25,766) (25,766)
New financial assets originated TERENEREE 109,270 - 109,270
As at 31 December 2018 R=B-N\E+=B=1+—-H 109,270 176,512 285,782
Changes due to financial instruments ~ R—HA—A®ERAERTA
recognised as at 1 January: e
— transfer to credit-impairment —EREEEEERE (95,128) 95,128 -
— impairment losses recognised —ERRAEEE - 86,907 86,907
— impairment losses reversed — BRERBEEE (14,142) (325) (14,467)
— write off — W5 - (9,180) (9,180)
New financial assets originated HEBENCREE 83,767 - 83,767
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-hAEt+-A=t+—-H 83,767 349,042 432,809
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HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

45, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. £ T A (&)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (continued) (c) EERMFEBEENG(E)
Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are mainly FEWE GRREEREESH TEHRN ¢
due to:

[
1l
o
11}
1l

D00 D00

Trade debtor with a gross carrying amount 42 BRI {8 /& A B 5 82,905,000 7T A

of RMB82,905,000 defaulted and B HEB AR ENWEERE

fully impaired - 82,905
Settlement in full of trade debtors with 4B BR I {E & A R ¥5 10,856,000 7T

a gross carrying amount of B 5 EBANBEEERE

RMB10,856,000 - (10,856)

2018
—E-)N\F

Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL

EHEHEREERLEMNORD)

Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired
BEERE BiEERE
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

Settlement in full of trade debtors with 4 BR B & A R ¥ 25,184,000 7THY

a gross carrying amount of B 5 BB ANBEEEREA

RMB25,184,000 - (25,184)
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is EEERBETNEBSARRESZNR K
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial EE RO AT gERF - PIANEE A BIE
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. B EABRERT  AEBE S
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has EWE G - REBEE RES ALK
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. The Group has taken BUA R {TE) B U BTN IR -

legal action against the debtors to recover the amount due.
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45, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. @ T A (&)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Loan receivables

The credit risks associated with loans receivables is mitigated
because most of them are secured by equipment and
inventories and/or guaranteed by third parties as disclosed in
note 25.

The Directors estimate the estimated loss rates of loan
receivables based on historical credit loss experience of the
debtors as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged by
the customers to the loan receivables. Based on assessment
by the Directors, except for an debtor with carrying amount of
RMB8,350,000, which was fully provided impairment loss in
previous year and was further written off during the current
year, the loss given default is low in view of the estimated
recoverable amount from disposal of the collaterals. Therefore,
the Directors consider the ECL for loan receivables to be
insignificant.

Other receivables and amounts due from related parties

For other receivables and amounts due from related parties,
the Group has applied the general approach in IFRS 9 to
estimate the loss allowance. The ECL on other receivables and
amounts due from related parties are assessed individually
based on the counterparties’ current past due exposure, past
due history, and taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort.

Other receivables

For other receivable, the Group has recognised ECL of
RMB11,613,000 during the current year, which is mainly due to
a debtor with gross carrying amount of RMB20,000,000
defaulted and was transferred to credit-impairment.
Meanwhile, the Group wrote off other receivables of
RMB355,000 as the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. €T A (&)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (continued) (c) EERMFEBEENG(E)
Amounts due from related parties FEURBE R 7 5k 2E
The following table shows the movement in ECL that has N ER 5N BB U B B 7 TR IR R R A
been recognised for amounts due from related parties: TEHEEEEE
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
2 HITEH > HEH
1218 A A EEE#R EERBE
FEBR (EEERE) (BEERE) et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT
As at 1 January and R-ZZ—N\F
31 December 2018 —A—BRK
+=A=+-8 - - - -
Changes due to financial Rn—HA—B#%ER
instruments recognised as SRIT HER
at 1 January: &S -
— Impairment losses recognised ~ — B HEAR{E
i - 41910 17,498 59,408
— Transfer to credit-impaired —EREE
EERE - (13,155) 13,155 —
New financial assets originated FIREN S @
BE 5221 - - 5221
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZB—-I&F
+=HA=+—H 5,221 28,755 30,653 64,629

The lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) of RMB28,755,000
recognised during the current year is mainly due to the
contractual payments of a loan to an associate are more than
30 days past due, while the lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) of
RMB30,653,000 recognised during the current year is mainly
due to significant financial difficulty of an associate.

NEEERzE=HBEHREESE(&EF
ERE) AR 28755000 T EHP
M —XEE QBB R E LT HEHER
TBA30K - MAFEER 2 2R
FEEEBE(EEERE) AR
30,653,000 T F Z AR — KB E R RH
o BR E B R 2 o
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45, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. @ T A (&)

198

(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (continued) (¢ EERMREBENG(E)
Receivables at FVTOCI B A FE AR ME E K 5 E RS
5
As at 31 December 2019, other than the balance of receivables R-E—NAF+-_A=+—8" Kk
at FVTOCI whose carrying amounts best represent the HEZERRMEGRR=EERRD
maximum exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum BN TFE T A H A 2w UES A e U sk
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the THEERRIN - NE B A GRS E S %18
Group also include issuing banks fail to settle the bills that = EERRIINBIEEITRITR
have been transferred to collecting banks or suppliers through e BRI IT L EREIIR A S
discounting the bills to collecting banks or suppliers with full HERENEE  MENDEBRER
recourse as described in note 29. TR ER 17 Bk 1 B 7 Y 2= 4% (40 BT 5E 29 B
) o
The Group only accepts bills issued or guaranteed by WAZEENEKRE ZER A& H
reputable PRC banks if trade receivables are settled by bills EEIBRERI 2P BRITEITIE
and therefore the Directors considers the credit risk arising RERE  WESRAERAFETTA
from receivables at FVTOCI as well as the endorsed or EmembkammERRERESESN
discounted bills is insignificant. AR EBEEEERBITTER -
Restricted bank deposits/bank balances FREIRITIES RITE R
The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds AEEHGBETRABESHNEER
which are deposited with several banks. However, credit risk B MABEHFRRZERT - A
on restricted bank deposits/bank balances is limited because i ZREIRITFERRITEBRZE
the counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings ERBAR BEEHTABERIF A
and the Directors consider the ECL for restricted bank SEEFRNRT MEERAXR
deposits/bank balances to be insignificant. HRITER RITERNBHEEES
BIWRER o
(d) Liquidity risk (d) REELRER

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings from time to time.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

45. @M T A (&)

Liquidity risks (continued) (d) REEELERE (&)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To ZRBEMNERAESHIRESIT o MF]
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the EREaRZETE  MEHEREFL
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end RITBESESRFRHES o
of reporting period.
Weighted otal und
average ounted 0
interest 0 6 mo 6 g
rate demand 0 0 0 0
il 68 A
T = - 6-1218 A =A% BIHE
% RMBO RMB00O RMB00O BOOO  RMBOO0 BO00 BOOO  RMBIOQO
At31 December 2019 RZE-NE
tZA=t-A
Non-derivativefinancial ~ #fi4SRER
liabilities
Fied-ate bankborowings R TEE 508 59,000 538,160 1331674 549,998 23,442 - 2502274 2,404,154
Variable-rate bank borrowings 2831715 S 49 - 410287 370817 352,149 680,516 - 1813769 1,686,446
Trade payables EREZER - 591,590 1,755,206 - - - - 234679 2,346,796
Bils payable ERZE - - 1427557 - - - - 141551 1421557
Other payables BN S - 64791 565770 226,48 - - - 857000 857,009
Amounts due to related parties  FE {47 7008 - 26,270 - - - - - 26,270 26,270
Lease labiltes HEGE 566 1,516 2,204 2,965 4,820 4,363 1808 17676 15731
Corporate Bonds %65 831 - - 45145 - - - W15 416991
Medium-term Notes ):E 734 - - 695,500 - - - 695500 648,365
743,167 4,699,184 3,078,549 906,967 708,321 1,808 10,137,996 9,829,319
At31 December 2018 RZB-NE
tZA=1-A
Non-derivativefinancial ~ Ffi4£RERE
liabilities
Fiedrate barkborowings ~ EEBTEE 550 - 2009910 041918 47428 51374 S 3RTIAD 373053
Variable-rate bank borowings 28 H{7EE 497 206000 32603 254914 398529 300470 - 148593 1401192
Trade payables EREZFEH - 483013 157479 - - - - 057807 2057807
Bills payable ERZE - - 145088 - - - - 14588 114588
Other payables HhERFE - 60614 529204 211849 - - | WV (VLY
Amounts due to related parties  EfIRERE 7 3UE - 2932 - - - - - 29232 29232
Short-term note RHZE 746 - 301388 - - - - M 29930
Corporate Bonds bXES 831 - - 19365 451,145 - - 40510 41569
Medium-term Notes THRE 734 - - B9 695500 - - B9 64630
778859 5,986,697 1,561,195 2019432 551,844 - 10898027 10550482
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. €T B (/&)

(d)

Liquidity risks (continued)

Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the "on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted
RMB59,000,000 (2018: RMB206,000,000). Taking into account
the Group's financial position, the management of the Group
does not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The management believes that such bank borrowings will be
repaid after the end of the reporting period in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements and accordingly, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows of these bank borrowings will amount
to RMB64,684,000 (2018: RMB231,744,000), details of which are
set out in the table below:

(d)

REES RS (&)

B e EREBIGFNEER L5 8
DITET A TEEREE ] ZRHERER -
RZZBE-—NFE+ZA=+—80 " &%
BITERENATRACRESEAAR
¥ 59000000C(ZFE—N\F : AR
206,000,0007T ) ° &£E EANEE 2 B 75
MR AEEEEEBRARITHEITE
HEMERAMBEEFTOKSIRE - B
BERGEEBRITEEBRREHR
BIEE R TE A TEEE KB HE
2 At Z5RTEENEAE KT
B &R BEE B AR 64684000
T(ZZ—\F : AR %231,744,000
TL) * BAERR TR

Weighted otal una
average ounted 0
interest 0 g
rate demand 0 0 0
T i
Eos el EEREE ok e
% RVB 000 RVB 000 RMVIB 000 RMB 000 RMVIB 000
At31 December 2019 R=B-1%
TZB=t-H
Non-derivative financial iTEHAR
liabilities
Fixed-rate bank borowings with ~~ AEZREREZ
arepaymentondemandcause  ESBHTRE 428 - 1,263 2526 59,632 64,684 59,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

(d)

45, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45, SRIT R (&)
Liquidity risks (continued) (d) REEELERE (&)
Weighted Total undis-
average counted Total
interest On  6months 6-12 1-2 25 c&sh arrying
fate demand orless months years years flows amount
i 6fEA AR S
TONE  EEXER FUT  6-12{ER 1% XF  REER  AkKAEE
% RMB000 RMBI000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB(000
ARETT ARBTR ARMTT AREBTR ARETR ARMTRT ARETR
At 31 December 2018 R-2-N\E
tZR=1-H
Non-derivative financial FELRaE
liabilities
Variable-rate bank borowings with - AEEREBER
arepaymentondemand cavse~ FERIEE 497 - 4137 177489 50118 - 23174 206000

(e)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair value of certain financial assets.

Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The management of
the Company has delegated a team, which is headed up by
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Where observable
inputs are not available, the Group also considers to engage
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation, if
necessary.

CEEL-DEEERIS I L
ZiEHFRTR - TR TANS
EAREE -

(e) ERMTIAMNDFEFE
LHERAEBNAEES TE/RME
ERNRFEREEHR -

AEBETERMTAZAFENE
DMEM S HmE Mg - ARAREERED
RIRAARBMEAERENER
NEFEERAFENES HERM R
B ARE -

Bt AFER  AEEERESRIE
ATNERYBEARMA] ABENGEE
Rt ERTE RAEREET
BERGABBYLRATIERE AR
B MEZMESABERBAZRE - 0
BLE AEETEERRBF=
BEROEERMETEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

45, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. RIT A (&)
(e) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (e) EMIEMNAFEE(E)
(continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial RBEAEMEEZ N FETENEE
EtHREERTHEEBNAFE

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis
Fair value as at
RATRHZATE
Financial assets December 2019 31 December 2018 Fairvalue hierarchy  Valuation technique and key inputs
2\ EN\§
SHEE A=1+-H tZA=+-B ATEER fhERTRTEEAE
Financial assets at FVTPL Listed equity securities Listed equity securities ~ Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
BATEG A BENERAR in Hong Kong: inHongkong: RETRNEARE
Manufacturing industry Manufacturing industry
RMB151,779,000 RMB6,427,000
RERLWZRARS | | NEA LD LRAES
REx REx
AR#151,779,00070 AEE64270007T
Financial assets at FVTPL NA Unlisted managed ~ Level2 Quoted prices in the over-the-counter markets
RAVESABENEREE TER ivestmentfund: =% SRR
RMB60,000,000
FLmER
RERS:
AR 600000007
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HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

45, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. @ T A (&)

(e) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (e)

(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (continued)

ERTANAFENE (B

REEEMEEZ N FETEBHFE
BEMEER EMEEN A FE ()

Fair value as at
RUTEHZ AT E
Financial assets December 2019 31 December 2018 Fairvalue hierarchy  Valuation technique and key inputs
- 2\E

EREE A=1-H tZA=t-B ATEER fhERER T EBAHE

Equity instruments at FVTOCI Unlisted entities: Unlisted entities: ~~ Level3 These investments are not publicly traded in an open market.
BATETAE MR EYRY RMB3,500,000 RMBI072000 = Therefore the fair value of these investments were determined

BRIA FLTER: FLMER: with reference to theissue prices for recently isued shares of each

AR%3,500,000 7 ARE107220007C

Receivables at FVTOCI Bills receivable: Bills receivable:  Level2
BATEAL B EENES RMB1,401,425,000 RMB634864000  H=#
FEUERR EHEE RUEE :

AR1,401,425,000 AR 6348640000

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during 2019
and 2018.

investment or discounted cash flow method, taking into
consideration any adjustment factors between the date of recent
issuance and the year end.

AERELERLRTER S  Bit - ASRANATES
ZERENHH T RONERBRIRREREE €2
BT RHE R F RN SR AR -

Adlightly increase in the adjustment factors would result in a
significant increase in the fair value measurement of these
investments, and vice versa.

HEREEM LIRS ASREZATENERRLT R
LTk e

Discounted cash flow method was used to capture the present
value of the expected future economic benefits to be derived from
the ownership of these receivables at FVTOCI
WRReREENGRAASRA TR AL 2 Bl
MK NERAREE R R E -

R-E—NEN - N\F F—H
R B EEE -
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 ZE=F-NF+ZA=+—RHLFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

204

(e)

(continued)

(e)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements:

45. TR T A (&)

ERMTANAFENE (E)

E=MATE B2 HE -

Unlisted equity investments

classified as equity

instruments at FVTOCI

PERRATFEFTA

HitZEWREH

EHEIAZ

FEETMRAERE

RMB’ 000

ARETR

At 1January 2018 R=F-N\F—A—H 14,694
Transfer to interest in joint venture (note) BRENG S EER () (4,400)
Exchange realignment BEE 3, 428
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-NF+=A=+—H 10,722
Total losses in other comprehensive income R Efth 2 Uz 2 Eii8 42 58 (8,922)
Purchases S 1,700
At 31 December 2019 R=-B-AF+=A=+—-8 3,500

Note:

Pursuant to the agreement entered into during the prior year, the Group

obtained joint control over an entity that previously account for as equity

instruments at FVTOCI, therefore the relevant amount was transferred to

interest in joint venture.

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. £ T A (&)

(e) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (e) TRMTAMNATEE(E)
(continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments that are not WHRELETMEEZ LN FETEN
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value REFLHT AR FE(I1EBKEN
disclosure are required) FE)
Except as detailed in the following table, the Directors BRTIRTFLEN EFRE 586
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and BB ERPEERNSHEER SR
financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial BEMNEAEEEANFERS

statements approximate their fair values:

December 2019 At 31 December 2018
d z SN —F— \F+ZA=+—H
g Carrying
0 air value amount Fair value
i [H] 1B = /E\EEE /D\EFTE
B’000 RMB’000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000

L s ARBTTE ARETR

Financial liabilities S@as
Corporate bonds and TEEFK

interest payable FEATFI 2, 428,135 453,292 429,667 454,427
Medium-term notes and REAZEE K

interest payable FESFI B 656,554 699,554 695,332 694,897
Short-term financing notes %2 AR E Z 15 [

and interest payable FETRIE - - 315,018 319,346
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BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

46. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 46. EEIKH
At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group's assets were R AL R AREBIKBETEEES
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The RITR T AKERTRENER - REWE
aggregate carrying amount of the assets of the Group pledged at B R AEBBEEGHEEMAREAEN
the end of each of the reporting periods is as follows: T
D19 2018
4 —ET—)\F
B’000 RMB'000
R ARMTF I
Buildings EES 1,058,086 765414
Construction in progress EETE - 60,288
Land use rights/right-of-use assets TH{ERE ERELE 181,318 336,094
Receivables at FVTOC BATES AR MEEKERN
FEM R IR 1,049,328 288,365
Deposits for borrowings EE%Re 55,962 45,802
Restricted bank deposits ZRRAISRITIEK 633,339 1,159,844
Note: At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged part of equity interests in HiaE « RIFEHAR  NEFECEBFHBHEREFER L
Chaowei Power Group Co., Ltd. and the entire equity interests in Henan Chaowei a] B &8 17 AR #E K il B B L R A R 2 7] 2 EF AR
Power Co, Ltd. in order to obtain bank borrowings. B AERGRITEE -
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HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

47. OPERATING LEASES 47. RE&HESE
The Group as lessee REBEAEBEA
2018
—ZE-N\F
RMB"000
ARBTT
Minimum lease payments paid for the year under RERNRBEMESLHEHES A
operating leases for premises =EBEER K 24,863
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for R E R - NEBRET A REHLE
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating FAE AT 2t 2R i o B0 2R 2R S AR A & A< ke
leases which fall due as follows: BT
2018
—ET-N\F
RMB'000
ARETTT
Within one year —F R 4416
In the second to fifth year, inclusive FoEFRF (PREEREMT) 8,892
After five years hE® 352
13,660
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group KEHENTEASEREE TYERSK
for certain of its properties. Leases are negotiated for terms of 1 to 6 ME MNT—FEZNFHER -
years.
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BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

47. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 47. KEHE (R
The Group as lessor rEBEAEBEA
The Group leases out various offices and warehouses under REERKESHELBAZER A AZEREE -
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically HeBEASZN HE—RVFPEH2E4
run for an initial period of 2 to 4 years with fixed lease payments. F . HENRABEE -
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: THERKNRERENZEOT :
D
000
Within one year —F R 2,880
In the second year F_FR 2,880
In the third year E=FNRA 2,880
In the fourth year FEINEA 1,440
10,080
The Group had contracted with lessees for the following future N &R B R GR A B TR R AR A & RET
minimum lease payments: A5
2018
—E-N\F
RMB'000
AREFTT
Within one year —FR 10,384
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_ZERE(RREEREMT) 11,739
22,123
48. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 48. BXREIE
D19 2018
: —T-N\F
B’000 RMB'000
= ARETFT
Contracted but not provided for: B ET4BE AR B
— acquisition of property, — BB 2 - R Rk A
plant and equipment 74,412 62,516
— acquisition of intangible asset — WEETEE 7,847 8212
— capital contribution to associates — MEEAEEE 23,200 42,625
— capital contribution to a joint venture — [ REEEFEFE 22,000 =
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49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 49, WHEKIEB A A

Acquisition in 2019

In June 2019, the Group acquired 60% equity interests in Henan
Chaoli New Energy Company Limited JA] 3 &8 /1 #1858 A BR 2 A
("Henan Chaoli”) from a third party for a consideration of
RMB18,000,000. Henan Chaoli is principally engaged in the batteries
manufacturing and was acquired so as to continue the expansion of
the Group's principal business. This acquisition of business has been
accounted for using the purchase method.

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition
are as follows:

RZE-NFHKE

REZB—NFARA AEBER—ZE=ZFK
BB AR ER AR (DIEEN])
60% & #E - KB A AR 18000,0007T ° AR
BAOFTERBREE N - WERHIKEAEE
BEAEENEZHEL o 2REBWIE T
RUEE AN ©

REBERRANEERBENATFEND
T

Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REE 2,997
Intangible assets mAE 32,969
Inventories FE 1,558
Other receivables H b U RIA 4,936
Bank balance and cash RITHESBR LR 821
Other payables EoAth FE T FRIR (624)
Bank borrowings RITEE (11,000)
Deferred tax liability FIEFRIBEAE (1,657)
30,000

The fair value of other receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to RMB4,936,000. The gross contractual amounts of those
trade and other receivables acquired amounted to RMB4,936,000 at
the date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected amounted to
nil.

RUEE R - EERRENAFEAAR
#54,936,000 7T ° HUEE R E N E SRR )R H
W IER K R MR ANSEAAR
#54,936,000 7T ° UK EE B BN TEHAWER ) &
R ERENREGFEAT -
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BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Acquisition in 2019 (continued)
Goodwill arising on acquisition:

49.

e hEFt I8 2 R (4]
= — AL B YR ()
WIERAE AR

FrEgE R (B
IS iy g

Consideration transferred
Plus: non-controlling interest
Less: net assets acquired

B PR B R E

18,000
12,000
(30,000)

WhEPpTEAmE

Goodwill arising on acquisition

The acquisition-related costs are not material and have been
recognised in profit or loss.

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

WREERIR AL A EX - BERBERPHER ©

W FTEE £ Y B 207 1 FBR

Consideration paid BERRE (18,000)
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired A TR e RIS S E WS 821
(17,179)

Included in the profit for the year is loss of RMB6,357,000 attributable
to the additional business generated by Henan Chaoli, and revenue
for the year includes RMB495,000 generated from Henan Chaoli.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, revenue for
the year of the Group would have been RMB27,181,941,000, and
profit for the year of the Group would have been RMB506,374,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2019, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.
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49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 49, WEEKIB AT (&)

Acquisition in 2018

In January 2018, the Group acquired 55% equity interests in
Changxing Yongchao Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd
("Yongchao”) from a third party for a consideration of RMB12,220,000.
Yongchao is principally engaged in the lead-acid batteries recycling
and lead production and was acquired so as to continue the
expansion of the Group’s principal business. This acquisition of
business has been accounted for using the purchase method.

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition
are as follows:

R-ZE—N\FEHWE

RZZE—N\F—H AEER—FE=FK
BREDKHBIRRBHE AR A R ([KE8 ) 55%
fa#E - REAAKRE122200007T ° K8 E
DRESEESHOR RITEE  WERKE
DNEERERASBMNEZER - BIXEBFK
B RABE AN -

REBERRANEERBENATFEND
T

RMB'000

ARBT T

Property, plant and equipment L E e Y 350
Trade and other receivables FE W B 5 B 5k I EL A FE UL SR IR 7918
Inventories X< 9,220
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRESEEY 12,373
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BR SR I HL At JE A< 5RIE (7,643)
22,218

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to RMB7,918,000. The gross contractual amounts of those
trade and other receivables acquired amounted to RMB7,918,000 at
the date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected amounted to

RUE RS - BIRE SRR R EMEWRIE
A FE A AR 7918000 7T © # Uk EEH) fE
W B 5 B8R 51 R Eo At fE U R IR A Uk S B HR R 42
EHEEE A AR 79180007T ° MULEE B 5
THEHWE R AR S RENRKEGE ST -

nil.
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WHEFTE A2
RMB'000
AREFTT
Consideration transferred FregrE (B 12,220
Plus: non-controlling interest o IR 9,998
Less: net assets acquired B T EERE (22,218)

Goodwill arising on acquisition, provisional

WREFELRE (HRE) -
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49.

50.
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ZE-NFTZA=T—HIEFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 49. BB AR (&)

Acquisition in 2018 (continued) R-Z—-NFHWE (&)

The acquisition-related costs are not material and have been WEESFERARN AW RNE KX - BEREEPER ©

recognised in profit or loss.

Net cash inflows arising on acquisition WEFTELBE L RAFE
RMB'000
AREFT
Consideration paid BERRE (12,220)
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired A TR e RIS S E WS 12,373
153
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 50. FEBAE RS
(@) During the year, the Group has significant transactions with (a) AEENAFEETIEBSEEXR
following related parties: R
Name Relationship
=1 2EES
Zhejiang Doulan Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd.* Controlled by Zhou Mingming
HAIILHR B e RIBRD AR AR JE1BR B AT 1 ol
Zhejiang Pulangte Joint venture
PR AES BEBE
Moll Associate
Moll NG
Hangzhou Xinglianxing Network Technology Associate
Co,, Ltd.*
N2 E 2 YEBRRBER AR NG
Zhejiang Shidarui Electric Bike Co.,, Ltd.* Associate
ALEEREEHEFR DA /N
Hengyang Xinyueweichi Supply Chain Co., Ltd Associate
B EROLHEEEREEAR NG
Henan Yilin Trade Co., Ltd.* Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
Al AEERR AT —KHE R R IEIERAR R
* The English name of these companies are for reference only and have * ZERRMEXLBERZE - WRAEL

not been registered.
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HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

50. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 50. FABAER S (&)
(b) During the year, the Group has entered into the following (b) NEBERAFEHEBAE AETUATE

significant transactions with its related parties: RZ 5
Trade sales and purchase BEFHERFE
Trade sales Trade purchase
ESHE BEZRE
0 2018 019 2018
—T-N\F —ET-NF
000 RMB’000 B'000 RMB'000
ARETTT K AREFTT
Entities controlled by EZEHNERS
the Directors 5 - 16,757 30,986
Associates /NG| 1,766 5,400 - =
Joint ventures BERE 31,513 10,982 - 35,940
Others Hi - 273 - 34
33,284 16,655 16,757 66,960
Amounts due from related parties (before ECL) FEW B 5 5 (TR B 18 AT)
0 31/12/2018
A T \F+-A=+—H
d 0 d Trade Non-trade
= Z = Z =) FEZ
000 000 RMB'000 RMB’000
=S ARETT ARETT
Entities controlled by EEEHNERS
the Directors 3,224 - 4178 19,000
Associates /NG| 4,894 127,929 14,310 129,984
Joint ventures M 37,079 22,348 524 =
Others HAth 11,551 - 12,893 12,308
56,748 150,277 31,905 161,292
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BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

50. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 50. @A S (&)
(b) During the year, the Group has entered into the following (b) REBERAFEHEBAEM AETUATE

significant transactions with its related parties: (continued) AKX 5 (88)

Amounts due to related parties FE1TEGHE 5 54 1H

019 31/12/2018
= - N\F+=-A=+—H
ade 0 ade Trade Non-trade
= = =0 EEH
B'000  RMB’00C RMB'O00  RMB'000
8 R ARBFIT AREBTT

Entities controlled by EEEHINERS

the Directors 6,169 - 6,363 4,740

Associates ik l/NE] - 17,046 = =

Joint ventures AERE 3,055 - 3,853 =

Others Hib - - 14,276 =

9,224 17,046 24,492 4,740

The non-trade balances due from/to related parties are FEUR FERTRARE S R IEE B sk A E

unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. B RENBREKERE -

Loan to associates (before ECL) EEHE LGB (AR EEEEA)

019 2018
—E-N\F
B’000 RMB'000
R AREFT

Loan to associates: MEE R ER
— Non-current portion (note i) — JERNEAEE & (M 5ED) 162,885 173,085
— Current portion (note i) — BIEAER > (Bt Eii) 19,442 19,209
182,327 192,294

Notes: Bifet -

0] The amounts as at 31 December 2019 represent the loan to Fei Fang 0} R-F—NFEF+=-A=1—HZEERA
Technology Co,, Ltd, an associate of the Group, which is unsecured, interest- R E &L FISE T B AR A BlfE 4 H
free and repayable on demand. B BELEH  REREBEENREE -

(ii) The amounts as at 31 December 2019 represent the loan to Moll, an (ii) R-E—NF+ - A=+—Ha25EER
associate of the Group, which is unsecured, carrying a fixed interest rate of REFHE RN EIMoll 8L BB + BIER
5.0% (2018: 5.0%) per annum with the maturity of 12 months. o ZEEFEF E0%(=ZF —)UF:

50%)FHE + IR 1218 FEZIH -
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HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

50. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 50.

(b) During the year, the Group has entered into the following
significant transactions with its related parties: (continued)

Amounts due from related parties — analysed for

BB X% (&)

(b) AEERAFEEEBTETATE

KRG : (&)

FE W BRI 5 FOR — BB RE B NS

financial reporting purposes: r:
0 2018
—E-N\F
000 RMB'000
S ARETIT

Amounts due from related parties & U B RS 75 FROB
(trade and non-trade) (B N3IEES) 207,025 193,197
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEEERE (35,874) =
171,151 193,197
Loan to associates EHEYNEIIS ¢4 182,327 192,294
Less: allowance for credit losses o EEEE R (28,755) =
153,572 192,294
324,723 385,491
Non-current JERNER 133,085 173,085
Current BN EA 191,638 212,406
324,723 385,491
(c) Compensation of key management personnel () EEEEAENENE

0 2018
—E-N\F
000 RMB'000
R AREFIT
Short term employee benefits HHEE R 10,585 11,237
Retirement benefits scheme contributions  3RKIEF 5T 24 3% 32 29
Share-based payments VAR (D BETE A 5K 3,491 1,438
14,108 12,704

The remuneration of key management personnel is
determined with reference of the performance to individuals
and market trends.

TEEBRABNMEIRL2EM/MAR
BEMISEBEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-—NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

51. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The Company's share option scheme (“the Scheme”) was adopted
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

The share options granted shall vest in accordance with the
timetable below, each with an exercise period commencing from
the relevant vesting date and ending with eight years after the date
of grant (4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019):

(1) 32,500,000 share options granted on 4 April 2018 (“April 2018
share options”):

(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 4 April 2018

(b)  20% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 4 April 2019

(0 70% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 4 April 2020

(2) 35,750,000 share options granted on 21 December 2018
(“December 2018 share options”):
(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted

shall vest on 21 December 2018

(b)  20% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 21 December 2019

(0 70% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 21 December 2020

(3) 30,650,000 share options granted on 25 March 2019 (“March
2019 share options”):
(@)  10% of the total number of the Share Options granted

shall vest on 25 March 2019

(b)  20% of the total number of the Share Options granted
shall vest on 25 March 2020

(0 70% of the total number of the Share Options granted
shall vest on 25 March 2021
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51.

URGBRERNTRRS
AATE R ER B (%58 ]) #Re - =
ZENRRAEERAERERREHER R
BZEtE ARFEEEARAERER(E
RARBREMBARNESR ) REBERE -
AR A DR AD

PIRLBERERRETIREREE &8
BTSSR FHEBERREEREAM(—
Z-N\FOANB - —_E-N\E+ZA
“t-BER-E-AF=ZA-t+HBA)EN
FiE:

M R-ZE-—NFHNAMNBELED
32,500,000f7 R #E ([ ZF— N\F W A
BERRRED)

(@ FTRHBREABEI10%EN =
T-N\FOAMBRE

(b)  FTH R AR R 4B B 20% Y —
T-NFOAMNBRE

© FIRHBREABE 70% KR
T_TFEMANBRE

Q RZE—NF+t-A-+—BEHEH
35,750,000 EERE ([ ZFE—N\F+=
REERR#E]) -

@) FIIREEREASAN10%ER =
Z-NF+-_A=-+—HBHEE

(b) P BRI RE A2 B 20% 45 I —
Z-hF+-_A=-+—HBEE

© FIIREEREASN70% SR
T-ETF+ A -+ —HEE

B M-ZE-—AE=FA-+HEBELEH
30,650,000 ([ —FE—NF= A
BERRAE]) -

@  BTEREARE BE 10% 5 =
T NE=A-THARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NFT+-A=+—HLEFE

51. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 51. UROBERNETRRSZ (B)
(continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TEREEFARERESFENARRER
options held by employees and Directors during the year: FE
QOutstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired  Outstanding at
at 1 January during during during during 31 December
2019 the year the year the year the year 2019
RZZ-NF RZZ-NF
—R—H TZA=t-H
MATTE  FREE O ERTR FARK FRIS HATTE
April 2018 share options —Z— )\ A ERE 32,500,000 - - - - 32,500,000
December 2018 share options “E-\E+Z_REkiE 35,750,000 - - - - 35,750,000
March 2019 share options “Z-NE=-RERE - 30650000 - - - 30,650,000
68,250,000 30,650,000 = = = 98,900,000
Held by: BUTALHE :
Directors o 6,250,000 1,150,000 = = = 7,400,000
Employees 3=l 62,000,000 29,500,000 - - - 91,500,000
Exercisableattheend of theyear  RERA{TE 23,540,000
Weighted average exercise price ~ MEFISTH(E
(HKD) (B1) 3694 3090 - - - 3507
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TREREF—FERERESHENALA
options held by employees and Directors during the prior year: BixEEs)
QOutstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired  Outstanding at
at 1 January during during during during 31 December
2018 the year the year the year the year 2018
RZF-\F RIZ-N\F
—R—H TZA=1+-H
AR FREE FRR FRRk EREE MATHR
April 2018 share options - \FEARRE - 32500000 - - - 32,500,000
December 2018 share options —“Z-\F+_REkE - 35750000 - - - 35,750,000
= 68,250,000 = = = 68,250,000
Held by: BHATALTHE
Directors £ = 6,250,000 = = = 6,250,000
Employees (€8 - 62000000 - - - 62,000000
Exercisableattheend of theyear ~ RERA1T{E 6,825,000
Weighted average exercise price ~ AMEFE 1T E(E
(HKD) (1) - 3694 - - - 3694
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51.

218

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

During the year, options were granted on 25 March 2019 to eligible
employees (including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries).
The estimated fair values of the options granted on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019 are RMB41,230,000,
RMB32,669,000 and RMB25,135,000 respectively. These fair values
were calculated using the Binomial Model. The inputs into the model
were as follows:

51. URDAEBRNLIRRS (&)

FAN - BREAZZE-NF=A=1+HAM
BEWREE (BEARRLKENBARIZE
F)RH -RZZE—N\FEAMA - =&
—N\F+_A=+—BE=ZZE—NF=A
“+tRARENERE G AFES B A
AR ® 41,230,000 + A K% 32,669,000 7T &
AR #25,1350007C ° ZE R FENERZ
HARAGE - ZEAN@ASBOT ¢

4 April 21 December 25 March

2018 2018 2019

=F-N\F =F-N\F —F-NF

MAMAE +=A=+—H =A=t+XEHH

Grant date share price B EIRR(E HKD4.183 HKD3.05 HKD3.09
41837 3.05 87T 3.09 77T

Exercise price 1T E HKD4.332 HKD3.114 HKD3.09
4332787 311487 3097 7T

Expected life TEEAFHA 8 years 8 years 8 years
84 84 84F

Expected volatility T8 HARK & 47.5% 45.8% 45.6%
Dividend yield AR B 2 2 1.8% 1.7% 1.7%
Risk-free interest rate 4 [ B ¥l 3R 1.84% 2.00% 1.50%

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB54,896,000 (2018:
RMB21,247,000) for the year in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest ultimately. The
impact of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve.
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AEEFARQRIRHOBRERRE RN
4 N RB 54896000 (ZZ—\F : A
R #£21,247,0007T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

52.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS
The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their employees’ payroll to the
retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme which are
calculated based on specified percentage of the employee’s basic
salaries during the year.

In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws and
regulations of Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Group and under the control of an independent MPF service
provider. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group in
respect of the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

52. RIRBRIFHEIHEK

AARFEMBEARNEE AT ERTLE
REBENBZRKREMNGEIHKE - NQF]
TEINBARARERFEETADLLAZ
BRABHEHFIAMESENES - AEE
HIRKREFE BIROME — B AIRIBZET EIE
BB ER - HRDZEEFRAEARFHSH
FEBDHLETE

AEERBEEBNEERHIERTESIEIIR
BBl RETARERNASEERL AR
BHEATEEA B ([REEFTE)) - FrEIEE
EAKEEENFHTE - LHBIREDR
BHEREE - REBESEMRA - &
T REEEEBARRAEER L R AZE
SR - AEREH BB INE—TEIR
IR EIE TR K -
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BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

53. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 53. EEALBIHNBERRRK #EE S
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS &R
OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the REREHALERE - BEAR M EARRERD
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: ERelE
019 2018
2 —E-N\F
B'000 RMB'000
R ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 121 187
Investment in subsidiaries T E A AR E 378,650 323,739
Amounts due from subsidiaries RS NGIE 662,465 549,462
1,041,236 873,388
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIE K B i e WO IE 12,099 14213
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFTAEENSEE 1,827 1,961
Loan receivable ERE R 4,608 4,608
Amounts due from subsidiaries R EPNGIE S 28,950 29,518
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 12,260 26,433
59,744 76,733
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Other payables HAth fE T FIR 4,166 567
Short term borrowings RAEEE 40,474 67,475
44,640 68,042
NET CURRENT ASSETS nBEEFE 15,104 8,691
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZEERAEBERE 1,056,340 882,079
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital A% 2R 74,704 74,961
Reserves & 943,885 767,855
TOTAL EQUITY MR 1,018,589 842,816
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTBT B A mIFRIE 37,751 39,263
1,056,340 882,079
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53. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 53. BEEA LB BMRRARRFHEEZE
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS &R (&)

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Share Share Retained
Share capital premium  option reserve earnings Total
B RieEE — BRERE REEF At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARMTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\ETZA=1—H 74,961 417301 - 96,455 588717
Profit and total comprehensive income  FRIFE & 2 AN B

for the year - - - 301,543 301,543
Dividend paid to owners of the Company  EAIAARIEE ARE - - - (68,691) (68,691)
Recognition of equity-settled RIARELE AR D

share based payments REREAH - - 21,247 - 21,47
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=t-H 74,961 417,301 21,247 329,307 842,816
Profit and total comprehensive income  FRFIE Rk 2 Rz EE

for the year - - - 192,586 192,586
Dividend paid to owners of the Company AR RIEA ARE - - - (62,388) (62,388)
Recognition of equity-settled BeRARAE R EIAR A

share based payments BERENRR - - 54,896 - 54,896
Shares repurchased and cancelled EAE)S &= ) (257) (9,064) - - (9,321)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-h&E+-fA=1—H 74,704 408,237 76,143 459,505 1,018,589
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BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the

222

reporting period are as follows.

54, FEHBAT

Issued and fully
Place of paid-up
incorporation/ share capital/
Name of company establishment registered capital
HEREL/ BRTRMRE
NEER R b8 BA/ERER
Directly held
EBRA
Chaowei Power Group Limited BVl UsD100
BEBNEEARAT EEERRES 0%
Leadnew Limited BVI USD100
EMBRAF EREBRES 1007
Indirectly held
E3ea)
Chaowei Power (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000
(‘Chaowel Power HK') i 10000787C
BR®N (BB BRAT
(BE@HEE])
Moll Grundstiicks — und Vermdgensverwaltungs ~ Germany EUR2,002,500
GmbH & Co. KG MOLL G+V fBE 2,002,500 B8 7C
Chaowei Power Group Co, Ltd. PRC RMBT,063,800,000
(‘Chaowei Power’) (Note ) i AR 10638000007
BEREREEARAR (TBRER]) (M)
Henan Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB10,000,000
AEBRERERAR (M) P AR 100000007
Shandong Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB100,000,000
WREFHERARAA (M) Gl ARE 1000000007
Jiangsu Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB100,000,000
THBRERERAR (ML) E AR 1000000007
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AEBENTENBARNREMERFOE

FEFIT o

Equity interest
attributable to
the Company as at
31 December

KAARTZA=1-H

Principal activity

FEfL R R R FTEEE
019 2018
—2-)\#&
0 0 %
100 100 Investment holding
RERR
100 100 Investment holding
RERR
100 100 Investment holding
RERR
74.9 749 Property investment
VIESIE
100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
BEHNEN
60 60  Manufacture of motive batteries
BEHNEY
100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
S D
61 61 Manufacture of motive batteries
S LS
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BE-_Z-NFEt+-_A=+—"BIEE

54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 54, TEME AT (&)

Issued and fully

Equity interest

Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activity
HRAL/ BRTRAR ARAARTZA=t-H
NEAER R 38 R/ ERER EiERAER TEXH
019 2018
—ZN\E
%
Anhui Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 75 75 Manufacture of motive batteries
(‘Anhui Chaowe ") (Note ) P AR 1000000070 HEPNEN
ZHBHERERAH
(M BiBgl ) (3t
Zhejiang Chaowei Power Energy Co, Ltd. (Notei)  PRC RMB150,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
MTRAE N RERAR (F) P AR 150000000 7T materials
HEBNEHRME
Jiangxi Xinwei Energy Technology Co, Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
(Note ) el ARE 100000000 7T REPNEN
IREHEE N RRRERAR ()
Anhui Yongheng Power Technology Co, Ltd. PRC RMB65,500,000 95 95 Manufacture of motive batteries
(*Anhui Yongheng’) (Note ) i AR 655000007 HEH NN
ZRXEBNREARAR
(T BB ) ()
Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang Power Co, Ltd. ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 51 51 Manufacture of motive batteries
(‘Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang’) (Note i) i AR 100000007 SEH NN
MIRASAGERERAT]
(DT RES KB ]) ()
Zhejiang Chaowei Chuangyuan Industrial PRC RMB83,333,333 81,5 815 Manufacture of motive batteries
Co, Ltd. (Note ) il ARH83333333 7L HEGNEN
MIRRATERERAR (M)
Jiangsu Yongda Power Co, Ltd. PRC RMB80,000,000 60 60  Manufacture of motive batteries
(‘Jiangsu Yongda') (Note ) e AR 800000007 BEHNED
IEKEERRNERAR
(NT#RAGE ] (Rt
Qinyang Libiao Membrane Co, Ltd. PRC RMB63,240,769 85 85 Manufacture of electrode plate
(‘Qinyang Libiao") (Note | i AR 63240769 7T dividing paper
WETEBERRAT SEFHRBERA
(MOBALR]) ()
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54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 54, TEMB AT (E)

224

Issued and fully Equity interest
Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activity
HRAL/ BRTRAR ARAFARTZA=t-H
NEER R b5 B%/ERER e TEEH
019 2018
—TNE
%
Zhejiang Yueda Plastic Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB40,850,000 51 51 Manufacture of plastic battery
I ERERNERAR (M) Gl ARE 4085000070 cases
REBHER
Hebei Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB120,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
A EHERARAR (i) Gl AR 1200000007 HEGNEN
Zhejiang Xinwei Power Trading Co, Ltd. (Notei) ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
MIHERREZERAR (Hz) P AR 1000000070 materials
HEFNEMRME
Henan Chaowei Zhengxiao Power Co, Ltd. PRC RMB60,000,000 90 90  Manufacture of motive batteries
('Henan Zhengxiao’) (Note i) i AR 6000000070 HEHNEN
AEBHENERERAR
(FAmER]) ()
Shandong Chaowei Ciyao Power Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
(‘Chaowei Ciyao') (Note §) e AR%1000000070 HEHNEN
R BRHEERBRA R
(FeBgimz ) (k)
Zhejiang Heniu Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
AR A R AR (i) i AE%100000007 materials
REBNEMRME
Henan Chaowei Zhengxiao Power Sale Co, Ltd. ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
(Notei) H AE#100000007C materials
MERRERERHFERRAA (ML) HEBNTHRIH
Chaowei Tici (Beijing) Energy PRC RMB100,000,000 51 51 Research and development
Technology Co, Ltd. (Note ) i AR 10000000070 ik
BERR(ER) RREARAR (W)
Zhejiang Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100 Research and development of
HLREENERAR () i AR 5000000070 solar energy generating system
HERGREBRS
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54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 54, T EMEB AT (E)

Issued and fully Equity interest

Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activity
AL/ BEARAE ARFARTZA=t-H
NAEH R 38 R/ ERER EiERAER TEXH
019 2018
—ZN\E
%
Zhejiang Anli Energy Co,, Ltd. (Note ) PRC USD35,000,000 85.71 8571 Research and development of
LR NeeRARAR (i) il 35,000,000 7¢ durathon batteries
HERASH
Henan Chaoli PRC RMB30,000,000 60 N/A Manufacture of motive batteries
BN i AEE 300000007 TER HEPNER
Note: Ktz -
(i) These companies are PRC limited liability companies. The English names of these 10 ZENGAPEERAG  BEXEFEHS

companies are for reference only and have not been registered.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Company's directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Except for Chaowei Power has issued short-term financing note,
medium-term note and corporate bond as disclosed in notes 39 and
40 respectively, no other subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of both years.

£ WREE -

BRRBIHARBDEETR /Y AEEES
HEEETEXENAKBNBAR - RE
BEEER 2VEMMBARNFEHEHR
BB TR -

RERERETENRERE THRER
R EF (M 39 M40 T ER ) JASL - 4R
EHE DM B A BN F ARG EITER
BEEES -

BREBHZERERAR / 20194% 225



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i O W15 i < BV 5

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NFT+-A=+—HILEFE

54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company that have material non-controlling interests:

54, TEMMEBE AT (&)
TREHARRNBEE EAIFIERERHFER
NS

Place of Proportion of ownership interests Profit allocated to
incorporation and voting rights held by non-controlling interests Accumulated
and principal non-controlling interests for the year ended non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary place of business at31 December 31 December at 31 December
Rt=A=t-A BETZA=1-H
ERRLEHR FERRRFEARE LEEARE RtZA=+-BHK
KEARER IR HARRREL S FERERNRE SitkRRER
019 2018 019 2018 019 2018
: T I
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000
R¥ ARBTT R ARBTT
Henan Chaowel PRC 40% 40% 24,495 31417 494,262 469,767
EfES] Gl
Anhui Chaowei PRC 25% 25% 11,436 8403 106,028 94592
R Gl
Jiangsu Yongda PRC 40% 40% 9,403 8,793 117,180 107,777
JLERKE Giler
Yangzhou Huaxiang PRC 49% 49% (27,237) (41,904) (41,990) (14.753)
HNER Gl
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests (72,782) (47.916) 205,323 268779
EaFaREanEREEANBAR
Total e (54,685) (35.207) 880,803 926,162

Summiarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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BHE

ZENEFETZA=T—HIEFE
54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 54. TENBE LT (&)
Henan Chaowei TEERE
019 2018
—E-N\F
000 RMB’000
R ARBTT
Current assets BN EE 939,009 1,505,379
Non-current assets ERBE E 1,030,303 633,870
Current liabilities mEAaE 583,004 687,678
Non-current liabilities FErEaE 150,652 277,154
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZANABI#E A A FE{h#E R 741,394 704,650
Non-controlling interests e 494,262 469,767
019 2018
—F-NF
000 RMB’000
R AREFTT
Revenue g A 3,527,343 4,000,237
Expenses i 3,466,104 3,906,695
Profit and total comprehensive income FERFEREE RS RRE
for the year 61,239 93,542
Profit and total comprehensive income A EHEES AL F)E R
attributable to owners of the Company ZHREBRE 36,744 56,125
Profit and total comprehensive income VRS M e PR A K
attributable to non-controlling interests FHEW B 24,495 37,417
Profit and total comprehensive income FAFBREEKEERE
for the year 61,239 93,542
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT AR R AR B - =
Net cash from operating activities LTS FTSIR G 55 244,784 295,127
Net cash used in investing activities KREEBTHIR G F5 (261,356) (28,968)
Net cash used in financing activities REEBTHIRG F58 (197,689) (61,938)
Net cash (outflows) inflows Re ORd) mAZE (214,261) 204,221
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 54, TEMMEBE AT (&)

Anhui Chaowei ZRER
019 2018
—E-N\F
B’ 000 RMB"000
R ARBTT
Current assets MENEE 541,693 398,344
Non-current assets ERBE E 331,812 339,632
Current liabilities mEAE 338,895 237,682
Non-current liabilities FERBBEE 110,498 121,929
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR RI#EA A EIEERS 318,084 283,773
Non-controlling interests IR e 2 106,028 94,592
019 2018
—F-NF
B’ 000 RMB’000
R ARBTT
Revenue WA 2,168,727 1,837,255
Expenses - 2,122,980 1,803,644
Profit and total comprehensive income FERFE N2 S AEE
for the year 45,747 33611
Profit and total comprehensive income AT AL FE R
attributable to owners of the Company FHEN =B 34,311 25,208
Profit and total comprehensive income JEH7E A5 5 FE A DB %
attributable to non-controlling interests FHEW B 11,436 8,403
Profit and total comprehensive income FAFBR K EEE
for the year 45,747 33611
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests AT IR ER RS - 15,000
Net cash from operating activities KEEE TSR & R 5 29,209 95,070
Net cash used in investing activities KEEETAR ¢ /758 (8,127) (89,038)
Net cash from financing activities BEEBMSIRE 55 4,756 6,423
Net cash inflows RERNFEE 25,838 12,455
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54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

54, FEHE AT (H&)

Jiangsu Yongda STRRIKE
019 2018
—E-N\F
B’ 000 RMB"000
s ARBTT
Current assets BN EE 501,450 387,703
Non-current assets ERBE E 199,440 197,997
Current liabilities mEAaE 320,433 205,983
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 87,507 110,276
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZNA BB A fE(L R 175,770 161,664
Non-controlling interests e 117,180 107,777
019 2018
—E-N\F
B’ 000 RMB’000
=2 ARBTFT
Revenue WA 2,283,099 2,347,124
Expenses i 2,259,590 2,325,141
Profit and total comprehensive income FERFEREE RS RRE
for the year 23,509 21,983
Profit and total comprehensive income A EHEES AL F)E R
attributable to owners of the Company ZHREBRE 14,106 13,190
Profit and total comprehensive income VRS M e PR A K
attributable to non-controlling interests FHEW B 9,403 8,793
Profit and total comprehensive income FAFBREEKEERE
for the year 23,509 21,983
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT AR R AR B - =
Net cash (used in) from operating activities ESEE) (P TSR 558 10,483 (40,600)
Net cash used in investing activities KREEBTHIR G F5 (8,167) (9,400)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities BEEE) (FTR) T8 & 958 (5,152) 55,628
Net cash (outflows) inflows Re ORd) mAZE (2,836) 5628
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54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 54, TEMMEBE AT (&)

Yangzhou Huaxiang EMNES
0 2018
—E-N\F
000 RMB'000
R ARBTT
Current assets MBNEE 171,805 175,460
Non-current assets ERBE E 345,626 342,563
Current liabilities mEAE 601,124 546,131
Non-current liabilities FERBBEE 2,000 2,000
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZAA BIEH A fE(L (43,703) (15,355)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR 2 (41,990) (14,753)
0 2018
—E-N\F
000 RMB’000
R ARBTT
Revenue A 20,485 543,428
Expenses - 76,070 628,947
Loss and total comprehensive expense FAEE & EEHR L5
for the year 55,585 85,519
Loss and total comprehensive expense NARHE AEIGEER
attributable to owners of the Company FHEFZ B 28,348 43615
Loss and total comprehensive expense IRV R 2 FE AN B 1R K
attributable to non-controlling interests e L 27,237 41,904
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABEREZERSLE
for the year 55,585 85,519
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests AT IR ER RS - =
Net cash (used in) from operating activities SRR (FTAR) FT5IR & 558 (19,239) 23,501
Net cash used in investing activities KEEETAR ¢ /758 (26,962) (60,541)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities mEEEE (FTE)EE 358 41,559 (41,280)
Net cash outflows REMHFEE (4,642) (78,320)
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55. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 55. MEHEREE

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) in the
beginning of 2020, it has presented short-term challenges to the
domestic economy as well as the market environment, the Group
has been closely monitoring the pandemic and implementing
contingency measures to minimize the impacts of the pandemic on
the business operation of the Group. While the production plant of
the Group has resumed its production since middle February 2020
after the Chinese New Year holidays, the Directors consider that
there were only limited impact on the operation of the Group, which
mainly affected logistics arrangements and resulted in a slower ramp
up in production capacity after the Chinese New Year holidays. The
Group has already been operating at full capacity since early March
2020, and shall continue to pay close attention to the development
of the disease and, if any, evaluate its impact on the Group's financial
position, operating results and other aspects. As at the date of the
approval of the consolidated financial statements, the Group was
not aware of any material adverse effects on the consolidated
financial statements as a result of such outbreak.

—E_ZTFEPBE09TBETRBRER
(COVID-19) 1% + BBIRALE K h 5 IR B A 2K
EEER RS - NEE —E R ESEEAR
MATHIE R - WEHIESEE - B
MITEHASREEBNZERERE - A5EH
ZEEREREBMTRPE B2 =%
F_RAFRBEMELE EFREEAEE
EENFERR HFXrEFEY) R &
MEEBNTRBBREAEEHRERIE - &
EEE T _ZTF=-AVREEEEE I
1B EG R SR - AR EEAS
BB FSARR AR A R E A E RS Z (M
)  RLESRETBHRERCBE  AEE
WA HEE BIGEEH R A M SRR B R
BEATHIFE -
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The following table summarizes the consolidated results, assets and
liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December:

019 2018 2017 2016 2015
W —T-\F —T—+F —T-RF —T-1fF
000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R ARETT ARE®TT AR®TT ARETET
Results E
Revenue WA 27,181,732 26,948,237 24,654,011 21,454,756 18,870,205
Profit before taxation B ¢ AT A 805,486 577,709 635,639 705,070 545,872
Taxation Fita (298,831) (200,202) (163,755) (86,012) (57,866)
Profit for the year FERFE 506,655 377,507 471,884 619,058 488,006
Profit/(loss) attributable to RS
non-controlling interests BB/ (BE) (54,685) (35,207) 17,068 115,262 156,337
Profit/(loss) attributable to VN/NEIEZ 2PN
owners of the Company FIE,/ (&5E) 561,340 412,714 454816 503,796 331,669
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREEE 7,106,398 7,087,013 6,449,075 5160473 4,828,265
Current assets mEBEE 10,301,946 10,616,385 10,556,702 7,825,684 5938855
Total assets BEE 17,408,344 17,703,398 17,005,777 12,986,157 10,767,120
Liabilities 8
Non-current liabilities EREAE (1,821,312) (2,742,530) (3,343,865) (1,590,731) (2,032,748)
Current liabilities mBaE (10,171,042)| (10032038)  (8974472) (7244005  (5418,840)
Total liabilities BEGE (11,992,354) (12,774,5698) (12,318,337) (8,834,736) (7,451,588)
Capital and reserves BEAK#E
Equity attributable to owners of VN/NGIEZ 2= DN
the Company eGSR 4,535,187 4,002,668 3672614 3,302,964 2,584,640
Non-controlling interests R ER 880,803 926,162 1,014,826 848,457 730,892
Total Equity B 5,415,990 4,928,830 4,687,440 4,151,421 3,315,532
Current ratio (current assets/ RELE(RBEE,/
current liabilities) nEHAE) 1.01 1.06 1.18 108 1.10
Gearing ratio (total bank BARG B R (MBRTT
borrowings, short term financing BE EHRERE-.
notes, medium-term note, HHISR  hEES
corporate bond, convertible ARRESREBERE
bonds and obligations under BIMER/BEE)
finance lease/total assets) 30% 37% 37% 29% 31%

The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2019
and its assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019 are set forth on pages
83 to 231, and are presented on the basis set out in note 1 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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